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To, Date: 05t September, 2025
The Manager - Corporate Service Dept.

BSE Limited,

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,

Dalal Street, Fort,

Mumbeai - 400 001.

Dear Sir/Madam,

Scrip Code : 519477, SCRIP ID : CTIANAGRO

Sub: Submission of 38t Annual Report of the Company.

Pursuant to regulation 34(1) of Securities and exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) please find enclosed
herewith Notice convening 38t Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company and Annual
Report of the Company for the Financial year 2024-25, which is being sent to the members of the
Company by e-mails.

The AGM will be held on Tuesday, 30% September, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. through Video
Conferencing ("VC’)/Other Audio Visual Means ('OAVM’) means.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 42 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing
Regulations’), the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain
closed from Tuesday, 23t September, 2025 to Tuesday, 30t September, 2025 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of AGM. Intimation of book closure is already communicated.

Kindly take the above on your record.
Thanking you,

Yours faithfully, ‘
For CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited

qu _

Madhubdla Dave

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mem No: F12218

Encl: a/a
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MESSAGE FROM THE MANAGING DIRECTOR'S DESK

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilage to present to you CLAN Agro Industnies & Infrastructure Limited's 38th Annual Report for the
Financial Year 2024-25 marking a milestane in our journey of decade in Fast Moving Consumer Goods Industry
andAgro Industry.

Fasl Moving Consumer Goods Industry (FMCG), refers to affordable everyday products that sell guickly and
havea shaorl shelf life. The FMCG sector is the 4th largest in India, contributing ~3% (o GDP and providing jobs o
nearly 3 million people. CRISIL projects the Indian FMCG sector to grow 6-8% by revenue in FY2028, as
compared to a mare modest 5-6% expected in FY2025, drven by urban demand recovery and steady rural
demand.

This industry is taking a new shape as E-commerce continues lo strenglhen its presence significantly in 8 metros,
impacting the share of offline channels — both Modern Trade (share 22.8%, share change vs. YA: -2.8) &
Traditional Trade (share 62,5%, share changse vs. YA! -1.5). This growth is largely volume-driven (Meftros — E-
comm: +39.9% vs. TT: -2.2%, MT; -7.7%), supported by increasing online shopper panetration, more purchase
occaslons, and increasing baskel sizes (more unils purchased per shopper).

Your Company, CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited (CIAN), delivered a competitive performance,
further strengthened its new market reach during the financial year 2024-25. During the year, we witnessed
moderation in urban demand and gradual recovery of rural consumption, Against this backdrop, we remainad
focused on driving volume growth and strengthening competiliveness lor the business. We look actions in ling
with few new strategies which have resulted Intothe business of the Company.

Our company is driving a strong expansion in the pharmaceutical industry undar our healthcare division. We are
exporting a wide spactrum of products, including tablats, injectables, monoclonal antibodies, IV fluids, vaccines,
anlibiotics, and medical devices. With growing faotprints in the GCC, Africa, and other regions, our mission is lo
deliver world-class healtheare solutions and improve global access to quality medicines..

ClAN ended FY 2024-25 with Standalone revenue from operations of Rs. 25,621.33 Lakhs, an operating Profit of
Rs. 221,18 Lakhs, anda Profit After Tax of Rs. 95.52 Lakhs.

As we adapt to markel demands and focus on strengthening our market prasence in ndia and Intermational
markets, we will create lasting value for our shareholders and investors,

Finally, | would like to thank all of you, our shareholders, bankers whose trust and support lends us the confidence
to navigate near-term challenges. Your collective contributions have baan invaluable in our journey, and we look
forward to your continued partnership.

Nikhil Gadkari
Managing Director
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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the (38th) Thirty-Eighth Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the members of
CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 30, 2025 at 11.30A.M.
through Video Conferencing('VC' yOther AudioVisual Means ("OAVM') to fransact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

2.

To receive, consider and adopt ;

The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st
March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors’ and the Auditors thereon; and

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
31st March, 2025 together with the Reports of the Auditors thereon;

Re-appointment of Director in the place of retiring director

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution, with orwithout modification(s), asan
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder (including any statutory modification and re-enactment thereof) and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Jaykumar Ramesh Varma (DIN: 00489792) who is
liable to retire by rotation at the 38th Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-
appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

RATIFICATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY FOR EY
2025-26:-

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 148 and other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 14 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
{including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/=s. Jyotsna
Rajpal, Cost Accountants, Nagpur (Membership No.:-14520) re-appointed as the Cost Auditor of the
Company by the Board of Directors, for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the
financial year 2025-26, be paid a remuneration of Rs. 60,000/~ {(Rupees Sixty Thousand only) Including
out of pocket expenses and GST as applicable.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do
all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this
resolution.”
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4. APPOINTMENT OF MR. KAUSTUEH ONKAR MOGHE, PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY,
NAGPURAS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:-

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution as an
ORDINARY RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant fo Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, read with the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (including any statutory
madification(s) or re-enactment{s) thereof for the time being in force) and as per the recommendations of
Audit Committee and the Board of Direcfors of the Company, consent of the Members be and is hereby
accorded for appointment of Mr. Kaustubh Onkar Moghe, Practicing Company Secretary as the
Secretarial Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 (Five) consecutive years commencing
from the financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby severally
authorized to determine the remuneration of the Secretarial Auditors including the revision in the
remuneration during the tenure, if any, , in consultation with the Secretarial Auditors, in addition to
reimbursement of all out-of-pocket expenses, to be incurred by them in connection with the Secretarial
Audit and to file necessary forms with Regisirar of Companies and to do all such acts, deeds and things,
as may be necessary, to give effect to this resolution.”

5. SHIFTING OF REGISTERED OFFICE FROM ONE CITY TO ANOTHER CITY WITHIN STATE AND
UNDERTHE SAME REGISTRAR OF COMPANIES (ROC):

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification the following resolution as a SPECIAL
RESOLUTION:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 12 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
companies act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof for the fime being in force), consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for
shifting of registered office of the company from 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil
Lines, Nagpur, Maharashtra, India, 440001 to Unit No. 505, 6th Floor, Raheja Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai-40002 1, Maharashtra, which falls within the state of Maharashtra and within same jurisdiction of
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai but outside the local limits of the city, town or village.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the
Company along with Mr. Kaustubh Moghe, Practicing Company Secretary, Nagpur bearing certificate of
practice number 12486 be and are hereby severally authorized to make an application with Register of
Companies, Mumbai and to do all such acls, deeds, matters and things and execute all such agreements,
documents, instruments and writings as may be reguired including | ling of requisite forms, | 'les, reports,
returns and documents with such appropriate authorities, with the authority o delegate all or any of its

powers herein conferred to any officer(s) of the Company and/ or any other person(s), to give effect to this
resolution.”

Place : Nagpur By Order of the Board of Director
Date : 02" September, 2025 For CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited
Registered Office:
4® Floor. G T Madhubala Dave

0T, Upta: Iowe, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Science College Road, Civil Lines M. No.: FCS 12218
Magpur - 440001
Maharashira
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NOTES

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) has, vide its General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024 read
together with Circular nos. 142020 and 1772020 dated Apnl 8. 2020 and Aprl 13, 2020 May 5, 2020, January 13,
2021, December 8, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 5, 2022 December 28, 2022 and Sepiember 25, 2023
{collectively referred to as "MCA Circulars”), and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBY HOY CFDY CFDPoD-
21 Pi CIRY 2024/ 133 dated Ociober 3, 2024 ("SEBI Circular” permitted convening the Annual General Meeting fill
30th September, 2025 (CAGM™ | "Meeting”) through Video Conferencing ("VC™) or Other Audio Visual Means
("OAVMT), without physical presence of the members at a common venue. In accordance with the MCA Circutars and
appticable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) read with Rules made thereunder and the Securifies and
Exchange Board of Indiz (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Reguiations, 2015 ("Listing
Requiations™), the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. The deemed venue for the AGM shall be
the registered office of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations &
Disclosure Requirements) Reguisbons 2015 {as amended), and MCA General Circular dated September 15, 2024,
together with circulars dated September 25, 2023, April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is
providing facility of remote e-voling to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered info an agreement with Central Depository Services {India) Limited {CDSL) for
facilitating voiing through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of casting votes by a
member using remole e-vofing as well as the e-vofing system on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by
CDSL

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and castvote for the
members is not available for this AGM hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Siip including Route Map are not
annexed to this Notice. However, in pursuance of Secion 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013,
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a Stale or body corporate can
attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and casttheir voles through e-voting.

The Company has appointed Mfs. Kaustubh Onkar Moghe (FCS No. 10603), Practising Company Secretary,
Nagpur as the scnufinizer for conducking the process of e-voling and voling through VC/OAVM and poll papers atthe
AGM in a fair and frensparent manner.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled fime of the
commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Nofice. The facifity of participation at the
AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
inclede targe Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Instifitional Investors,
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committes, Audilors elc. who are allowed o attend the AGM without
resiniction on account of first come first senved basis.

The altendance of the Members altending the AGM through VC/IOAVM will be counlted for the purpose of
asceriaining the guorum under Section 103 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their Sharehoidings, maintained under Section 170
and Register of Confracts or Ammangements in which Directors are inferested maintained under Section 189 of the
Compames Act, 2013 will be open for inspection for the members during the AGM.

An Explanatory Statement required under Section 102{1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the Special
Businesses o be transacted atthe meeting is annaxed hereto.

4
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8) Brief resume of the Directors proposed io be appointedire-appainted af the ensuing AGM in terms of Regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Lisling Regulations) and
Secretarial Standards on General Meetings (55-2) issued by The Insfitute of Company Secretanes of India (ICS1)is
annexed to the Notice. The Company is in receipt of relevant disclosures/consent from the Directors pertaining to
their appointment/re-appoiniment.

9) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reguiation 42 of SEBI {Lisfing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20115, Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company
will remain closed from Tuesday, 23rd September, 2025 io Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 (both days inclusive).

10) Reguiation 40 of the Lisling Regulations, as amended, mandates that requesis for effecting transfer of secunbes
shall not be processed unkess the securities are held in the dematenalised form. Members holding the shares in
phyzical form dre requested o dematerialise their holdings at the eardiest as it will not be possibie to transfer shares
held in physical mode.

Further SEBI vide its master circular no SEBYHO/MIRSDVPOD- 1/PICIR/2024/37 dated May 7, 2024, has mandated
that isted companies shall issue the securities in dematerialised form only, in order to enhance ease of dealing in
securities markets by investors, for fransacfions including Issue of duplicate

securities certificate, claim from unclaimed suspense account, renewal / exchange of securities certificate,
endorsement, sub-division / splitting of securiies cerdificaie, consolidation of securfies cerdificatesi/folios,
transmission and transposition of shares.

11)  Inaccordance with the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI circulars, the facility for nominaiion is available
for the members of the Company in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their
nomination are requested to register the same by submiifing the Form Mo. 5H-13. If a Member desires to opt out or
cancei the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he / she may submit the same in Form No. I5R-3 or
Form No.5H- 14, as the case may be.

Members are reguested to submit the said details fo their respeciive DFs, in case the shares are heid by them in
dematerialized form and to the Company/RTAin case the shares are heid by them in physical form.

12) SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN (duly linked with Aadhar), KYC details and nomination by holders of
physical securities vide master circular no SEBVHOMMIRSDVPOD-1/P/ CIRIZ024/37 dated May 7, 2024 Members
are requested to submit their PAN, KYC and nomination details io the Company’s RTA. Members holding shares in
electronic form are reguesied to submit their PAN to their depository participant(s)

13) The shareholders who are holding shares in demat form and have not yet registered their e-mail 1Ds, are requested
to register their e-mail |Ds with their Depository Participant at the earliest, o enable the Company to use the same for
senving documents to them electronically. Shareholders holding shares in physical form may kindly register their e-
mail 1D to the RTA by sending an e-mail at investorsi@bigshareanline: com.

14) Non Resident Indian membesrs are requested fo inform the Company’s RTA immediately of any change in their
residential siatus on retum to india for permanent setiement, their bank account maintained in india with complete
name, branch, account type, account number and address of the bank with pin code, IFSC and MICR Code, as
applicable if such details were not fumizhed earlier.

15) To comply with the provisions of Section 88 of the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies
{Management and Administraion) Rule 2014, the Company is required to update is dalabase by incorporafing
some addifional details of its members inils records.
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18)

19)

20)
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Members are therefore requested tosubmit their e-mail D and other details vide the e-mail updation form attached in
this Annual Report. The same could be done by filling up and signing at the appropriate place in the said form and
retuming the same by post/email/by submitiing the same at the ime of AGM.

The E-mail ID provided shall be updated subject o successful verification of signatures as per record avaiiable with
the RTAof the Company.

The Nobice of the 38thAnnual General Meeting and instrucfions for remole e-voling are being sent by electronic
maode o all members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/ Depository Paricipant{s].

I line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 1772020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the
AGM has been uploaded on the websiie of the Company at www cianindusinies com. The Molice can also be
accessed from the websile of the Stock Exchange Le. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM MNolice is also
dizsemmnated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www. evolingindia.com.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, and SEB| Circular Mo. SEBYHD/CFIVCFD-PoD-2PICIR/2024/133
dated October 3, 2024 Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2024-25 is being sent only through electronic
mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company or COSL f NGDL {"Depositories").
Members may note that the Motice and Anmuial Report 2024-25 will also be available on the Company's wehsite
www cianindusines.com and on the websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited abwww. bseindia. com.

Any Member desirous of obtaining physical copy of the Nofice of the AGM along with the Integrated Annual Report
may send a request to the Company at infoffcianindusiries.com menfioning their name, demat account number /
folio number, email id and mobide number

The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Compariies Act,
2013 read with MCA. General Circular No. 09/2024 dated Seplember 19, 2024, together with circulars dated 1442020
dated April 8, 2020, MCA Gircular No. 1772020 dated April 13, 2020, MGA Gircular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020,
MCA Circutar No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, MCA Circular No. 22022 dated May 05th, 2022, MCA Circular
MNo. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022, and MCA._ General Circutar No. 09/2023 dated Seplember 25, 2023,

Type of sharcholders Login Method

Inddividual Sharsholders 1)  Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through
DRCRAG SsoicL e, their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
n Demal mode with F s A
COSL D tor e-Voling page without any further suthentication. The URL for users to login

o Easi / Easiest are requesied o visR  www.cdslindia com and click on
Login icon and sefect New System Myeasi.

7}  Aftersuccessful login the Easif Easiest userwill be able to see the e-Viofing
option for efigible companies where the evoling is in progress as per the
information provided by company. On clicking the evoling oplion, the user
will be able o see e-\Voting page of the e-Vioting service provider for casfing
your vote during the remote e-Voling perod or joining virtual meeting &
woling during the meeting. Addifionally, there is atso links provided o access
the system of all e-Voling Senvice Providers, so that the usercan visit the e-
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3) Htheuseriz notregistered for EasiEasiest, oplion to register 1= available at
cdsl website www_cdslindia com and click on login & New Syslem Myeasi
tab option and then click on registration option.

4}  Aliematively, the user can direclly access e-Violing page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voling link available on
www cdsiindia com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authenfication, user will be able fo ses the e-
Voting option where the evoling is in progress and also abie fo directy
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

beaciulch £ St choldatic 1)  If you are already registered for NSDL 1DeAS facility, please visit the e-
"f‘:;:““"'ﬁ“m“ Services website of NSDL Open web browser by typing the following URL:
NSOL Deposilory https:fiesenvices_nesdl com either on a Personal Computer or on @ mobile.

Once the home page of e-Senvices iz launched, dick on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login™ which is available under 'IDeAS’ section. Anew
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. Afier
successiul authentication, you will be able to see e-Vioting services. Click on
“Access to e-Violing” under e-Vipting services and you will be able to see e-
Voding page. Click on company name or e-Voling senvice provider name and
yvou will be re-directed to e-\Volting semvice provider websile for casting your
wote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voling

2}  iftheuseriznol registered for IDEAS e-Senices, option fo regisier is available
at hitps-ieservices nsdl.com.  Select *Register Online for IDeAS *Poral or
click athitips /lesennces_nsdl.com/SecureWebliideasDirectReg . jsp

3) Visil the e-Violing website of NSOL. Open web browser by typing the
following URL: hifps-iwww.evoling.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a8 mobide. Once the home page of e-Voling sysiem is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholderfember’ section. A new screen will open. You will have o
enter your User 1D {i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
MSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
After successful authentication, you will be redirected io NSDL Depository
site whenein you can see e-Voling page. Click on company name or -Violing
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voling service
provider website for casting your vole during the remote e-Voling penod or
joining virtual meeting & voling during the meeting.
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4}  ForOTP based login you can click on
hitps-ffesanices nsdl.com/Gecure W eblevolinglevotingloginuisp. You will
have o enter your 8-digit DP |0, 8-digit Client id, PAN No_, Verification code
and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobie
number and click on login. After successhul authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Violing page.
Click on company name or &-Violing service provider name and you will be
re-directed to e-Voling service provider website for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voiing during the

meeting.
Individuzat Sharsholders You ean alsologin using the login credentials of your demat account through your
{holding securilies in demal mode) y " N . "
hresugh the Deposilory Parficipant registered with NSDUICDSL for e-Violing facility.  After
wl 1 aezir
Depository Participants Successful login, you will be able 1o see e-\Voting option. Once you click on e-

Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDU/CDSL Depository site after
suceessiul authenticaion, wherein you can see e-Voling feature. Click on
company name or e-\ioling senvice provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voling service provider website for casting your vole during the remote e-Voling
period or joining virtual meeting & voling during the meeting.

Imparfant note : Members who are unable fo refiieve User [V Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forgel
Password option available at sbovementicned websile.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues reiaied to login
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login Type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
halding securiles in = i 1
R, with COSL sending a request al helpdesk evoling@cdslindia com or contact af todl free no.
1800 21 09911
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
halding securies in sending a request at evoling@nsdl.co.in or call at - 022 - 4886 7000 and 022 -
Dhearriaal o with NS 24595 7000

Siep 2 : Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of sharcholders holding shares in physical mode and non-
individual sharcholders in demat mode.

¥i. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders otherthan
individua! holding in Demat form.

The shareholders are requested to log on to www. evolingindia.com.

Click on Shareholders module

MNow Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP 10 followed by 8 Digits Client 1D,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Fofio Mumber registered with the Company.

|- I L
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. Enterthe Image Verificaiion as displayed and Click on Login.
¥ If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evolingindia.com and voled eardier for amy

company, then your existing password is to be used forlog in.

vii  Ifyouare a first ime user, please follow the steps given below

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

FAN = Enteryour 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Depariment { Applicable for both demat
shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

= Shareholders who have nol updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are
requested to use the sequence number sentby CompanyRTA or contact CompanyRTA

Dos Enter the Date of Birth {in dd/mmiyyyy format) a= recorded in your demat account or in the company
records imorder o bogin.

= [f both the detadls are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member id f folio
numberin the Dividend Bank details held as mentioned in instructon.

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT tab.

vii Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members
holding shares in demsat form will now reach "‘Password Creation” menu wherein they are required to mandatorly
enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is fo be also used by the demat
holders for voling for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vole, provided that the Company
opis for e-voling through CDSL platicrm. It i strongly recommended not to share your password with any other
person and take utmost care to keep your passwond confidential.

vii. ForMembers holding shares in physical form, the detaits can beused only for e-voting on the resolufions contained in

. If members are holding shares in DEMAT form and logged on to www._evafingindia com and casted vole eardier for
EVSN of any company then the existing loginid and password aretobe used.

¥ Clickonthe EVSN for 'CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

xi. 'On the voling page, you will see "RESCLUTION DESCRIFTION" and against the same the opion ™YES/MNO" for
vofing. Select the oplian YES ar NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

X,

Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK™ if you wish to view the enfire Resolution details.

wiii.  After selecting the resolufion you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT™. A confirmation box will be displayed. If
you wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote, click on "CANCEL™ and accordingly modily
your vote.

Once you "CONFIRM™ your vole on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

;

2

You can also ke a prnt of the votes cast by dicking on "Click here to prnt” option on the Vioting page.

=xvi. Ifa demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User 1D and the image verification code
and click on Forgot Fassword & enter the details as prompted by the system.

xvii. There is also an oplional provision to upload BRAPOA I any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for
verification.
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xviii. Additional Facility for Non - Individual Sharcholders and Custodians-For Remote Voting only.
. Mon-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www.evolingindia_com and register themselves as Corporates.

= A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the enfity should be emailed to
helpdesk_evotingi@cdslindia_com.

- After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance Userwould be able io fink the account{s) for which they wish to vote on.

. Thelistof accounts linked in the loginwill be mapped automatically & can be defink in case of any wrong mapping.

. It iz Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Atorney (FOA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrufinizer to verify the same.

* Altemnatively Non individual shareholders are required mandatory o send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority
letter etc. logether with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory whio are authorized to vote, o
the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; infof@cianindusiries.com , if they have voled from
individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrulinizer to veriiy the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/DAVM & E-VOTING DURING

MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM! EGM is same as the instrucfions mentioned

above for e-vofing

2. The link for VC/DAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be displayed after
successiul login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-vofing.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Viofing will be efigible to attend the meeting. Howeves, they will not
be eligible fo vole at the AGMEGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged o join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Intemet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

6. Please note that Parficipants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Lapiop connecting via Mohile
Holspot may experience Avdio/\ideo loss due fo Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended
touse Stable Wi-Fior LAN Connection to miigate any kind of aforesaid glitches

7. Shareholders who would like o express their views/ask questons during the meeling may register themzselves as a
speaker by sending their request in advance alleast T days prior to meeting mentoning their name, demat account
numberfioho number, email id, mobile number 3t (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak
during tha AGM but have querias may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meefing mentioning their nama,
demat account numbenfolio number, email id, mobile number al (company email id). These queries will be replied to
bry the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
guestions during the meeting.

9.  Onlythose shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted theirvote on the
Resolulions through remote e-Voiing and are othenwise not barmed from doing so, shall be efigible to vote through e-
Voting system available during the AGM.

10.  Ifany Voles are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders
have not parficipated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be
considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the
meating.
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PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED
WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES

1.  For Physical shareholders- please provide necessany details like Folio No., Mame of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self aliested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self aitested scanned
copy of Aadhar Card ) by email io Company/RTAemail id.

2. ForDematshareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respeciive Depository Participant (DF)

d. For Indvidual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository
Participant (DF) which is mandatory while e-Voling & joining virtual meetings through Deposiiony.

If you have any queries or issues regarding atiending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can wrile an
email to helpdesk evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 21 09311

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed o Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr.
Manager, (COSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatial Ml
Compounds, M M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbsai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk evoting@cdsiindia com
orcall toll free no. 180021 09311,

Explanatory Statement Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

The following Statement sets out all material facts retsting to the Special Business mentioned in the Motice:

HemNo. 3:

Onthe recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 12th August,
2025 hias approved the appointment and remuneration of Mrs. Jyotsna Rajpal (Membership No_:- 14520), Practicing Cost
Accountant, Magpur fo conduct the audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 ata
remuneration of Rs. 60,000/ (Rupees Sixty Thousand only) Including out of pocket expenses and GST as applicable in
conneciion with the aforesaid audit.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Awdit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, the remuneration payable fo the CostAuditor has to be rafified by the members of the company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resclution as set out in Hem No. 3 of
asccompanying Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for the financial year ending on March
31, 2026

In view of the above, the Board recommends the resolution at e Mo. 3 of this Notice for approval of the shareholders as
an Ordinary Resolution. None of the Direclors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relafives is, in any
way, concemed or interested, financially or otherwise, in passing the said resoluion mentioned at ltem Mo. 3 of this Notice.

tem No. 4

Pursuant to Secunfies and Exchange Board of India {Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third
Amendment) Regulations, 2024, on the basis of recommendation of Board of Directors, alisted company is required to
appoint or reappoint an individual as Secretaral Auditor for not more than one term of five consecufive years; or a
Secretanial Audit firm as Secretarial Auditor for not more than two terms of five consecutive years, with the approval of the
shareholders inannual general meefing.

b1
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In view of the above, on the basis of recommendations of the Audit Commitiee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on
August 12, 2025 have appointed Mr. Kaustubh Onkar Moghe, Praclicing Company Secretary, Nagpur as Secrelarial
Auditor of the Company to conduct secretarnial audit fora period of five consecufive years from FY 2025-26 fo FY 20:28-30.

Mr. Kausiubh Onkar Moghe, Practicing Company Secretary provides services in the field of corporate law, finance,
management sudit, legal drafting and other relaled areas. The firmis a Peer Reviewed firm by 1CSL

Mr. Kaustubh Onkar Moghe, Practicing Company Secretary, meets the efigibility criteria as enumerated under Regulation

24 (1A) of the Listing Reguiations and has consented b act as the Secretaral Auditors of the Company. He also
confirmed that he possess a valid Peer Review Certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Institute of Comparny
Secretaries of India (ICS1).

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, other than to the exdent of their shareholding in the
Company, are concemed/interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the Resolufion set out in ttem Mo_4 of the Notice for approval by the Members as an
Ohrdinarny Resolufion.

tem No. 5

The Registered office of the Company is presently situated at 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines,
Nagpur-440001, Maharashtra. The Board of Directors in itz meeting held on Tuesday, September 02, 2025 discussed the
matter for shifting of regisiered office of the Company at Unit No. 605, 6th Floor, Raheja Chambers, Nariman Point,
Mumbai-400021, Maharashira to cammy on the business of the company more economically and efficiently and with better
operational convenience being the Financial Center of the Country and o cenfralize its functional activities as i
administratively convenient to manage the operations from Mumbai. Mumbsai is more approachahle o all its stakeholders
including its customers, suppliers, statutory authorities. Keeping in mind the possibilities of prospective future expansion
and availability of resources, your company is planning to shift its registered office to Mumibai, Maharashira.

Itis further discussed that the present regisiered office address situated in Nagpurwill be continuing as Corporate Office of
the company afier the change of registered office to Mumbai as may be approved by Board, as it would be convenient to
deal with these offices, if the registered office will be shified to Mumbai.

As per provisions of section 12 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the companies, Act, 2013 and rules made
thereunder, shifting of Registered Office of the Company outside the local fimits but within the same siale and Registrar
requires approval of the Members by way of Special Resolution. Therefore the Board recommends the Resolution as set
outin ltem MNo. 5 for spproval of the members as Special Resolution.

The shifting of the registered office as aforesaid is in the best interests of the company, its shareholders and all concemed.
The proposed shifting will in no way be detrimental to the interest{s) of any member, of the public, empioyees or other
associates of the Company in any manner whatsoever. Mone of the Directors, Manager and Key Managerial Personnel
and their relafives are, in any way, cencemed wiih or interested in the said resolufion, except to the extent of their equity
share holdings in the Company.

Place : Nagpur By Order of the Board of Director
Date : 02" September, 2025 For CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited
:fg: Gd i T ; Madhubala Dave

A, U, ROVE Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Science College Road, Civil Lines M. No.: FCS 12218
MNagpur - 440001
Maharashira
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE

In pursuance of the Requiation 36(3) of the SEBI (Lisfing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulafions, 2015
and Secretarial Standards 2 (S5-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretanes of India{lCSl), details of Director
retirning by rotation seeking re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting are as follows:

Name of the Director Jlavkumar Ramesh Yarma
Ape 65 years

Qualifications, Experience, brief Resume | Mr. JavkumarVarma holds Bachelor's degree in
of the Director & Nature of Expertise, Commerce. He has a vast experience in the field of
Agriculture, especially in Sugarcane FPlantation and
Harvesting. He 15 a talented Agriculturist with
experience of many years of farming. Proven ability
to grow farms, experlise in crop farming and
coordinated agricultural programs, research and
services.  He possesses strong understanding of
agriculture and its various by-products.

He has vast experience in the field of Agriculture
andl allied areas.

Terms and Conditions Non-Executive Director, liable to retire by rotation.

of Appointment / Heappointment along
with details of Remuneration sought 1o
be paic

Rermuneration  last  drawn(including | NIL
sitting fees, if any)
Relationship with other directors and | Mot related to any Director & Key Managerial

Key Managerial Personnel Personnel of the Company,
List of Dwectorship held m  Other | 1. Purti Power & Sugar Limited
Companies

(excluding Divectorship in Private and
Section 8 Companies )

List of Chairmanship / Membership in | NIL
Other Companies
Number of Board Meetings attended | 11
during FY 2024-25
Date of first appointment on the Board | 21,/03/2021
of the Company

Sharehelding in the Company as on | NIL
31.03.2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To,

The Members,

Your Board of Directors ("Boand”) is pieased to present the Thirty-Eighth Annual Report of CLAN Agro Indusiries &
Infrastructure Limited (*CIAN" or “the Company” or “your Company”), for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 [“the
year under review” or “the year” or "FY 257},

In comphance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013, (ncluding any statutory modification({s) or re-
enactment{s) thereof, for time being in force) (“the Act”) and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Ohbligafions and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("the SEBI Regulafions™), this report covers the financial
results and other developments during the financial year Aprl 1, 2024 fo March 31, 2025 and upio the date of the Board
meeting held on September 02, 2025 to approve this report, in respect of C1AN and CIAN Consolidated comprising CLAN
and its subsidiany companies. The consolidaled entity has been refemred toas “"CIAN Group™ or *Your Group™ or "the Group”™
inthis report.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE :

Financial resulis for the year ended March 31, 2025 are presanted in the iabbe below:-

{Rs.InLacs)

Particular Standalone | Consolidated | Standalone | Consolidated

2024-25 2024-25 2023-24 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 25 621,33 102,899.72 17070.94 17070.94
Other Income 76647 2.470.12 116941 1170.02
Total Income 26,387.80 105,369.91 18,240.35 18,240.96
Deprecialion 763.01 470763 B11.56 811.91
Interest & Financiat Expenzes 1608.70 741822 1736.71 1736.73
Total Expenses 26,166.62 100,809.81 17,688.38 17,704.17
Profit before Exceptional items and tax 221.18 4.560.10 551.97 536.79
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 221.18 4.560.10 551.97 536.79
Tax Expense 125 66 444 0D 4501 4691
Profit /{Loss) After Tax 95,52 4,116.10 505.06 489,88
Other comprehensive income (3.54) 189,153.55 14.11 17.69
Total comprehensive income 91.98 193,269 65 519.17 507.57

2. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :-

Az on 31st March, 2025, there are Four (4) wholly-owned subsidiary Companies of CIAN:
i. ClANAgroLimited LLC;

ii. VamonAuminiumm Private Limited;

ii.  Manas Power Ventures Private Limited;

iv. AvenzerEleciricals & Infrastructure Private Limited;

One (1) Step down Wholly Owned Subsidiary:
v. ldeal Energy Projects Limited

One (1) Stop down Subsidiary:
vi. ManasAgro Indusinies and Infrastructure Limited.
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Ot of 6 Subsidianes companies, Two Step Down subsidiary companies are “maltenal subsidiaries™ as per the Reguiabon
24 of the Securiies and Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reqguirements) Regulations, 2015
based on audiied financial statementof March, 2025 .

3. CONMSOLIDATION FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :-

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 2025 are prepared in compliance with the
applicable prowvizions of the Act, including Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The audited
Consolidated Fimancial Siatements together with the Auditors" Repori thereon form part of the Annuai Report.

Pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 125(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the Financial
Gtatements of the Company’s subsidiaries in the prescribed Form AQG-1 is appended as "ANNEXURE-A" forms parl of
the consolidated financial statements.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act. the financial statements of the Company, consolidated
financial statemenis along with relevant documents and separate audited financial siatements in respect of subsidiares,
are available on the Company's websile on hitpd/fwww. cianindustries com

4. OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:-

The Company is into the Fast-Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) industry which continues to be one of the biggest long-
term sustainable business opportunities that our country offers.

During the period under review the standaione Gross Revenue from operations for FY 2024-25 iz Rs. 25,621.33 Lakhs
{Previous Year Rs. 17070.94 Lakhs). The Net Profit for the year siood at Rs_ 9552 Lakhs against Rs. 505.08 Lakhs
reported in the Previous Year. The Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Degreciation & Amoriization (EBITDA) for F.Y 2024-25
isRs. 2592 A0 L akhs against Rs. 310024 Lakhs reported in the previous year.

The Consolidated Gross Revenue from operations for EY 2024-25is Rs. 102,899.72 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 17070.94
Lakhs). The Net Profitfor the year stood at Rs. 4, 116,10 Lakhs against Rs. 489,88 Lakhs reporied in the Previous Year. The
Eamings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation & Amortization (EBITDA) for F_Y 2024-25 is Rs. 16685.95 Lakhs against
Rs.3085.43 Lakhs reported in the previous year.

Segment wise (Standalone) reviews of operations of FY 2024-25 of the Company are as follows:-

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Agro Divizsion Healthcare Division Infrastructure Division
21,085.06 651.83 3,884 44
Segment wise (Consolidated) reviews of operations of FY 2024-25 of the Company are as follows:-
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Agro Healthcare Infra Power Distillery LPG E10 Bottling
19,758.24 6382.55 35887.86 44404 30 5389.87 5243.56 S799.20 10468.37

* Consolidation iz w.e.f. September, 2024

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS:
There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company during the period under review.
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6. SHARE CAPITAL:

As at March, 31, 2025, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company was Rs_ 44,75 00,000/-. The Company's paid-up
Share Capital continues to stand at Rs. 27,9858 950/~ divided info 2,79,85 895 Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/
each. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares or converfible securiies.

7. DIVIDEND:
In order to conserve the resources for future growth of the Company, your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the
YEAr under review.

8. TRANSFERTORESERVES:
The Company has not transfermed any amount to the Reserves for the financial yearended 3 1st March, 2025.

3. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS :

The details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provision of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements
provided in this Annual Report.

10. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS ORARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES :

Al confracts or arrangements entered into by the Company with its related parties during the financial year 2024-25 were
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligafions and Disclosure Reguirements ) Regulations, 2015. All such contracts or amangements were on arm's length
basis and in the ordinary course of business. and have been approved by the Audit Commities. No matenal contracts or
arrangements with related parties were entered into during the year under review. Detaills thereof in the prescribed Form
ADC-2 is appended as "ANNEXURE-B” to the Board's report, in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

11. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OuUTGO.

With respect to Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption required under the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, a separate statement of Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Eamings and Outgo is appended as "ANNEXURE-C™ to the Board's report.

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

a) Director's Retiring by Rofation:-

In accordance with the provisions of Sechon 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules, 2014 and Aricles of Association of the Company, Mr. Jaykumar Varma (DiN: 00489732}, will retire
by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeling and being eligible, has offered himseif for re-appointment.

The Board recommends the re-appointment of aforesaid Director.

b) Appointment/Re-appointments of Directors:-

Duiring the year under review, there is no change in Board of Directors.

c) Resignation of Directors [ Key Managerial Personnel:

Dwring the year under review, the below Key Managerial Personnel's has been resigned from the Board of Direclors:

i} Mr.SunestPande, Chief Execufive Officer has resigned with effect from 27.06.2024;
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d) Independent Directors:

The Company's Independent Direciors have submitied requisite declarations confirming that they continue o meet the
criteria of independence as prescribed under Sechon 143{6) of the Act and Regulafion 16(1 ){b) of the Listing Regulations.
The independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with Schedule IV of the Act and the Company’s
Code of Conduct. Thers has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of the
Company.

o) Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to the Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions and rnules of the Companies Act, 2013, the following
existing executives of the Company were designated as the Key Managerial Personne! of the Company by the Board in
term of 2{51 ) of the Companies Act2013.

Mr. Nikhil Gadkari, Managing Director
Mrs. Madhubala Dave, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
Mr. Nakul Bhal, Chief Financial Officer

13. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

In terms of the provisions of Reg. 34 of the SEBI {LODR) Regulations 2015, the Management's discussion and analysis is
sefout in this Annual Report iz appended as “Annexure - D) to the Board's reporl.

14. EVALUATION OF BOARD'S PERFORMANCE:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Reguirementz) Regulations, 2015; the Board has carried out Annual Performance Evaiuation of its own performance, the
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its various Committees.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from: all the Directors on the basis of the
criteria such as the Board Composition and Structure, Effectiveness of Board Processes, Information and Functioning,
etc. The performance of the commitiees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the commitiee members on
the basis of the criferia such as the Composition of Committees, Effectiveness of Commitiee Meefings, eic.

The Board in consuttation with the Nomination and Remuneration Commities reviewed the performance of the Indvidual
Direciors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribufion of the Individital Director to the Board and Commitiee
Meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive confribution and inputs in
meetings, efc. In-addifion, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. In a separate meeting of
Independent Direclors, perfformance of Mon-Independent Directors, perffiormance of the Board 33 a whole and
periommance of the Chairman was evaluated, faking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors. The same was discussed in the Board Meeting that followed the Meeting of the Independent Direciors, at which
the periormance of the Board, its Committees and Individual Directors was also discussed. Performance evaluabion of
Independent Directors was done by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated.

15. DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Direclors’ Responsibility Statement refemed to in clause (c) of sub-secion (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act,

2013, shall siate that-

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with propar
explanation relating to materal departures;
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The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the
end of the financial year and of the profitof the company for that period;

The directors had taken properand sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate sccounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraed and
otherimegularties;

The direciors had prepared the annual accounis an a going concem basis and;

The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
confrols are adequate and were cperating effectively;

The directors had devised proper systems io ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively;

16. BOARD MEETINGS :

The Board meets at regular infervals to discuss and decide on Company/ Business policy and strategy apart from other
Board buziness. During the year under review, 11 (Eleven) Board Megtings were heid and the intervening gap between the
meelings did not exceed the period prescribed under the Act, the details of which are given in the Corporate Govemance
Report, which forms an integral part of this report.

The notice of Board/Committee meeting is given well in advance to all the Direciors. Usually, meetings of the Board are
heid in Nagpur. The Agenda of the Board/Committee Meetings i= set by the Company Secretary in consultation with the
Chairman, the Managing Director of the Company.

17. MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMIMTMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE

FINANCIAL YEAR & DATE OF REPORT :

ClAN has parficipated in the Resolution Plan of Swapnil Promoters and Developers Pyt Lid on O7th March, 2024
under section 30(6) read with Seclion 31 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 o the National Company Law
Tribunal (MCLT) Mumbai, which was later approved on 12th July, 2024 by the Hon'ble NCLT Mumbai Bench. The
company is in compliance stage for the requirement stated under the Order of NCLT and implementation of Resolufion
Plan.

The company has imeested in Equity share of Manas Power Ventures Private Limited {“"MPVPL") resulfing to 5.5% of
the shareholding on 24th June, 2024. Further, with effect from 10th September, 2024 Manas Power Ventures Private
Limited has become Whaolly Owned Subsidiary Company with 100% holding pursuant to the approval of Buyback by
the said company. The company through s Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company is engaged in the business of
generation, sccumutation, distribution and supply of thermal Energy, Power Generation.

The Company has also invesied in the Debentures (Oplionally Convertible Debenture) of MPVPL through
Drebentures Purchase Agreement with the existing debenture holder on 06ih August, 2024 and on 08th August, 2025
the said entity has converied the OCD to equity.

Manas Power Ventures Private Limited (hereafter shall be refermred az “MPVPL”) is a Holding Companmy of M/s_ Ideal
Energy Projects imited (hereafter shall be refemed as “IDEALY camying its business through IDEAL which has
become a Wholly Owned Step-Down Subsidiany of CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited.

Mi=. Ideal Energy Projects imited (IDEAL) Company Incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 on 03/04/2008. The
company is engaged in the generation and distribufion of elecinicity. The company has set up a 1 X 270 MW Coal based
power project near Village Bela, Tehsil Umred, District Nagpur. The revenue of operabion of the Company for the financial
year 25is Rs T8516.61 lakh and profit of Bs. 15082 .44 |akh.
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v. The company has invested in Equity shares of Avenzer Electricals & Infrastructure Pyt Lid (“Avenzer”) resulting to
1.065% of the shareholding on 24th Acvgust, 2024, Further, with effect from 24th September, 2024 the Avenzer
Electricals & Infrastructure Put Ltd has become Whaolly Owned Subsidiary Company with 100% holding pursuant to
the approval of Buyback by the said company. The Avenzer is engaged in the business of drip imgation, Infrastructune
and through its subsidiary having 20.29% hclding is engaged in business of power Generation, Sugar manufactuning
and distillery business etc.

vi. Avenzer Electricals & Infrastructure Pyt Lid ("Avenzer™) has Subsidiary company, M/s. Manas Agro Indusiries &
Infrastructure Limited ("MAIIL") with 90.29% holding. Pursuant to which, M/s. Manas Agro Industries & Infrastructure
Limited MAIIL has become Step-Down Subsidiary of CIAN Agro Indusires & Infrastructure Limited.

M/s. Manas Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Limited ("MAIIL") Company Incorporated under Companies Act, 1956 on
06/9/2012. Step-down Subsidiary (“"Step-down Subsidiary™). The company is engaged in Manufaciuring of Sugar,
Power Generafion, Distiflery, Ethanol Production, Trading of E-10 and LPG efc. The revenue of operation of the
Company for the financial year' 251s Rs. 91362 60 Lakhs and profit of Rs. 52736 Lakhs.

vil. ClAN has participated in the process of Insolvency and Bankruptcy of Shubhada Tool Industries Private Limited with
the intension to expand its Industrial Infrastructure business on 18th March, 2025. Further, CIAN has submitied the
Resolufion Plan on 11th June, 2025 under sechon 30{E) read with Secfion 31 of Insolvency and Bankrupicy Code,
2016 to Resolution Professional forthe approval of CoC and MCLT respectively.

There are no other material changes & commitments affects the financial posttion of the company during the year and
on the date of this report.

18. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDER PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There has been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulatorsd Couris! Tribunats which would impact the
going concems status of the Company and iis future operafions.

19. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY"

Internal Financial Control of the Company has been designed fo provide reasonable assurance with regard to recording
and providing reliable Financial and operational information, complying with applicable Accounting Standards. Compamy
penodically conducts physical verification of inventory, fixed Assets, and cash on hand and matches them with the Books
of Accounts. Explanations are sought for any variances noficed from the respective functional heads.

The Company’s internat control systems with reference to the financial siatements are adequate and commensurate with
the nature of its business and the size and complexity of its oparafions and ensure that all its assets are safeguarded and
prolected against losses.

Pursuant io the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
Board of Directors of the Company, appointed M/s Deeparani Varma, Chartered Accountants, as the Infemal Auditor of the
Company for FY 2024-2025 to conducts the sudit on regular basis, the checks & controls to prevent, detect and comect any
imegulanties in the operations have been laid down by the Company. The Internal Auditor directly reports to the Audit
Commitiee for functions! matters. The findings of the Inlemal Auditor are discussed on an on-going basis in the meelings of
the Audit Commifiee and various steps have been taken fo implement the suggestons of the said Intemal Audiior. The
Company undertakes corrective action in the respective areas and strengthens the levels of Internal Financial and other
operational controds. The Audit Committee in its quarterly meelings periodically reviews the intemal audit and conirols
reporis.

20. COMMITTEES

The Company has tolal Four Commitiees namely Audil Committee, Stakeholders Relationship cum Share fransfer
Commifiee, Momination and Remuneration Commitiee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The details of
which are given in the Corporate Govemnance Repaort, which forms an integral part of this reporl
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21. REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :

Your Company is commitied to achieve the highest standards of Corporate Governance. Pursuant to Regulstion 34(3)
read with Schedule V of Listing Regulations, Report on Corporate Govemance have been made a part of the Annual
Report - Annexure - E

Auditor's Certificate regarding compliance with conditions of Corporate Govermnance are attached aiong with this report

22. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES & REMUNERATION :

Pursuant to provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, defaiis of remuneration paid o all the DireclorsiEmployees and the
details of the rafio of remueneration of each Director to the median employes's remuneration is provided in "Annexurs F.

Further, the information as required as per the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)
and Rule 5{3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is appended to
this report as “Annexure 7.

23. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY :

¥our Company has been implemented Enterprises Resource Planning (ERFP) System in all plants, depots, and head office
of the Company enabling alignment of strategies and operations, betler supply chain control &t operational fevel and
access o consolidated data of the Company through integrated sysiem.

24. HUMAN RESOURCES:

Engaged Employees are crfical fo the success of your Company. The confinuing strong momentum in the Company
driven by solid growth and Innovation has hefped {o achieve this level. Your Company will continue to ensure that we have
a highly engapged and produciive organization fo deliver againstour vision of being amongst the best Companies in Central
India.

25. OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
{PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013 :

The Company has established a comprehensive policy for the Prevention and Redressal of Sexual Harassment under the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 ("POSH Act”) and Rules
framed thereunder.

The Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) for Redressal of the complaints received regarding
sexual harassment at workplace. All employess, including frainees are covered under this policy. The commitiees operate
with transparency. impartiality, and adherence to clear timefines, ensuring a fairand unbiased investigation process.

During the year under review, no compiainis were received or disposed off during the year under the stated Act and no
complaints were pending either atthe beginning orat the end of the year.

26. ANNUAL RETURMN :

The Annual Retum of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 is avaidable on the website of the Company at
www.clanindusines com.

ZT. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES :

The Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism for Directors and employees of the Company to provide adeguate
safeqguards against vicimization of persons who use such mechanism and o report genuine concems about unethical
behavior, actual or suspecied fraud or violabion of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy in terms of provisions of
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Section 177{9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under and pursuant to Clause 22 of SEB! (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. The said policy is available on Company’s websile Le.
www.cianindusires.com

We affirm that during the financial vear 2024-25, no employes or director or any other person was denied access to the
Audit Commities.

28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY AND REPORT :

The Company recognizes that nisk is an integral part of business and is committed to managing the risks in a proactive and
efficient manner. The Company periodically assesses risks in the intemal and external environment, along with the cost of
treating risks and incorporates risk treatment plans in its strategy, business and operational pians. The Company throwgh
itz risk management process sinves to contain impact and likefihood of the risks within the risk appefite as agreed from
time to fime with the Board of Direciors.

The Committee reports to the Board of Directors of the Company. Al plants / units level, Intermal Committees have been
formed, headed by plants / units heads of respective plants / units and funclional departimental heads. Such Committees
repori to the Risk Management Commitiee from time to ime. The Board of Directors has developed and implemented Risk
Management Policy for the Company. There are no risks which in the opinion of the Board threaten the existence of the
Company. However, some of the risks which may pose challenges are set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis
Repodt, which forms part of this report

29. AUDIT & AUDITOR REPORT :

a) Statutory Audit:-

Mis. P.G. Joshi & Company, Chartered Accountants, Magpur (FRN: 1044 16W) were appointed with your approval as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years in the 34th Annual General Meeting ('AGM’ ) of the Company held
in the year 2021 to hold office from the conclusion of 34t AGM fill the concusion of 39th AGM.

Members are informed that the provision refsting to rafification of appointment of the Auditors as per Companies
(Amendment) Act, 2017 which was nofified on 7th May, 2018 has been obliteraled. As such, no requirement of
ratification/confirmation shall henceforth be necessary for the appointment of the Auditors for their remainder period of
appointment Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the
ensuing AGM.

The Auditors have issved an unmodified opinion on the Financial Stalemeants, both standalone and consolidaled for the
financial year ended 315t March, 2025. The said Auditors’ Report(s) for the financial year ended 315t March, 2025 forms
part of this Annual Report does not contain any qualification, resenvation, adverse remark or disciaimer. The observalions
made in the Auditor's Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

b) CostAudit:-

The Company is required to maintain the cost records as specified by the Central Government under Secfion 148 (1) of the
Companies Act 2013 and accordingly such accounts and records are made and maintained by the Company. An Audit of
the CostAccounts maintained by the Company is also conducied by a Cost Auditor appointed by the Company.

The Board of Director on recommendation of the Audit Committes approved remuneration of Rs. 60,000/ (Rupees Sty
Thousand orly) including out-of-pocket expenses and GST as applicable subject to the ratification of the said fees by the
shareholders at the ensuing 37th Annual General Masting.

A resolution regarding ratification of remuneration payable to Mrs. Jyolsna Rajpal, Practicing Cost Accountants, Nagpur
forms part of the Molice convening the 38th Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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c) Secretarial Audit:

The Board of Direclors of the Company has appointed Mr. Kaustubh Moghe, Praciicing Company Secretary (Cerificate of
Praciice No. 12486), as the Secretanal Auditor o conduct an audi of the secretanal records for the financial year 2024-25.
The Company has received consent from Mr. Kaustubh Moghe to act as the Secretarial Auditor for conducting audit of the
secretarial records for the financial year ending 315t March, 2025,

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 under the Act, read with Rules

made thereunder and Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, is set outin the "Annexure-H™ to fhis report.

Reply to the Observations made in the Secretarial Auditor's Report:

1. asperlisfing Regulations 19; Annual listing fees for FY 2024-25 was not paid in due period,

2. asperLisfing Regutation 31(2); 100% ofthe shareholding of promoters and promoder groups is not in dematerialized
form

3. onee-forminrespect of charge creation was filed with the Registrar of Companies with additional fees.

The management of the company has taken all the necessary steps and aclions to do proper and timely compliances. It
assures in do timely compliance in future under various applicable acts & requiations.

30. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPOSIBILITY :

ClAaN understands fis responsibility towards the society in which it operates and is initiating small but significant sieps in
bringing posifive changes in the environment for susiainable development taking inko the consideration the interest of
various siakeholders. With the rapidly changing eorporate environment, mone functional autonomy, operational freedom
elc., CIAN has adopted CSR policy as a sirategic ool for sustainable growth. For Company in the present context, CER
palicy adopied is not just tool of investment of funds for Social Activity but also efforts to integrate Business processes with
Social processes.

The CSR Committes of our Board provides oversight of CSR Policy and monitors execution of various activities to mest
the set of CSR objectives.:

The Members of the CSR Committee are:

1. Mr=. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan- Independent Director {Chairman of this commities

Z. Mr. Atul Vijay Mandlekar- Independent Director

3. Mir. Ravindra Boratkar - Non-Executive Direclor

4_Mr. Ramesh Himie - Independent Director

The Company has consfituted CSR Committee and CSR Policy is duly adopted by the Company as per the regulatory
norms. ClAM considers social responsibility as an integral part of its business activities and endeavors to ulilize allocable
CSR budgst for the benefit of society.

We believe that society is an important pillar which supports business activities and creates the canvas of opportunities.
C5R iniiatives are on the focus areas approved by the Board benefitting the community.

Dunng the yearunder review, CIAN has coninbuted in Promoting art and culture in Thane, Mumbai.

During the year under review, the Company has spenton the CSR activities prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 As
per the Companies Act, 2013

The Company's annual report on the CSR activifies undertaken during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, in
accordance with Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibiity Policy) Rules, 2014
{inciuding any statutory modification{s) or re-enactment({s) for the fime being in force ) is setout in Annesure | o this report.
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31. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 {31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

During the year under review, Company has not made any application under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016
{31 0F 201B6).

32. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF ONE-TIME
SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

The requirement to disclose the detzils of difference betwesen amount of the valuation done ai the time of onetime
setflement and the valuaiion done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof
= not appliicable.

33. MATERNITY BENEFIT

The Company iz in compliance with the provisions of Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and no complaint has been received by
the Company from any of the employee in this regard during the year under review.

34. OTHERDISCLOSURES:

a) Durng the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of Sections 73, 74 and
76 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceplance of Deposils) Rules, 2014 (Including any
Statutory Modification(s) or re- enactment({s) thereof for the fime beingin force);

b} The Company has complied with Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS1)
on Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meelings;

c) The Managing Director of the Company has not received any remuneration or commission from any of subsidianes of
the Company as specified under section 197{14) of the Companses Act, 2013;

d) Mone of the Auditors of the Company have reported any fraud a5 specified under the second proviso of seciion
143{12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (incleding any siatutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s ) thereof for the time
being inforce. ),

e} Durng Financial yearunder review, there hasbeen no revision of financial statement in the refevant financial year

fi The Company does not have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of s own shares by
employees/Directors or trusiee for the benefit employees! Directors; and

g} The Company has notissued Equity Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

35. APPRECIATION & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT :

Your Direclors would fike to place on record their gratitude for all the support and co-operation received from iis
shareholders, customers, suppliers as well as vendors, banks, business associates and other govemnmment and reguiatory
agencies. Your Directors would also like fo take this opportunity to express their appreciation for the hard work, solidarity,
co-operation and dedicated efforts putin by the employees and look forward to their continued contribution and support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Jaykumar Yarma
Place: Nagpur Chairperson
Date: 02™ Seplember 2025 DIN: 00489792
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(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidianes/associate companiesfoint ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries

Sr.No. 1 ¥ 3 4 5 6
Name of the Subsidiary Cian Agro Warran Manas Avenzer Ideal Enargy | Manas Agro
Lirmited — LLC | Aduminlumm Powear Electricals & | Projacts Ltd | industries and
(VyHally Private Veriures Infrastructure | (Step Down | Infrastructure
Crwinad Lirmited Privata Privals Whaolly Limitad (Stap
Subsidiary} {Whaily Limitad Limited Owned Diown
Crwned {Whatly {Whally Subsidiary) | Subsidiary)
Subsidiary) Qwned Cwmned
Subsgidiary) | Subsiglary)
Date since when 13-DB-2020 17-08-2024 10-08-2024 | 24-08-2024 10-08-2024 | 24-09-2024
Subsidiary was
acquirediincorporated
Flnancial Yaar anding 31-03-2025 31-03-2025 31-03-2025 | 31-03-2025 3-03-2025 | 31-03-2025
an
Reporting Currency Russian INR INR INR INR INR
Rubels
Exchange Rate on the 1 Rub= MA MA MA MA A
last day of the financial 1.0292 INR =
year
Share Capital 20,000 2T BT41.700 | 5180 324130 BG,67.00.000 | 3.26,01.450
Reserves & Surplus (In (50.78) 6.675.56 B363.20 1BEE 80 142 60613 | &7.769.08
Lakhs)
Total Assets {In Lakhs) 30.15 1257249 11,543.48 386262 18234644 | 1,00,597.26
Tolal Equity &Liabilities | 30,18 12,672.48 11,543.48 |52 62 18234644 | 1,80,597 2B
{In Lakhs)
Investmants (excluding | - P B RELE | 117638 43R TR
Investmeants made in
subsidiaries) {In Lakhs)
Tumover {In Lakhs) - 165.00 - - TRA1E 61 9136260
ProfiviLoss) bafora tax (13.77) {1,060) (66.33) {147.70) 16,040 60 354 .81
{In Lakhs)
Provision for tax (In - - 558.16 (172.54)
Lakhs)
ProfitiLoss) after tax {In. | (13.77) (1,060} (66.33) {#47.70) 1508244 527,36
Lakhs)
Froposed Dividend - - -
% of shareholding 100% 100% 100% 100%: 100% o0, 29%

*hitpswww exchangerates. org UK'RUB-INR-31_03_2025-exchange-rate-history.himl
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Statement purssant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint

Ventures
Sr. Mo, ML
Mame of Associales/Joint Venluras M.A,
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NLA,
2. Bhares of Associales /Joint Venlures held by the company on the year end M.A,
Mo. MLA,
Amount of Investmeant in Associates! Joint Ventures M.A,
Extend of Holding % A
3. Description of how there is significant influence M.A,
4. Reason why the associateljoint venture is not consolidated LA,
5. Mel worth attributable to Shareholding as per fatest audited Balance Sheet M.A,
8. Profit/{Loss) for the year NA.
Mikhil Gadkari Jaykumar Varma Nakul BEhat Madhubala Dave
Managing Director Director CFO Company Secretary
DiIM: 00234754 DiIN: 00489792 PANBGSPBE3TIN Mem. No. F12218
25
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Annexure - C
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

(Information as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule §(3) of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Resource efficiency forms an integral part of our environmental strategy. Through our continuous efforts, we strive fo meet
the needs of our customers. In doing =0, we optimize our resource management approach o efficiently uliize Aw
materialz and minimize material wasie. To ensure the availability ol raw materialzs required for our business operations, we
make optimum use of our resources and adopl ways o reuse and reinfroduce excess matenal in our production process
without compromising the quality of our products and solutions.:

a) Conservationof Energy: -

Your Company operates in a safe and emnwvironmentally responsible manner for the long-term benefit of all

stakeholders. Company ensures that the manufacturing operations are conducted in the manner whereby optimum

utilization and maximum possible savings of energy is achieved.

The Company works towards minimizing the impact of its operations on the environment and is committed to take

effective measures o conserve energy, promote the use of renewable energy and drive energy efficiency in its

operations. During the year under review, several steps were taken for conservation of energy, some of which are

listed below:

. Reuse of Trealed effluenl

. Re-circulafion of cooling tower water.

. Usze of enemgy efficient CFL and LED lamps in all plants.

. Thermal energy (steam) was purchased from other power generation units at lower cost thereby reducing
usaqge of coal o some extent in its own boilers & helped in reducing carbon foot prink

. Process improvements to enhance productivity and reduce specific energy consumption across Businesses.
Your Company is putting all the efforts o increzse the share of Renewable Enengy.

b) Technology Absorption: -

* The Company is continuously focusing on upgrading its products and manufacturing technology as well as
acquinng new and advanced technology to meet the emerging expectations of the customers. The activities
are in full consonance with the Company’s objective of ufilizing the most advanced energy efficient solutions at
minimum cost

. The Company has camied out R&D work for developing new products and for improvement in the guality of the
exisiing products of the company.

. The confinuous improvement through R&D activilies in the process to manufacture different products has
helped the Company tolaunch iis new products and expand its market.

. Expenditure incurred on research and development are charged under primary heads of acoounis: and not
allocated separately.

* New process-and product technologies on personal hygiene, skin care are developed through in-house
Research & Development in the Personal Came Products of the company.

- The Company has tried to make maximum ufiifsation of waste/ byproducts for the purpose of conservation of
natural resources and costreducton.

c) Foreign Exchange Eamings and Qutgo: -
Forthe Year F.Y. 2024-25 F.Y.20Z3-24
Foreign Exchange outgo MNIL MNIL
Foreign Exchange eamed 4 3698 881.00 2562 54500
Place : Nagpur
Date : 02™ Sepiember, 2025 For and on behalf of board
Jaykumar Varma
Chairperson
DIN- 04859702
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Annexure D

Management Discussion & Analysis Report

Indias economy grew by 6.5% in FY 2024-25, supported by robust domestic demand, investment momentum, and
resilient services. The economy ended the fiscal year strongly, with 04 growth at 7 4%, and entered FY 2025-26 ona firm
note- with 01 growth of 7.8%. Global GDF growth in 2024 was recorded at approximately 3.3% While indicating continued
expansion, this figure remained below the 3.6% average growth rate observed between 2000and 2019. Growth patterns
wemne notably de-synchromised, with developed economies generally expenencing @ more pronounced showdown
compared tomany developing nalions, particulary in Eastand South Asia.

Looking ahead, forecasts for FY 2025-26 remain in the range of 6.3% to 6.8%, reflecting broad consensus among
government, IMF, and rating agencies. Risks inciude global tade uncerainties, LS. tanil actions, and domestc
inflationary pressures.

Indian cconomy

According ip the Ministry of Stafisics and Programme Implementation (MoSPl), India’s real GOP grew 6.5% in FY
2024-25, while nominal GOP rose 3. 8%. The economy crossed USD 3.9 triflion in size. Growth was supporied by private

final consumption expenditure (+72%) and gross foeed capital formation (+7.1%). Sectorally, agriculture expanded by
4.4%, construction by 9.4%, and services remained strong.

In Q4 FY 2024--25, GDP growth accelerated to 7.4%, with nominal GDP vp 10.8%. This marked the highest quarierty
performance of the year, highlighting resilience despite global headwinds.

Forecasts for FY 2025-26 are moderately optimistic. The Govemment's Chief Economic Adviser projects growth betwesn
6.3% and 6.8%. Fiich Ralings expecis §.5%, while the IMF forecasts 6.4%. Goldman Sachs has slightly fimmed its
projection to 6.4 %, while BMI (Fitch Solutions}] anticipates slower growth at 5.8%, citing risks from U.S._ tariffs.

Consensus expectations therefore place India’s growth close to 6.5%, though perdformance in Q1 FY 2025-26 (7-8%)
suggests the potential forupside if domestic momentum holds.

India recorded stmong GDP growth of 7.8% in Q1 FY 2025-26 (Apr-Jun 2025), driven by private consumption, capital
expenditurs, and robust services mdﬂmﬁﬂg%sﬁmsﬁimﬂﬂd&sam&ramm external nsks, although
susiaining such momentum will depend on rural demand recoVery, monsoon performmance, and global conditions.

Qutiook

The global economic namative for 2025 s one of careful navigation through a landscape characterised by both resiience
and emerging vulnerabilities. We have seen a period of steady, albeit subdued, growth, but the undertying dynamics are
shifting. Policy adjustments worldwide and a resurgence of uncerainty are reshaping the termain.

Az Fiscal Year 2026 begins, the Indian economy 15 at a critical juncture - Having demonsirated notable resilience in the
previous year, it now faces a globat land=cape marked by uncerizinty, with both opporiunities and challenges shaping it=
trajectory. Several domestic factors are expecied to underpin this growih. Governmeni-led infrastructure development
and job creation efforts, a strengthening of the manufacturing sector and the confinued momentum in services and
agriculture are key contributors.

Conclusion

India continues in maintain its position as the fastest-growing major economy, with growth of 6.5% in FY 2024 -25and a
projected 6.3-6.8% in FY 2025-26. The stnuchural drivers—demographics, domesfic demand, and digitafisation-—remain
intact However, vigilance is required against risks arising from giobal trade disruptions, commodity price volatifity, and
geopolitical tensions.
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Ireferences

MoSP1 Nalional Accounts Press Release, May 2025

Press Information Bureau (PIB), Government of India

Economic Survey 2024-25

IMF World Economic Outiook 2025

Fitch Ratings and BMI (Filch Solufions) Reporis

Delpitie India Economic Outlook 2025

Goldman Sachs India Growth Forecasts

Reuters, Times of India, Economic Times (Q1 FY 2025-26 GDP coverage)

e S U

*  Industry struciure and developments.
A) FMCG Sector —

The Fast-moving consumer goods (FMCG) include products that are sold quickly and at relatively low cost, such as
packaged food, beverages, personal care, housshold items, and over-the-counter medicines. These goods are in
constant demand, and the industry plays a crucial role in India’s consumption-driven economy.

FMCG is the fourth-largest secior in the indian economy, employing over 3 million peopie, which is about 5% of total factory
employment. But now, rural areas are showing stronger purchasing patterns due o increased incomes, belier road
connectivity, and improved access to goods. Also, In FY 2024-25, over 70% of online grocery orders came through Quick
commerce refers to ultra-fast defivery platforms (like Zepto, Blinkit, Swiggy Instamart) that defiver groceries and FMCG
products within minutes. This model works well in urban centers with highinternet penetration and smariphone use.

India’s food processing indusiry is rapidly growing. [tmakes up a significant portion of FMCG and is expecied fo touch 340
lakh crore (~US$470 billion) by 2028 Programs like the Prime Minister Dhan-Dhanya Krishi Yojana target low-yisid
disiricts to improve famm produciivity. Further, increased Kisan Credit Gard limit (from 23 lakh to 5 lakh) gives farmers
more credit tospend, which can transtate intomore FMCG consumption.

Major fax cuts were infroduced for FMCG items. GST on producis like shampoo, ioothpaste, talcum powder, etc., was
slashed from 18% to 5% Owver 30 Farmer Producer Organizalions (FPOs) started exporfing FMCG-refated agri-producis
like processed fruils, spices, and grains.

As of 2023, India’s FMGG market was valued at approximately US$167 billion. It's expected to reach upto US$616 hillion
by 2027, growing at a compournd annual growth rate (CAGR) of Z7 9%. Another projection pegs it growing from
US$110 billion in 2020 to about US$220 billion by 2025, at 2 CAGR of roughly 14.9%. Within FMCG, the food and
beverage segmeni—a key contributor-—accounts for around 3% of India’s GDP

B) Agroindustry-

The Indian agro industry saw significant transformation in FY 202425, supporied by rapid technological adopfion, poficy
reforms, and increased public-private investment. These developments aimed to enhance productivity, sustainahbility, and
market access for farmers while boosfing the sgro-processing sector.

Several agritech startups received govemment support and venture capital funding, offering platforms for real-ime
weather updates, soil analytics, online marketplaces, and digital lending. Expansion of Digital Public Infrastructure for
Agriculture (DPI-A) under the government's India Digital Ecosystem of Agriculture {IDEA) initiative provided a unified
platform for farmers fo access dala, advisory services, and credit

The govemment introduced and expanded mulfiple schemes bo address productivity, susiainability, and market
linkagessuch as PM-Kisan Samman Nidhi, Mational Mission on Matural Faming (NMNF), Agri-infra Fund (AIF), PM
Formalization of Micro Food Processing Enterprises (PM-FME), Minimum Suppart Price (MSP) reforms, Promotion of
Millets {Shree Anna), e-NAM Infegration, etc.
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india retained its position as a top exporter of rice, spices, tea, and marine products, with total agri-exports surpassing $55
billion in FY 2024--25 The government facilitated new trade agreements and improved tracesbiity and quality certification
o boost access o high-value giobal markets. Special emphasis was placed on organic and Gl-tagged products for export
promobon.

According to the Economic Survey 202425, the agricutture and allied activities secior coniributes approximately 16% of
India’s GOP at current prices. For FY 202425, agriculture showed a strong growth of sbout 3.8%, supporied by favorable
mionsoon and record Khantf outpul.

According to Statista (2024 dziz), the global agnculture share of GOF was about 4 02%. The World Bankdata confirms that
in 2024 the agrculure, forestry, and fishing secior contributed approximatedy 4.0209% of global GODP.Long-term data
shows that agriculture’s share globally has hovered around 4% over the past two decades. The average share of
agriculture in GDP across all countries (20:23) was around 9.8%-9.9%, with large varniation across nations.

C) Aluminium Sector—

Aluminium is the second-most used metal giobally afier steel, known for = lightweight, comosion resistance, high
conductivity, and recyclabdity. It is a critical input for sectors like Aerospace, Automotive (especially Evs), Construciion,
Packaging, Consumer electronics, Renewabte energy (solar panels, wind furbines).

Indian aluminium demand grew ~10% in FY 2024 -25 Global demand growing ~3-5% annually. There is rise in value-
added product exports {rolled, extruded, anodized aluminium). India has aim o shift toward green aluminium production
using renewable energy.Aluminium smelting is energy-intensive; hence, decarbonization is a priority.Projects like Rio
Tinto's low-carbon aluminium smekter in India are key milestones. India pushing solar and hydropower integration in
smeiting planis.

India imposed anti-dumping duties on aluminium foll from China, Taiwan, Russia. BIS (Bureau of Indian Standards) now
requires mandatory quality certifications Aluminium Association of India seeks increased import duties and scrap policy
reform.

Qutlook:

India aims to double sluminium consumplion to~10 millicn tonnes by 2030.Lange investments from Vedanta {128 lakh
crore) and MALCO (30,000 crore) highlight long-term confidence-Global demand is expected to stay robust, driven by
energy transition, EV growth, and infrasiructhure projects.

Business performancs

During the Financial year 2024-25 under review, revenue from Agro Division of the Company is Rs. 21,085.06 Lakhs as
compared to previous financial year of Rs. 15045990 akhs.

During financial Year 2024-25 under review, Revenue from operation of Health & Personal care division of the Company
boostto Rs.651 83 Lakhs as compared fo previous year of financial yearof Rs. 253.73 Lakhs.

K]
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Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 E:p:“n:l:lb:n m’:;wﬁl;m

Current Ratio 0.66% 1.05% | The change in the ratio is due fo regrouping of
certain balances duning the year in accordance
with revised classification principles & increase
in advances received from customers, which
has been accounted for under current fiabifities

Debt Equity Ratio 1.53% 1.20% Additional bormowing caused the change in

rafio

Debl Service Coverage Ratio 1.47% 0.38% | Additionsl bomowing caused the change in

Net Profit Ratio (%) 0.37% 2.87% The change in the rafio is due io increased
profit after tax due o gain on fair valuation of
Loan.

Return on Equity Ratio (%) 1.04% 5.49% The change in the rafio is due to increased
profit afier fax due to gain on f&ir valuation of
Loan

Return on Capital T% 1% The change is due to ncrease in Eamings

employed (%) hefore interest and tax.

Return on Investment (%) T% ™ | -

Trade Receivables turmover T.67% 4.04% | The change is due to increase in trade

rabio receivables during the year.

Inventory turnover rabio 1.56% 0.53% The change is due to increase in sales during
the year.

Trade payables tumover ratio 23% 1.63% The change i= due to a significant increase in
the purchase of materniats consumed.

Net capital turnover ratio {1.92) % 10.65%: The change is due to increase in current
Tiabilities.

E)} Audit and internal Confrols -

CIAN has well-established processes and ciearly-defined roles and responsibilities for people at various levels. This,
coupled with adeguate intemal informabion systems embedded in business aulomation software, ensures proper
information flow for the decision-making process. Adherence to these processes is ensured through frequent internal
audits. The Executive Committees monitors business operations through regular reviews of perfformance vis-a-vis
budgets_ An extensive program of internal audit conducted by the intermal audit team, reviewed by the Audit Committee,
and requisite guidelines and procedures augment the intemal controls. The intermnal control system is designed to ensune
that financial and other records are refiabie for preparing financial statements and other information. These procedures
ensure that all transachions are properly reported and classined in the financial records.

F) Risk Management -

The Company has a well-defined process in place to ensure appropriate ideniification and treatment of risks. Risk
identification exercise is inter-woven with the annual planning cycle which ensures both regulanty and
comprehensiveness. The identification of rizk i done at strategic, business, operationat and process levels. While the
mitigation plan and actions for risks belonging fo- strategic, business and key crtical operational risks driven by senior
CI1AN leadership, for rest of the nsks, operating managers dnve the conception and subsequent acioning of mitigation
plans.
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The key strategic, business and operational risks which are significant in terms of their impact to the overall objectives of
the Company along with status of mitigation plans are penodically presented and discussed in the Board Meetings. The
Company, through its nsk management process, aims o contain the risks within ts appetite. There are no nsks which m
opinion of the Board threaten the operations and exisience of the Company.

G) Human Assets-

The Gompany confinued to make significant progress on sirengthening HR Processes and Practices to build organization
for curent as well as future sustainability during the year. The Company focuses on providing individual development and
growth in a professional work culture that ensures high perfformance. The Company has concentrated on enhancing
capability of employees that uitimatefy hefps achieving betier standards of operations. The Company Organizes vanous
Seminars for the upgradation of Employees working skills and management of workload.

H) Forward Looking Statement-

Cautionary Statement Forward-looking statements in the ‘Management Discussion and Analysis” secfion are based on
certain assumptions/ expectations of future events and are stated as required by applicable laws and requiations. Actual
results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. Major factors that could make the difference to the
Company’s operations could be agro-ciimatic conditions, government policy, domestc & intermational market conditions
and such other factors, which are beyond contnod of the management

For and on behailf of the Board

Jaykumar Varma
Place : Nagpur Chairperson
Date : 02* Seplember, 2025 DIN: 00489792
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ANNEXURE E
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
{Pursuant to Reg. 34 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015)

1. Company's Philosophy on Code of Governance:

The vision and mission statement of the Company is o be a world class Agm Indusiry. Sound Corporate Governance is
critical for enhancing and retaining imvestor trust. Your corporation believes that Corporate Govemnance is a key elementin
improving the economic efficiency of a firm. Good Corporate Governance also helps to ensure that organization ke into
account the interests of a wide range of constitluencies. as wel as communities. Your Company abide by fransparency and
full accountability of Management on vanous issues pertaining to the Company’s business thereby protecting the interest
of the shareholders. Your Company believes that sound ethical practices, transparency in operafions and fimely
disclosures go a long way in enhancing long-term shareholders value while safeguarding the interest of all the
stakeholders. Good governance enables the Company to operate in an ethical manner, meet business expectations and
fuifil itz social responsibilities.

#s per the requirements of Reguiation 34 read with Chapter IV and Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirements) Regulations, 201 5 (hereinafter referred as ‘Listing Regulations’), the Directors thereby present the Report
on Comporate Governance for the year ended 31st March, 2025.

2. Board of Directors :

CIAN Board has an optimum mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors in line with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and the Lisiing Regulations. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of
Professionals and Technically qualified Individuals. The Board works through its varous committees consfituted fo
owersee specific operational areas. There are four (4) committess constihred by the Board of Directors namely Aodit
Commitiee, Mominaion and Remuneraion Committee, Siakeholder's Relationship Commitlee and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee. The total strength of Boand as on March 31, 2025 s Six (6) Directors including One (1) Promoter
Directors, Two (2) non promoter [ Mon-Executive) non Independent Director and Three (3) Independent Directors inchuding
One (1) Women Director.

&) Composition: The Board of Directors of the Company as of March 31, 2025 consisted of:

Non-Executive Directors: Executive Directors
Mr. Ravindra Baratkar - Non-Promoter Director | Mr. Nikhil Gadkari — Managing Director
Mr. Jaykumar Varma - Non-FPromoter Director
Mr. Ramesh Himte- Independent Director
Mr. Atul Vijay Mandiekar - Independent Director

hrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan - Independsnt Woman
Director

b} Mestings of the Board of Directors :
The Board of Directors met 11 times during the year under review on following dates:

Wiy 101 April, 2024 i) 08% May, 2024 (i) 29" May, 2024 i) 27" June, 2024
Iv) 121 August, 2024 v} 30™ August, 2024 (vil) 05" Newember, 2024 |iviii) 14" November, 2024
Nix) 097 January, 2025 =) 13" February, 2025 f{xi) 18" March, 2025

The meetings are conducted in compliance with the provisions of Secretarial Standard-1 on “Mesfings of the Board of
Directors”, issued by the Insfitute of Company Secretaries of India (ICS1). As stipulated, the gap between two consecufive
meefings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days as the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™}and 55-1
issued by the ICSI. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.
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The Independent Directors have submitted declarations that they meet criteria of Independence kaid down under the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and the Listing Regulations and have confirmed that they do not hold directorship more
than the prescribed fimils under applicable regulations. The maximum tenure of independent direciors is in compliance
with the Act The Company has also issued formal appointment letters o all the Independent Directors in the manner
provided under the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder. None of the Independent Directors has any other material
pecuniary retationship or transaction with the Company, its Promoters, its Directors or its senior management personnel,

which would affect their Independence.

The details of BOD's atiendance at each Board Meeting and at the previous Annual General Meeting (AGM) along with the
number of Drectorships and Memberships/Chairmanships held in vanous Commitiees, in other Public companies as on

31stMarch, 2025 is given below:

* All the members of the Board of Direclors sitended the last Annual General Meefing ("AGM"}of the Company held on

30th September, 2024 through Video Conference (VC).

CAN —

Mame of the Directors Mo, of Board | Aftendance No. of Mo, of Committes Mo. of Inter se
Meetings at Last Directorships| position held in sharas/ relation
AGM ™~ in ather other Public convartible | among
Public Companies instruments| Directors
Held | Attended Companies | chairman Member | held
Wr. Mikhil Gadkari Mot
Managing Chrector 11 T fiaz o : 2 = Rakated
Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Mot
Mon- Executive Director | 11 T e 2 p 4 i Related
M. Jaykumar Varma Non- Mt
Executive Director 11 11 Veu 1 v “ o Related
Mr. Ramesh Himte Mat
Indapendent Directar 1 1 Ve o i s 9 Related
Mrs. Vrushall Pradnan- Mot
Independent Director | 11 | 11 i i " 9 4 Related
b Al Vijay Mandlekar Mt
independent Director 1 1 3 9 ¢ : g Related

NOTE:

1

Directorships held by Directors in respect of Private Limited companies, companies incorporated under Section B of

the Companies Act, 2013 and foreign companies have not been included.

Position inAudit Committee and Siakeholder’s Relationship Commities alone are considered for the purpose.

MNone of the Directors i a member of more than Ten Committess and Chairman of more than Five Committees
[as specified in Regulation 26 of Listing Regulations] across all the companies inwhich they are directors.

MNone ofthe Independent Director serves as an Independent Director in mone than seven lisied companies

[as specified in Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations).

The necessary quorum was present forall the meetings.

During the year, information as menticned in Part Aof Schedule |l of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed
before the Board for its consideration.

A= required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regutations and Secretarial Standard 2, particulars of
Directors secking appointmentire-appointment at this AGM are given in the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM.
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3. Committeos:

With an objecfive of efficient and smooth operations, the Board has constifited various Committees. These committess
are responsible to decide upon and execute various roufine matiers and such other decisions as the Board may authorize.
The draft minutes of the proceedings of each Committee mesting duly inffialed by the Chairman of the respective
Committee Meeting are circulated to the members of the respective Committee for their comments and thereafier,
confirmed by the respective Committee in its next meeting. The terms of reference of each commitiee has been approved
by the Board.

Currently the Company has the following Four {4) Committees of the Board:
il AuditCommittes

i} MNomination & Remuneration Committes

i) Stakeholder's Relationship Committes

iv) CSRCommittes

4. Audit Committeo
The Audit Committee of the Directors considers matiers generally specified in the SEBI (LODR) RegulaBions 2015 Le.
suggesting fo the Board of Directors, the accounting policies and procedures, Accounting Siandards to ba impiemented.

The Audit Committes held Four (4) meetings dunng the financial year under review on 29-05-2024, 12-08-2024, 14-11-
2024 and 13-02-2025. As stipulated, the gap between any two meetings of the committee did not exceed one hundred and
twenty days as the provisions of the Act and the necessary quorum was present for all meetings.

The composition, meelings and altendance of members of the Committes almeetings were as follows:

Mo. of Meetings |
Name of Member Status Designation
| Held | Attended
i M. Atul Vijay Mandiekar Independent Non -Executive Direcior | Chairman 4 4 |
;ﬂ::d:arunshall Jitendra Independent Non -Executive Direclor l Meamber 4 4
. Non-Independent Non -Executive IE =
.Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Director Member - . 4
Mr. Ramash Himie Indapendant Non- Executive Dirsclor Meanmbar 4 4

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee. The Chairman of the
Audit Committee was present at the previous Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Extract of Terms of Reference:

The Committes is constituted in ferms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Reguiafion 18 of Listing Reguiations
which exercizes the powers and discharges the funclions as stipulated under the applicable laws. The Committee also
underiakes and reviews such matiers as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

= Owersight offinancial reporfing process.

«  Reviewing with the management, the annual financial statements and auditors’ report thereon
before submizsion o the Board forapproval.

= Evaluation of internal financial controls and sk management systems

=  Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
Company.

=  Approve policies in relation to the implementation of the Insider Trading Code and to supervise
implementation of the same.
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5. Nomination and Remuneration Commitboo
The Board of Direclors has constiuled a Remuneration Committes for the purpose of deciding appointment! re-
appoiniment of Managing Directors! Whiole Time Direclors elc and remuneration and compensation payable fothem.

Dwring the financial year under review there was One (1) meeting of Nomination & Remuneration Commitiee held on 13-
02-2025_The composition, meefing and atiendance of members of the Committee at meefings were as follows:

Mao. of Meatings
Name of Member Status Designation

Held | Attended
K. Al Vijay Mandlekar| Independant Mon -Executive Director Chairman 1 I 1
e, Vashal. isadi Indepandent Mon -Executiva Director Mambar 1 1
Pradhan
Mr. Ravindra Bofatkar | Non-independent MNen -Execulive Director | Member 1| 1
Mr. Ramesh Himte Independant Mon- Executive Director Member 1 1

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Extract of Terms of Refercnce:

The Committee is duly constifuted as per the provisions of Section 178 of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 12 of the
Listing Regulations. The Committee is empowered o formulate the Remunerabon Policy which includes the criteria for
quafifications, experience, independence and remuneration of Directors, KMP and empioyees and criteria for evaluation
of Inde pendent Directors and fo recommend the appoinimentire-appointment.

- Recommend to the Board the setup and composiion of the Board and its Commitices.

- Recommend to the Board the appointmentire-appoiniment of Directors and Key Managenal
Personnel

- Support the Board and Independent Directors in evaiuafion of the performance of the Board, its Commitiees and
individual Direciors.

- Recommend to the Board the Remuneration Policy for Directors, execufive team or Key Managerial Personnel as
well as the restof employees.

- Oversee familiarization programs for Directors.

Performance Evaiuation Criteria for Independent Directors:

in terms of the requirements of the Act and the Listing Reguilations, an annual performance evalustion of the Board is
underizken where the Board formally assesses its own perfommance with an aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board
and the Commitiess.

The Company has a structured assessment process for evaluation of performance of the Board, its Committees and
individual performance of each Director including the Chairperson. The evaluations are camied out in @ confidential
manner and the Directors provide their feedback by rating based on vanious metrics. The performance evaluation criteria
for independent direciors is determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Commities.

The Independent Directors at their separate meeting reviewed the performance of: Non-Independent Directors and the
Board as s whole, the Chairman of the Company after aking info account the views of other Directors, succession
planning, the quality, guantity and timefiness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that
ia necessary for the Board to effectivety and reasonably perform their duties.

ar

ANNUAL REPORT Z024-2025



CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. m

Details of Remuneration/Sitting Fees paid to Directors during the Financial Year 2024-25:

Names Salary Perguisites | Others - Elll;t;neg Total
M. Mikhil Gadlar 05,349 564,00 — - | = 08,39 564.00 |
| Mr. Ravindra Boratkar - — — — .

Mr. Jaykumar Varma == = = = o |
| Mr. Ramesh Himte — = - | = = |
| Mr. Al Vijay Mandlakar | — = || o= [ = = '
| Mrs. Vrushall Jitendra = = — - =
| Pradhan
| Total 96,39 564.00 = = = 96,39, 564.00

The tenure of office of the Executive Director is for 5 years from the respective date of appoiniment/reappointment and can
be ferminated by either party by giving reasonable period of nofice in wriing or as per the terms of Agreement. In order to
conserve the resources of the company to further strengthen the financial position of the Company, Directors have waived
of their sitfing fees for year 2024-25. Alzo presently, the Company does not have any scheme to grant stock opfions either
{o the Executive Directors or to Employees of tie Company.

6. Stakeholder's Relationship Committee

This Commiltee is responsible for the satisfaciory redressal of invesiors’ complaints and recommends measures for
owerall improvement in the quiality of investor services. Especially it looks after grisvances of shareholders and investors
Complaints like dematerialisation | rematerialisation of shanes, transfer of shares, transmission of shares, non-receipt of
share cerifficates and/for balance sheet, dividend(s) etc. and timely redressal of their grievance thereto.

During the year under review, the Committee held Four {4) meetings on 20-05-2024, 12-08-2024, 14- 11-2024 and 13-02-
2025 for the approval of transfer of shares, approval of requests relating to dematenalization of shares and all matters
incidental or retated thereto. The composition, mecstings and attendance of members of the Committee at meetings wene
as follows:

Mo, of Meetings

Name of Member Status Designation
| Held | Aftended
E:: a;:::shall st Indepandent Non -Executive Dirattor Chairparson i 4
:_ Mr- Al Vilgy Mandlekar) Independant Mon -Executive Diractor Membear 4 4
| Mr. Ravindra Boratkar Man-Independant Mon -Execullve Director Membar 4 4
Mr. Ramesh Himbe Indepandant Mon- Executive Director Member 4 4

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company acts as Secretary tothe Commitiee.

Extract of Terms of Reference:

The Committee is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation 20 of

Listing Regulations.

- Considerand resolve the grievances of security holders.

= Ensure proper controls at Registrar and Share Transfer Agents;

= Review movement in shareholdings profile.

« Approve transfers, transmissions, dematerialization of shares, issue of duplicate ceriificates, change of names etc.,
and o do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as connected therewith.
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7. Corporate Social Responsibity Committoe

This Committee is responsible for formulation and recommends to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
which shall indicate the projects/activities to be undertaken by the Company in areas or subject, as specified in Schedule
Vil. Reviewing with the CSR management and recommend the amount of expenditure to be incumed on CSR
projectzfactiviies underiaken.

Dwring the financial year under review there was one (1) mesting of Corporate Social Responsibilifies Committes held on
18.03.2025. The composition, meeting and attendance of members of the Committes at meefings were as follows:

Na. of Meatings
Name of Member Status Dasignation
Held | Attended
Krs, Vrushali Jitendra )
Pradhan Indepandant Mon -Exeoutive Director Chairparson 1 1
M. Atul Vijay Mandlekar| Independeant Non -Executive Direcios Mzmber 1 1
Mr. Ravindra Boratkar | Man-Independant Mon -Executive Direcior Mamier 1 1
Mr. Ramash Himta Indepandent Man- Executive Director Mambar 1 1
Extract of Terms of Refercnce:

The Committes is duly constifuted as per the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 to oversee and give
direction io the Company's TSR aclivifies.

=  Recommend the amountof expenditure to be incurmed on the activities;

= Monitor implementation and adherence o the CSR Policy of the Company from fime o ime;

»  Prepare a transparent monitoring mechanism for ensuring implementation of the projects! programmes/activities
proposed to be undertaken by the Company;

= foreview CSR projects with a view o ensure that they are in line with the CSR objectives and the CSR and
Sustainability Policy of the Company and are aligned with Schedule Vilof the Act,

= loreview the annual C5R budget and recommend the same to the Board of Directors for approval;

=  providing guidance in the manner in which the C5R projects undertaken by the Company could make an impactiul
mtervention across the communities in which the Company operates; and

= Suchother activiies as the Board of Directors may determine from time tofime.

8. Status of Investors’ Complaini= (As on 31st March, 2025):
At-f.hﬂ "bag'rnﬁing n.t:" Ewmwd t.:I-ur'rng .ﬂw Rﬂﬁuh‘ﬂd &uring t-ha 1 Fenﬁing it ..t.l.lﬂ .IEm.';I.
the year year year of the year

Lo [ [1 |8

9. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

As stipulated by the Code of independent Directors under Schedule IV of the Act and Reguiafion 25{3) of Listing
Reqgulations, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 30th August, 2024 o review
the performance of Non-independent Directors {including the Chairman ) and the Board as whole and o ensure the system
devised for checking the flow of information between the Board and the Management iz operating effectively and vice
VErsa.
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10. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS :
1) The details of location & time of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are as follows:

Yaar Venuo | Mode ' Date | Time

The vanue af tha meeting was deamad 1o C;-:Fai:ncw

be the Reglsterad Office of the Company at : .
2023-24 | g Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College ”‘“"3;’ Eﬂlﬂ'ﬂ' 30" Seplember, 2024 | 11:30 AM.

Raad. Civil Lines Nagpur - 440001 Bl

The venus of e maaling was deemad o ' C;:;‘?glm

be tha Registerad Office of the Company at ., r
202223 A" Floar, Gupla Tower, Stience. Collage mharlhudm- 30" Spplamber, 2023 | 11:30 AM,

Road, Givil Linas Nagpur - 440001 Wisaat

! el means

The vanue of tha meeting was deemad 1o C::ft:ﬁ:nm-'

ba the Registared Office of the Company at f .
202123 4% Floor, Gupta Tower, Stience Coliege ﬂms:'!:’.uldlu- " Seplamber, 2022 | 17:30 AM.

Road, Civil Lines Nagpur - 440001 mau::s

ii) Details of Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual Gencral Meclings are as under:

Date | Purpose of Special Resolution

I September, 2024 Mo Special Resolution was proposad ar passed,

| Appointment of Shri Ramesh Dinkarrao Himle as an Independent Director of
the Company,

i. Appointment of Smit Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan as an Independent Direclor of

the Company.
i, Appointment of Shri Awl Vijay Mandlakar as an Independent Director of the

Company
0" September, 2022 | Re-appomtmeant of Mr. Nikiil Gadkan as Managing Director of the Company

" September, 2023

fii} Posial Ballot/EGM conducied during the year:

Mo Special Resolution was proposed through Postal Ballot during the financial year 2024-25. None of the businesses
proposed o be transacted in the ensuing Annual General Meeting require passing a Special Resolufion through Postal
baillot. No Exira-ordinary General Mesting was held during the financial year 2024-25.

11. Certificate by CEQICFO:

As required under Regulabion 17(8) of Listing Regulations, a cerificate from the CFO of the company cerfifying that the
financial siatements do not contain any matenially untrue siatement and these statements represent a true and fair view of
the Company's affairs. The said ceriificate is Annexed lo and forms part of the Annual Report. The said ceriificale is
enclosed as anAnnexure o this Report.

12. Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice:

As required under Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
as amended from time to time, a cerdificate has been received from Kaustubh Moghe, Praclicing Company Secretaries,
that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company has been debamed or disqualiied from being appointed or
confinuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any
such statutory authonty. The cerificatels enclosed as anAnnexure fo this Reporl.

13. Recommendation by Committoo:
The Board has accepted all recommendations from all the committees of the Board, which is mandatorily required, during
the financial year under review.
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14. Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspenso AccountiUnclaimed Suspense Account:

The Company does not have any of its securfties lying in dematfunciaimed suspense account arising out of publicbonus
fright issues as at 31sl March, 2025. Hence, the parficulars relafing o aggregate number of shareholders and the
outstanding securiiies in suspense account and other relaled matiers does notanse.

15. Details of Total Fees paid to Statuiory Auditors:

M/s. P G Joshi & Co., Chariered Accountants, Nagpur (Firm Registration Mo. 104416W) has been appointed as the
Statutory Auditor of the Company. The parficutar of payment of Siatutory Auditors’ fees, on consolidated basis 1= given
below:

Particulars Amount
Services as stalutory suditors (including quartery audits) £0.00
Tax Audil .00
Ra-imbursemant of oul-of-pockel exponses -
Total 26.00

16. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workpiace (Provention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013:

a.  Number of complainis Filed during the financial year - Mil

b. Mumberof complaints Disposed off duning the financial year - NA

c¢. Mumberof complaints Pending as on end of the financial year- Nil

17. Directors Familiarization Programmse:

Ower the years, the Company has developed a robust familiarisation process for the newly appointed Directors with
respect to their roles and responsibilities, way ahead of the prescripfion of the requlatory provisions. The process hasbeen
aligned with the requirements under the Act and other related requiations. Aformal induction programime for new Directors
and ani on-going familiarisafion process with respect to the business/working of the Company, the Company’s business
mode! for all Directors is @ major contributor fo familiarise the Directors with the dynamics of the cement industry to
facilitate their engagement in meaningful deliberations and in taking informed decisions.

Pursuant to Regulations 25(7) and 46 of the Listing Regulations, Details of familiarization program imparted to
independent Directors &re available on the Company’s website.

18. Confirmation on Independent Direciors:
In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing
Regulabons and are independent of the management of the Company.

19. Detailed reasons for the Resignation of an Independent Director:
Duning the year under review, no Independent directors were resigned.

20. Disclosures:

A. Related Party Transactions:

The Company has formulated a Policy on Refated Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transachons, in
accordance with refevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the provisions of Regulation 23 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

The related party transachons duning the financial year 2024-25 were on Arm's Length Basis and in Ordinary course of
Business. The transactions with the related parties, as per the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS)
24, are disclosed in the Motes on Accounts, forming part of the Annual Report. There are no materially significant related
party transactions that may have potenital confiict with the interests of the Company atiarge.
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Audit Commitiee had indentified the related parties with whom fransactions which are of frequent! regular/ repetitive
nature are transacted in nomal coursa of business of the Company. Audit Committee have grated standing pre-approvall
omnibus approval for ransactions with such related parties fo be entered during the year under review. Transacfions
entered with related parties during the year under review under the said pre-approvall omnibus approval were reviewed by
the Audit Committee. Weblink of our Company's policy on dealing with related party transactions is
(hitpifcianindustries. comipdiipolicy-ondealing- with-refated-party-transaction. pdf)

B. Subsidiary Companics

As on 31st March, 2025, there are Four {4) wholly-owned subsidiary Companies of CIAN viz. ClAN Agro Limited LLC,
Varmon Aluminiumm Private Limited, Manas Power Ventures Private Limited, Avenzer Eleciricals & Infrastructure Private
Limited and one (1) Step down Wholly Owned Subsidiary (ldeal Energy Project Limited) and one (1) Step down Subsidiary
{Manas Agro Indusines & Infrastructure Ltd) . Out of the above subsidiaries the Company have two material non-isted
Indian Step down Subsidiary companies, as defined under Reguiation 16(1) (C) of Listing Regulation. Pursuant fo
Reguiations 24(1) of the Listing Regufations, on the basis of financials of 31.03.2025.

The requirements with respect to subsidiaries in terms of Reguiation 24 of the Listing Regulations have been comphed with
by the Company. The major updates about the unfisted subsidiary companies are reguiary presenied o the Aodit
Commillee and the Board in addition to the key points which are takien up in the audit committesl board meseting of
subsidianies.

C. Disclosure of Accounfing Standards:

Pursuant to SEBI Circular dated Sth July, 2016, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS™) and
accordingly the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with recognition and measurement principles kid
down in the Ind AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting prescrbed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
relevantrules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

D. Statutory Compliance, Penalties and Strictures related to Capital Market:
There were no instances of material non-compliance and no strictures or penatiies were imposed on the Company either
by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any statutory authories onany matier related to capital markets during the last three years.

E. Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory reguirements:

The Company has complied with all other Corporate GAovernance requirements specified in Regulafion 17 1o 27 and
ciauses (b) to {i} of sub-reguiation 2 of Requiation 46 of the Lisfing Regulations and necessary disciosures thereof have
been made in this report.

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements laid down by Listing Regulaions. The Company has also
complied with the requiremenis of Part C (Corporate Govemance Report} of subparas (2) ip (10) of Schedule V of the
Listing Regulations.

The Company has also complied with some of the non mandatory requirements such as Separate posts of Chairman and
Managing Director, Reporting of Internal Auditor directly to the Audit Commities.

TheAuditors Certificate on Compliance with provisions related to Corporate Govemance as stipulated in Schedule V (E) of
Lisfing Requlations by the Company is also annexed to this report.

F. ¥igil Mechanism | Whistie Blower Policy:

The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activifies and hence formulated a Whistle Blower Policy o
establish a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees of the Company o report concems about unethical behavior,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. This will ensure fraud-free work &
ethical environment.

We affirm that during the financial year 2(i24-25, no employee or director was denied access io the Audit Commitiee.
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1. Means of Communication:

Your Company disseminates fimely information aboul its operaions, business and financial periommance to slock
exchanges, shareholders and society at large. The quariery/half yearty/yearly Financial Resulis are sent io BSE Limited
immediately after they are approved by the Board in their meeting. Financial Results are generally published in the national
Daily newspaper “Indian Express” in English and Local Marathi Daily “Loksatta™, which are widely crculated. The
Company does not fumish the informaticn toeach shareholder individually. The resuits are posted on Company’s website
and BSE Limited i_e. www bseindiacom.

The Company's websie hitp//www cianindustries.com/ 13 updated penodically to include information on new
developments. The Company has not made any presentations / press release to Inshitutional Investors or to the Analysis
during the year under review.

22. Details of utillization of funds raized through preferential alloiment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under reguiation 32 (7a):

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified
instilutions placement.

23. Gencral Sharcholders' Information:

a) Annual General Mecting:

Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 30th day, September, 2025 at 11.30 a.m., through Video
caonferencing (VC ) Other Audio Visual means (OAVM).

b) Financial Year : 1stApril to 31=t March

c) Financial Calendar { Tentative):

[ Resulls for Quarer ended on June 2025 12" Ptug:st 2025
Annual General Meeting : | 30" September 2025

| Results-for the Quarter ending on September 2025 Seocond Week of Novembear 2025
Results for the Quarter ending on December 2025 | © | Second Wesk of February 2026
Ras.ulﬁ for the quarter ending r:;n March 2026 | :. Fcuﬂ'i Wea;; ﬂf-l'l.lﬂ'y' 2026

d) Date of Book Closure:
Tuesday, 23rd Sepiember 2025 to Tuesday, 30th September 2025 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General

Meefing.

o} Listing on Stock Exchange:
The Gompany’s Shares have been fisted onthe Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai under Scrip Code No. 518477

The Company has paid fisting fees to the stock exchanges and annual custodial fees to the depositories for the financial
year 2024-25

f) Dematerialisation of Securities:
The Company = registered wilh both NSDL & CDSL for Dematerializafion of fis shares and have obfained ISIN
INEOS2Y 01019 for ifs equity shares fisted on BSE Limiled.

g) Share Transfer System:

At present, Majority of the shares of the Company are in Demat mode and activities relating to transfer of shares are
handied by Big Share Services Private Limited our RTA i.e. Registrar & Transfer Agent. On receipt of the transfer request,
our RTA, verifies the request & documents received. If the transfer deeds along with Share certificates in physical form are
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found i order, it is submitted fo Share Transfer Committee of the Direciors for iis consideration. Upon approval by the
committee, necessary comection is made in Members” Register and then the Share Ceriificates are dispatched fo the
transferees by our RTA. For this purpose, near about 15 days period is taken for completion of the fransfer. For this
purpose the SEBI Guidelines, provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulation 2015 and of Companies Act, 2013 and Ariicles of
Aszociation of the Company are generally followed. The Company obtains from a Company Secretary in Practice yearly
cerfificate of compliance with the share transfer formalities as required under Regulation 40{2) of the Listing Regulations,
and files a copy of the same with the Stock Exchange.

However, as per SEBI Motificaion Mo. SEBILAD-NRO/GN/2018724 dated June B, 2018 and further amendment vide
Mofification Mo. SEBULAD-NRO/GN2018/49 dated Movember 30, 2018, requests for effecting transfer of securiies
{except in case of transmission or transposition of securifies) shall not be processed from Aprl 1, 2019 unless the
securities are held in the dematerialised form with the depositories. Therefore, Shareholders are requested to take action
to dematerialize the Equity Shares of the Company, prompily.

h) Shareholding Patiern:
I Catogorios of Sharaholding as on March 31, 2025:

As on 31 March 2025

o3 x - 1

Category " No. of %of No. of Shares % of Share
Shareholders | Shareholder held holding

Promaoters 16 | 0.23 18538121 G7.67
Mutusl Funds, FI, Flls, FPIs i} n.08 61,800 0.22
Individual Shareholdears GETH 893.53 77,869,648 2784
Bodies Corporate 45 063 4 67,563 1.67
MEI's & Overseas Corporate
Bodies 354 4,896 554141 1.88
Public Others (Claanng Members, a1 057 174 622 0.62
HUF) : 74, :
Total 7141 | 100 2,79,85,895 100

ii. Distribution of Shareholding (in Rs.) as on 31sf March, 2025 was as follows:-.

Shareholding of Nominal

s TR Shiratotiars | Toiut o atees:| SHFe Amotint |'TCeepNAGS O
1 5000 6465 90,0543 To49570 2 8408
A001 | 100040 A60 B.O148 J167800 1.1319
10001 20000 157 2 16868 2421010 0.8651
20001 | 30000 56 47801 436080 05131
o001 | 40000 14 0.2647 75860 02415
40001 SO000 16 0.2229 TB45TO 02732
0001 : 100030 30 04179 2262360 0.8084
100001 4OR9995009 T 1.0586 261181700 93,3262
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i) Market Price Data: High! low, Number of shares traded during each month in tho year 2024-25:

AN —

Month | Open Price High Price Low Price Close Price Traded Quantity
Apnl - 24 38.78 418 38 3885 41,565
May - 24 39.65 45 6 3BE2 4214 46,068
Jun-24 4374 47,899 T 41.38 7,228
dui-24 4058 4574 385 FuELE 71,143
Aug-24 43.00 121 “37.00 121 B16.827
Sap - 24 1234 168.9 116.3 ELET 1,621,867
Oct- 24 17225 26045 17225 260,45 62,807
N - 24 26585 3714 265.65 A 73713
Dt 24 37880 540,35 7880 5180 2,17.536
Jan - 25 50865 510 3667 4210 3,98 560
Feb - 25 42555 4B5 Y 3784 1,602,004
Mar - 25 a@Ban amr | - 221 3405 68,649

* Note Indicates monthly prices & valume.

Performance of the Share Price of the Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex :
INDEX COMPARISON

i) Registrar and Share Transfer Agent :- M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limiled, is acfing as the Registrar and Share
TransterAgents for the shares of the Company held in both physical and electronic modes. All comespondence with regand
to share iransfers and matiers related therewith may directly be addressed fo the Share Regisirar and Transfer Agents at
the address given below:- Bigshare Services Private Limited New Address -Office No. S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business
Park, Next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400033 Maharashira india.
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k) ADRs!/ GDRs: As on 31st March, 2025, the Company has not issued any GDRADRWarmrants or-any convertible
instrumenis/securiies.

I} Works {Plant Location):
= The Solvent Exiraction Plant and Vegetabie Oil Refinery of the Company are located at Kolar Road, near Village
Bhuyar Kotari, Taluka Chimur, Dist. Chandrapur-442003, MH, India

» Spices& Detergent plant at Sonapar, Post -Dhapewada, Taluka - Kalmeshwar, Nagpur-441501, MH, India.
= Aluminum Hot Rolling Mill Installed at Plot No. A-1/1, MIDC Kalmeshwar, Dist. Nagpur-441501, MH, India
= At Post-Selu, Gondkair-Kalmeshwar Highway, Disi-Magpur-441507, MH, India

= Alphianso Mango Processing Unit at Devgad Taluka, Amba Utpadak Sahkari Sanstha, Jamsande, Sindhudung District,
Devgad-416611, MH, India

= VamonAluminiumm Pyt. Lid. (VWholly-owned subsidiary), plant located at Plot Mo. D-68, D-71 & D- 72 of Mirjole MIDC,
Ratnagiri, MH, India

m} Service of documenis through electronic mode:

A= a part of Green Initiative, the members who wish (o receive the nofice/documents through e-mail, may kindly infimate
their e-mail address to the Companys Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Bigshare Services Pyt Lid. or to the
Company at info@@cianindustries.com’ or fill up the Email Lipdation Form and send to the Company.

23. Maltrix/Chart setting out the core skills/expertise/compeience of the Board of Directors of the Company

The Board comprises of qualified members who possess required skills, expertise, experience and competencies that
allow them to make effective coniributions o the Board and its Committees. The Members of the Board are commitied to
ensuring that the Board is in comphance with the highest standards of Corporate Governance. The table below
summarizes the skills, expertise, competencies and atiributes which have been identified for the effective functioning of
the Company and are curmently available with the Boand:

i Areas of Skills/ Expertisef Competence/Experience
Mame of Directons) Leadershl | General | Operations/ | Technleal | Finane | Corporate Govermment
p Manage | Sales & Professi | e Governance | | Regulatory
ment/ Marketing onal Atffairs
‘Birateg Skills
M. Nikhil Gadkari N N v I v i v
MrRavindra Boratkar | W | E W N Y
Mr. Jaykumar Varma | y Y | v X i ¥
Mr, Ramesh Himte Y W v Bl X N v
| Wr. Atul Mandickar Y ¥ N [ y v v
| Mrs, Vrushall Pradhan | \ X El X v v

24. Address for Correspondencef Compliance Officer:

Mrs. Madhubala Dave

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Registered Office: 4ih Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines, Nagpur-440001
Ph. No. 0712-2220027M177, Website: www_cianindusiries.com

E-mail: info@cianindusines. com.

For and on behalf of board

Jaykumar Varma

Place : Nagpur Chairperson
Date : 02™ September, 2025 DIN-D0485792
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ANNEXURE E
CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
[Under Regutation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulafions, 2015]

To,
The Board of Directors
CIAN AGRD INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

I hereby certify that for the financial year 2024-25 annuatl- accounts, | have reviewed the financial statements and the
cash fiow and that to the best of my knowledoe and belief:

1. These statements do not contain any matenally untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misieading;

2 These siatemenis together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, appiicable laws and regulations.

3. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transacons entered into by the Company during the year
2024-25 which are fraudulent, illegal or viokaiive_

4_ | accept responsibility for establishing -and maimtaining intemal controls for financiat reporting and that | have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporiing and have not
noticed any deficiency that need o be redlified or disclosed o the suditors and the Audit Commitice.

5. | further certify that :
a. there have been no significant changes in internal control over financial reporiing during the year,

b. there are no significant changes in acoounting policies during the year | and

c. there have been no instances of significant fraud, of which | have become aware, involving management or
an employee having significant role in the Company’s intemal control systems.

Date: 30" May 2025 MNakul Bhat
Place: Nagpur Chief Financial Officer
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Part of Annexure E
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34{3) and Schedule ' Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015)

Ta,

The Membars,

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIM: L15142MH 1985PLCD37483

Req Add: 4th Floor, Gupia Tower, Science College Road,
Civil Lines, Nagpur 440001

| have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, retums and disciosures received from the Directors of CIANAGRO
INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED having CIN L15142MH1985PLCO37453 and having registered office at
4th Fioor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines, Nagpur-440001 (hereinafter referred o as 'the Company’),
produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V Para-C Sub clsuse 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements ) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and o the best of my information and according o the verifications {including Directors identification Number
(DN} status at the portal www.mca gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company &
its officers,

| hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on
31st March, 2025 have been debarmed or disqualified from being appointed or confinuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Sr, Meme of Director DIN Cate of Date of
Mo appolntment® Cessation

11 Mr Mikhil Mitin Gadkari 0234754 oifo12017 -

|2 Mr Jaykumar Ramesh Varma 00485792 21003/201 >

[ 3 Mr RavindraVidyadhar Boratkar Q0299351 25/03H 2002 -

I Mr Ramash Himte 02112732 14/02/2023 x

I'5 Mr Atul Vijay Mandiekar 10254967 12/08/2023 -

| & Mrs. Wrushal Jitendra Pradhan 075942487 120068/2023 -

-'Tlm Date of Appointmant s as par MCA Portal

Ensuring the eligibiiity of for the appointment / confinuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on ourverification.

This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Companmy.

For Kausiubh Moghe and Associaies
Practicing Company Sccretaries

Kaustubh Moghe
Proprictor

FCS.No10603&CoF No 12486

UDIN: FO10603G001 070046

Date: 23" August 2025 Peer Review No: 3241/2023
Place: Nagpur Unigque Code: S2022MHB43200
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Part of Annexure E
Certificate on Corporate Governance

To,

The Members,

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIM: L15142MH1985PLC03 7483

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road,
Civil Lines, Nagpur 440001

| Ksustubh Moghe, propristor of Kaustubh Moghe & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Nagpur, have examined
all relevant records of Cian Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited ("Company™) (hereinafter referred as “the Company™)
for the yearended March 31, 2025, as sfipulated in Regulation 17 to 27 and clause (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) and para G,
Dand E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation 2015("Listing Regulations™).

Managemant Responsibility:

The Management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the conditions of Corporate Governance.
This responsibility also includes the design, implementation and maintenance of intemmal controls and procedures fo
ensure compiiance with the conditions of the Corporate Govermnance stipulated in the Listing reguiations.

Auditor's Responsibility:

My responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementaton thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuing
compliance with the conditions of the Comporate Govemance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the
financial statements of the Company.

I have examined the relevant records and doecuments maintained by the Company for the purpose of providing reasonable
assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion:

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according fo our examinafion of the melevant recordsand the
explanations given to me and the representations made by the Management, | certify that theCompany has complied with
the conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulated in reguiations 17 to 27and clausas (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and
para C, D'and E of the Schedule V of the ListingRegulations during the year ended 31st March 2025 except during the year
under review,

1. ‘as per Listing Regulations 19; Annual lisfing fees for FY 2024-25 was not paid in due period,

2 as per Listing Regulation 31{2); 100% of the shareholding of promoters and promoler groups s not in
dematenalized form,

| further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the aifairs of the Company.
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Resiriction on Use

This certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to
comply with the requirement of the Listing Regulabions, and it should not be used by any other person or for any other
purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other
per=on towhom this cedificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. Ye have no
responsibility to update this Certificate for any events or circumstances occurring after the date of this Cerlificate

For Kaustubh Moghe and Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

Kaustubh Moghe

Proprictor

FCS No1060358CoP No 12486
UDIN: FO10603G001070046
Peer Review No: 3241/2023
Unigue Code: S2022MHB49200

Date: 23" August 2025
Place: Nagpur
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ANNEXURE - F
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The infrmation required under Sechon 197(12) of the Act read with rule 5{1) of the Companies (Appoiniment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

The ratic of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employess of the Company for the
financial year 31st March, 2025:

Name ofthe Directors | Designation Ratio to Median Remuneration of the employees of the
Company

Mr. Milkchil Gadkari Managing Director 436

The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary in the financial year:

Sr Mo Mame of Director (Executive ) KMP Designation % of increase inremuneration
1 Mr: Nikhil Gadkan Managing Director Mil
4 Mr=. Madhubaila Dave: Company Secretary & 36%
Compliance Officer
3 M. Nakul Bhat Chief Financial Officer %

The percentage increase in ihe median remuneration of employees inthe financial year:

Dring the financial year Company confinued fo be on revival curve and company has continued fo increase its
employee strength. Therefore although there is considerable increase in the Company's perffoomance it cannot be
compared with increase in remuneraiion of iis employees as number of employees in employment of the Company
continues to change during the year.

The Company has 58 permanent Employees on the roll of the Company as on 31st March, 2025,

Average percentile increase already made in the satanes of employees other than the managenial personnel in the
Iast financisl year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification
thereofand point out if there are any exceptional circumsiances for increase in the managernial remuneration:

During the financial year Company confinued fo be on revival curve and company has confinued o increase s
empioyee sirength. Therefore although there is considerable increase in the Gumpiarrfs performance i cannot be
compared with increase in remuneration of its employees as number of employees in employment of the Company
continues o change during the year and there was no change in the salary of Direchors. Increase in the salaries of
Key Managerial personned is in comelation with the improved performance of the Company.

Affrmation that the remunerafion is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The Company affirmes that the remunerabion is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

]|
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ANNEXURE -H

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014]

Tao,

The Members,

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: L15142MH1985PLC0O37493

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road,
Civil Lines, Nagpur 440001.

| have conducted the Secrefanal Audit of the compliance of applicable siatiory provisions and the sdherence fo good
comporate practices by Cian Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter called “the Company™). The Secretarial
Audit was conducted in @ manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verfication of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and retumns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the informafion provided by the Company, iis officers, agents and suthorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025 (‘Audit Period') generally complied with the statutory
provisions fisted hereunderand alzo that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporiing made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minuie books, forms and retumns filed and other records maintained by the Compamy
forthe financial yearended March 31, 2025 according {o the provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,
i, The Securiies Contracts (Reguiation) Act, 19568 ('SCRA') and the nules made thereander,
ifi. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;
14 Foreign Exchange ManagementAct, 1999 and the ruies and regulations made there under io the extent of Foreign
Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Bormowings:
V. The following Requiations and Guidefines prescribed under the Securiies and Exchange Board of India Acl, 1992
{"SEB1Act)-
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Reguiations,
2011;
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiations, 2015;
c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018
(Notapplicable to the company during the audit period);
) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; - (Not
applicable to the company during the audit period).
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e) The Securifies and Exchange Board of India {(Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regutaiions, 2008
{Mot applicable to the company during the audit period)

f) The Securifies and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an lssue and Share Transfer Agenis) Regulations,
19493 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; -

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Deiisting of Eguity Shares) Regulations, 2009; - (Not
applicable to the company during the audit period)

h) The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities ) Regulations, 1998;-(Mot applicable to
the company during the audit pernod), and

i) The Securities and Exchange Beoard of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulabions, 2015

We further report that the company has complied with the following Sector specific laws which are specifically applicable
laws to the extent possible.

a) Agricuiture Produce Marketing Regutation Act{APMC), 2017and Rules made there under as amended from
fime to ime.

b} The Agricutiural and Processed Food Products Export Development Authority Act {APEDA), 1885and Rules
made there under as amended from time to fime.

c) The Spices Board Act 1985 and Spices Board Rules 1987made there under as amended from fime to ime-

d) Food Safety and Standards (F35)Act, 2006 and Rules made there underas amended from time to ime.

e} Drugs and Foods Under the 1938 Actand Rules made there under as amended from fime to fime.

f) The Prevention of Food AdulterabionAct, 1954 and Rules made there under as amended from time o fime.

g) The Factories Acl, 1948 and Rules made there under as amended from fime o ime.

) TheAir {Preveniion and Control of Pollution ) Act, 1381 and Rules made there under as amended from time to
time.

i} The Ferliliizer {Confrol) Order (FCO), 1957 and Rules made there under as amended from time tofime:

1] The Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940

k) Malemity Benefit Act, 1961

1) The Sexiial Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibifion and Redressal) Act, 2013

m) Local laws as applicable o varnious offices and plants

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following
a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and nofified by Ministry of
Comporate Affairs.
b) The Lising Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges and The SEBI (Listing
Obligations And Disclosure Regquirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards, etc. menfioned above subjeci to the following obsenations:
1. asperlisting Regulations 19; Annual listing fees for FY 2024-25 was not paid in due period,
2. as por Listing Regufation 31(2); 100% of the shareholding of promoters and promofer grogps is nof in
dematarializod form,
3. onee-formin respect of charge creation was filed with the Registrar of Companies with additional fees.

vi. | further report that,
a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Direciors as on 31.03.2025.

ANNUAL REPORT Z024-2025



CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid, 'm'

CIAN —

b) As per the Information provided by the management, adequalte nofices were given o all directors to schedule the
Board Mestings, agenda and defailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system
exists for seeking and obiaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningiul participation at the meeting.

c) All the decisions in the board meefings wene camied through by majority while there werne no dissenting members
views and hence not captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

dj Al decisions of the Board and Committees were carried with requisite majority.

vii. | have relied on the information and representation made by the Company and  its  Officers for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws, and
Regulations o the Compamy.

vii. | further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company
has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Siatutory Auditors
and other designated professionals.

i | further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate systems and
processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monifor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, roles, reguistions and guidefines

% lfuriherreport that, during the audit period the Company had no specific evenis/actions having a major bearing on the
Company's affairs in pursuance of the above refermed laws, regulations, guidelines, standards efc.

For KaustubhMoghe and Associaies
Practicing Company Secretaries

Date: 23" August 2025
Place: Nagpur

KaustubhMoghe
Proprictor

FCS.No10603&CoP No 12486
UDIN: FO10603G001070068
Peer Review No- 3241/2023
Unigue Code: S2022MHB43200

This Report is o be read with my letter of even daie which is annexed as Annexure - | and forms an integral part of
this report
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ANNEXURE -1
{to the Secretarial Audit Report)

To,

The Members,

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: L15142MH1985PLCO37493

Reg Add: 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road,
Civil Lines,

Nagpur 440001

Based on audit, my responsibifity is o express an opinion on the compliance with the applicable laws and
maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audiiing standards CSAS 1
to CSAS 4 ("CSAS") prescribed by the Instiute of Company Secretaries of Indig ("ICSI7). These standards require that
the auditor complies with statutory and reguistory requirements and plans and performs the sudit to obiain reasonable
assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent imitations of an audit incleding internal. financial and operating controls, there is an unavoidable risk
that some missiatements or material non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is property planned and
perimed in accordance with the CSAS. Our report of even dale is fo be read along with this letier

1} Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. My responsibility is to
expressan opinion on these Secretarial Records based on my audit

2) | have followed the audi practices and processes as were appropriate fo oblain reasonable assurance about the
comectness of the contents of the Secretarial reconds. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that comect
facts are reflected in the Secrefanal records. | believe that the processes and prachices, | followed provide a
reasonable basis formy opinion.

3) I'have notvenfied the comeciness and appropnateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4) Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representafion about fhe compliance of Laws, Rules and
Reguiations and happening of events efc.

5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable Laws, Rules, Requiations, Standards is the
responsibility of the Management. My examination was limited lo the venfication of procedures on test basis.

6) The Secretanal Audit report is neither an assurance as o the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or
effectivenass with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For KaustubhMeghe and Associates
Practicing Company Secretaries

KaustubhiMoghe

Proprictor

FCS.No10603&CoP No 12486

UDIN: FO10603G001070068

Date : 23" August 2025 Peer Review No: 3241/2023
Pizce: Nagpur Unigque Code: S20622MHB43200
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ANNEXURE I
Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities
(Pursuant fo Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 [Including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) for the
time being in force])

Brief oufiine on CSR Policy of the Company:The policy lays down the criteria o be followed during selection and
planning of 2 CSR activity and while choosing the area of implementation of CSR projects Our CSR Poticy aims o
provide a dedicated approach to community development in the areas of improving healthcare infrastruciure,
supporting primary education, rehabilitating the destitute, abandoned women and children, preserving Indian ari and
culture, removing malnutrition, rural development, and coniribute fo the sustainable development of society

and emvironment, and tomake our planet a better place for future generations.

Composition of C5R Committee: The Committes is duly constituted as per the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies.Act, 2013 to oversee and give direction to the Company’s CSH activities.

. . Number of meoti Number of moeti of
Name of Director D“:;“;::;f::;“ of CSR {.‘.mm'ru‘ll“n? CSR Comnu-ttunr
held during the year | attended during the year
Mrs. Viushali Jitendra Chairperson - Independent 1 1
Pradhan Mon Executive Director
M. Atul Vijay Mandiekar | Member - Independent Non 1 1
Executive Direclor
WMir Ravindra Boratkar Member - Non-independent 1 |
Mon Executive Direclor
Mr. Ramesh Himite Member - Independeant 1 1
Non Executive Director

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the Company - hifps://www. cianindusines.com/compliance.

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects camied out in pursuance of Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Corporale Social Responsibility Policy) Rulas, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) - Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of Rule 7(3) of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, ifany - Not Applicable

Average MNet Profit of the Company as per Section 135(53) of the CompaniesAct. 2013 - Rs. 164.72 Lakhs

ﬁ:-. Farticuins {Rs.inLakhs)

a. | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5) of the 329
Companies Act, 2013

b | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or aciivifies of the previous Mil
financial years

c. | Amount reqguired to be set off for the financial year, i any - il

d. | Total CSR obligation for the financial year (Ta+7b-Tc) - 329

57
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8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

AMOUNT UNSPENT (IN RS.)
Total Amount Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified
’P““t_f“'ﬂ"“ 1o Unspent CSR Account under Schedule VIl as per second
Financial Year as per Section 135(6) proviso to Section 135 (5)
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Amount Date of Mame of the Amount Date of
fransfer Fund transfer
250 Mil MNA MN_A MNil MLA

() Details of C5R amount spent against ongoing projects for the fimancezl year: Mil
(c) Details of GSR amount spent other than ongoing projects for the financial year: Mil

Sr. | Name of | itemfrom | Local | Locafion of the Amount Mode of Mode of
No tho the list of area Project spant for | implementation | implemontation -
Project | activities in | (Yes/ the project Direct Through
Schedule VIl | No). {in Rs.). {Yes/Na). implementing
to the Act. agency.
Siate Dastrict Mame CSR
registration
number
1. Promoting (i} 1o {xit) No | Maharashira | Thane 250 Yes MNA NA
art and
culture

(d)  Amountspent inAdministrative Overheads: "MIL

{e] Amountspentonimpact Assessment, ifapplicable: Not Applicable
{f)  Tolalamountspentforthe Financial Year (Bb+8c+ Bd+82): 2,50 Lakhs
{g) Excessamountiorsetofi ifamy:

Sr Amount
No. Fatwabars (Rs. in Lakhs)
(i} | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 329

(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 250

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(i)-(1}] B
() | Surplus arising out of the CSR. projects or programmes or aclivifies of the previous -
financial years, if any
(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{ii}-{iv}] | B

9_ (a) Detasiiz of Unspent CSRamount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
{b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year{s): Mot
Applicable
10. Incase of creation or acquisition of capital asset, fumish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through
CSR spentin the financial year {asset wise details): Not Applicabie
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed o spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) of
the CompaniesAct, 201 3: Not Applicable as company is Violuntarily Spending CSR Amount.

For and on behalf of the CSR Committes
Mrs. Vrushali Jitendra Pradhan
Chairperson
CSR Committes
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The Members
CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. WWe have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial statements of CLAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure
Limited {“the Company”) which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income ), Statement of Changes in Equity and Siatement of Cash
Flows for the yearthen ended and notes to the financial staternent, including material accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred toas * Standalone Financial Statements™).

2 Inour opinion and 1o the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Siatemenis give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give @ true and fair view, in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, (TInd AS") and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31siMarch 2025, and iis profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our sudit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section143(10) of the Companies Act, 201 3. Our responsibififies under those Standands are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for fhe Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant fo our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilied
our other ethical responsibilites in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have oblained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinon on the
standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

4.  Wedmaw attention o
a MNote No. 2.1 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company has revised its estfimation
for the revaluation cycle of ceriain classes of non-volalile Property, Plant and Equipment from 3 years
to 5 years, in accordance with the requirements of ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment. This
change has been made during the current financial year based on 2 change in management’s
estimate.
b. Note No. 4 "Non-Curent Investments’ where the Company has valued investment in equity shares of
bank atcost
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C. Mote No. 29 Other Income and 24 Trade Payables, where the Company has written back certain trade
payabies that were oulstanding for a period exceeding three to five years during the curment financial
year. Sich balances were derecognized and crediled to the Statement of Profitand Loss

Owr opinion is nod modified in respect of the above.

Key Audit Matters

5

Key audit matters {"KAM') are those matiers that, inour professional judgment, were of most significance inour

audit of the standalone financial statements of the curmment pernod. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the standalone financial statemenis as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters (KAM)

Why the matter was considered to be one of
most significance in the audit

How the matter was addressed in our andit

The company had given and received advance
payments  [or trade transactions. These
advances were subsequently reassessed hased
on current facts and circumstances.

Accordingly, these balances were reclassified as
financial assets or financial labilities under Ind
AS 109 - TFinancial  Instruments, and
subsequently  measured at fair value in
accordance with Ind AS 113 - Fair Value
Measurement. The resulting fair value changes
were recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Lioss as per the requirements of Ind AS 109,

Given the materiality of the balances, the
judgement  invoelved in reclassification  and
valuation, and the impact on the fnancial
statements, this was considered a key audit
matter,

Reviewed historical transaction data and
account activity.

Ewitluated the basis for reclassification of
these balances as financial assets or
financial liabilities in accordance with the
principles of Ind AS 109,

Reviewed and assessed the
appropriateness  of the  wvaluation
methodology  and  key  assumptions

applied by management to measure the
fair value of these balances, including
discount rates, expected timing of
settlement, amd credit risk
considerations, as required under [nd AS
113 - Fair Value Measurement.

Reviewed disclosures in the financial
statements to assess compliance with Ind
AS 109 and Ind AS 113, particularly in
instruments,
valuation technigues, and fair wvalue
hierarchy.

relation to  financial

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other

information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
Standalone financial statements, Consclidated Financial Siatements and our suditors’ report{s) thereon. The
Company’s Annual report is expected o be made available tous after the date of this auditor’'s report.

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Dwur opinion on the standalone inancial siatements does not cover the other information and we do nol express
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8. In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements,; our responsibility is to read the other
imformation identified above when it becomes available and, in doing =so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standaione financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

9. The Company's Board of Direclors is responsible for the matiers stated in Secfion 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 {"Act”) with rezpect to the preparation of these standalone financial siatements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profilf loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accondance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2015. This responsibifity also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the asseis of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other imegulanties; selection and application of appropriate accounting polficies, ; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intermal
financial conirols. that were operating effechvely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial siatements thal
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor.

In prepanng the Standalone Financial Statements, Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ahility io continue a3 a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated o
going concem and using the going concem basis of accounfing unless the board of Directors either inlends o
liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but o do sa.

The respective Board of Directors of the company are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

10.  Owr objectives are 1o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial siatements a3 a
whaole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ermor, and to issue an auditor's repaort that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 3 material missiztement when it exists. Misstatemenis
can arise from fraud or emor and are considered material &, individually or in the agoregate, they could
reasonably be expecied fo influegnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone
financial statements
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skeplicism throughout the audil. We also:

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nsks, and obtain audi
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstaternent resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from ermor, as fraud may
invaive collusion, forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

b. Obitain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design awdit procedures that
are approprate in the circomstances. Under Section 143{3)(1}of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequale intemal financial
confrols with reference o financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
coftirofs.

61
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C. Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.:

d. Condlude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Direciors use of the going concemn
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related fo events or condifions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. if we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. Howewver,
fulure events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going Concer.

e. Evatuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underiying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

11. We communicate with thosa charged with govermance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significantaudit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intfermal control that we
identihy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may rezgsonably be thought o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determing those matters thal were of
most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statemenis of the cument period and are therefore the
key audit matiers. We describe these matters in our sudiors’ report uniess law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in exiremely rane circumstances, we delermine thal a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12,  Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020( " The Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. A) Asreguired by section 143 (3)of the Act, we report that
a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and betief wene necessary for the purpose of our audit.

b.  Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as il
appears from cur examination of those books except for the matier stated in paragraph 13(B ){f) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rule, 2014.

C. The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss s (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Eguity and the Standalone Statement
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Sandards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
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Rules, 2015,

e. On the basis of wrilien represeniations received from the direclors as on 313t March, 2025 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31stMarch, 20625 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2)of the Act.

f With respect o the adequacy of the intemial inancial controls with reference fo financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, referto ourseparate Reportin “Annexure B™.

g.  The opinion relating to maintznance of accounts and other matiers connected there with are as stated in
paragraph 13(B){f) below on reporfing under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014,

B) Wiih respect io the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
accornding to the explanations given tous:

a. The Company does not have any pending litigatons which would impact on its financial position.

b. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-ferm confracts including
derivalive contracts during the year ended 31 March 2025

c. There were no amounts which were required o be transfermed o the Invesior Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
fhe Note 39(v) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested [either from bormowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of unds) by the
company to.or in any other person{s) or enfity(ies), including foreign enfities (“Intermedianes”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the company ("Ulfimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

() The management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledoe and belief, as disdosed in
the Note33{vi) o the standalone financial statement=, no funds have been received by the company
from any person{s) or enfity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Paries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded inwriting or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or
indirecily, iend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficianes") or provide any guarantes, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(i} Based onaudit procedures perfomed that have been considered reasonabie and appropriate in
the crcumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representafions under sub-clausa (i} and (i) contain any material mis-statement.

e. The company has not dectared or paid any dividend during the year, hence thera is no contravention of
the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

i. The reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from 1
April 2023
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Based onour examination which included test checks, and communication done, except for the instances mentioned
below, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit log) fadility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respective sofiware.

i.  Thereis nofrontend facility available to disable or enable the audit logs; this function is controlied exclusively
through the database sysiem.

i. Thesysiem isdesigned without an automatic mechanism fo send alerts i higher authornties regarding the
dizabiing of the audit trail.

Our opinion s nod modified on the above matier

h.  Withrespect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
saeciion 197(16) of the Act, asamended:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remunerafion paid by the Company to its
directors during the curment year is in excess of the limits laid down under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.
However, the Company has passed a special resoluiion in the general meeting, in accordance with the provisions of the
first provizo to Section 197(1), enabling such payment Accordingly, the remuneration paid s in comphiance with the
provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section
197( 16} of the Actwhich are required to be commented upon by us.

For P. G. Joshi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 104416W

CA Avinash Joshi
Partner
M. No.- 030904
Place : Nagpur
Date: 300572025
UDIN: 25030304BMIPFNG 121
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditors’ Report of CIAN Agro

Industries & Infrastructures Limited

Referred to in paragraph 12 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Reguirement’ of
our report of even date fo the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

31stMarch, 2025:

L Inrespect of the Company’'s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

{A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitafive details

and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. Such records are maintained in electronic form and are
generated in legible form as.and when required for review. These electronic records remain accessible
and unaltered with clear idemtification of its ongin, destinabion, and date.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars ofintangible assets

According to the information and explanation given o us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has a regular programme of physical verificafion of it's Property,
plant and equipment by which all property, plant and eguipment are verified in a phased manner overa
penod of one year. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and eguipment were
verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regand to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Mo matenal discrepancies were noficed
on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basks of our examination of the
records of the Company, the file deeds of immovable properfies (other than immovable properiies
whare the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee)
disclosed in the standalone financial statemenis are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and intangible aszets dunng
the year.

According to the information and explanation given o us and on the basis of examination of reconds,
there are no proceedings that have been iniiated or-are pending against the company for hoiding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Frohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

Il. In respect of Inventory :

a)

b}

The inventory has been physically venfied by the management during the year. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noficed on verificaion between the physical
stocks and the book records that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

According to the information and explanafions given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has been sanchoned working capital limits in excess of five
crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of cument assets. However, the
quarterly retums or statements filed by the Company with such banks have not been provided o us for
verification. Accordingly, we are unable to comment on whether such retums or statements are in
agreemeni with the books of account of the Company.
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According to the information given o us and on the basis of examination of records, the company has
not made investments and has nol granted Ioans or advances in the nalure of loans, unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or to any other paries. Howewver, the company has
granted a financial guaraniee in respect of Loan taken by cne of the subsidiaries. Information inrespect.  of

a) The following table presents the particulars of financial guarantees provided by the entity:

Particulars (narantes Security Loans Advance in

nature of Loans
Varran 201163 Lakhs? - 353.10 Lakhs -
Aluminum

Private Limited

* Guarantee amount represenis the Net value of loan in respect of which guarantee is provided by the entity.
Since the financial guarantee fails the recognition criteria as per Ind AS therefore the camying amount of the
zame in the books s nil as at 3151 March 2025,

b} According to the information and explanations given o us and based on the sudit procedures
conducted by us, in.our opinion the terms and condifions of the guarantee and loan provided are, prima facie,
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company

The Company has not granted loans or provided any guarantees or securities o parties covered under section
185 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, invesiments made and guarantees and securiies provided,
as apphicable.

In owr opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepied
any deposits or any amount deemead to be deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives 1ssued
by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provizions of the Act
and the nides framed there under. Accordingly, clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has maintained cost accounts & records as nofified by the Gentral Govermment under sub-
saction (1) of Section 148 of the Act. in respectof the activities camied on by the Company. However, the cost
records were not made svailshle to us. Thus, s detalled examinafion of the same was not possible.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of
account, and records, the Company is in the practice of deposifing undispated statutory dues nciuding
Provident Fund, & Income-tax after the end of the respective financial year and dues related o Goods &
Services Tax at the end of every month with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations available to us. undisputed amounts of statutory dues, in amears as at 31stMarch, 2025 for a
penod of more than =ix months, are given as follows:

Statutory Dues Payable ﬂ"k‘:::l]“ (R, o
Provident Fund 36.70
Professlonal Tax .35
ESILC 0.70
TCS 362
TDS 77.96
Total 119.33
66
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b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tox,
goods & service tax outstanding on account of any dispute except for those mentioned below:

XL

XIL

K.

Nature of the Nature of | Forum where Period to which the | Amount [Rs.
stalute dues Dispute is Pending | Amount Relates In lakhs)
Goods and

. I ELRLE
service Tax Act, {:mds a%'j Appeliate Tribunal E; HERARG 130:21
2017 Service Tax

There were no fransachons relating o previously unrecorded income that have been surmrendered or disclosed
as income during the yearin the tax assessments under the Income TaxAct, 1961 (Sec43of 1961).

(=)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e}

{f)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Im our opinian, the company has not defaulied in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
ointerest thereon to any lender during the year.
The company has not been declared williul defaulter by any bank or financial institufion or Government
authorty or other lender.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the term loans,
prima facie, have been applied for the purposs forwhich they were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial siatements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis
have, prima facie, notbesn used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statemeanis of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to mest the obligations ofits subsidianies.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidianes, joint ventures or associate companies.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt
instruments} during the yearand hence reporting under clause 3(x ){a) of the Orderis not applicable.

Dwuring the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully or partly or opfionally) and hence reporting under clause 3{x)(b) of the Order
iz not applicable.

During the course of examination of books and records of the company, camied out within - accordance
with the applicable auditing standards and according to the information and explanation given to us, no
fraud by the company or on the company, by its officers or employees, has been noticed or reported during
the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by Cost Auditor or Secretarial Auditor and us, in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Audiiors ) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and up io the
date of this report.

There were no whistie biower complaints received by the Company during the year (and up to the date of
this re;port), and hence they were not considered.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporfing under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Siaterments as required by the applicabie indian
accounting siandards.
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(a) In our opinion, the company has an infemnal audit system in place but reguires strengthening o make it
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) The internal audil report for the year was not received by us as of the date of this report; accordingly, ithas not
been considered in forming our opinion under this clause.

Inouropinion and acconding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash fransactions with its directors or persons connected o its directors and hence, provisions of
Sechon 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1Aof the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3{xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable,

(b) In our opimon, there iz no core invesiment company within the Group {(as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Resernve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi){d) of the Orderis
nolapplicable._

The Company has not incurmed cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dales of realization of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the auditor's knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans, inour opinion no matenal uncerteinty exists as on the date of the
audit report that company is capable of meefing its liabilifies existing at the date of batance sheet asand when
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet dale; We, however, staie that this isnotan
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balsnce sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

{a) In respect of sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Companies Act, based upon the audit procedures
performed and the information and explanations given by the management, here is no such unspent
amount to be transferred to Fund specified in Schedule VI o the said act. Accordingly, the: provisions of
clause 3 (xx)of the Order are nol applicable to the Company and henoe not commented upon.

(b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management. there is no such amount remaining unspent under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Companies Act, pursuant to any ongoing project, that has been transferred fo spedial account in
compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.

For P. G. Joshi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 104416W

CA Avinash Joshi
Partner
M. Mo.: 030904

Piace : Nagpur
Date: 30/05/2025
UDIN: 25030904BMIPFNS121
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’'s Report of CIAN Agro Industries &
Infrastructures Limited for the year ended 31st March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid
standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Act

Referred to in paragraph 13(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Regquirement’
of our report of even date to the financial statemenis of the Company for the year ended
31stMarch, 2025

1.  We have audited the internal financial controds over financial reporfing of CIAN Agro industries & infrastructures
Limited as of 31=t March, 2025 in conjunciion with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controis

2 The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporiing oriferia esiablished by the Company considering the essential components of
intemal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilifies mclude the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controis that were operating effectively for ensuring the crderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguanding of its assels, the
prevention and detection of frauds and emors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibiiity is io express an opinion on the Company’s intermal financial controls over inancial reporiing based
on-cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Confrols
Ower Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issuad by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable toan audit of internal financial
controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
reqguire that we comply with ethical reguirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequalte infermal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all maternisl respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures fo ebtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial
conirols system over financial reporiing and their operating effectiveness. Dur audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporiing included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporiing,
assessing the risk that a materal weakness exists, and testing and evaluafing the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed nisk. The procedures selected depend on the audidor's
judgment, including the assessment of the nsks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements,
whether due to frawd or ermmor.

8. We believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and approgriaie to provide a basis for our audil
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference o standalone
financial siatements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting

&.

A company's internal financial controds with reference o financial statements is a pocess designed to provide
reasonabie assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial siatements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial
conirols with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that -

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faidy reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorzations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fimely detection of unauthorized acguisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s asseis that could have a matenal effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial confrols over financial reporting, including the possibility of
colfusion or improper management ovemde of controls, materal misstatements due to emor or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future
peniods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial control over financial reporting may become Inadequate
because of changes in condifions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deterorate.

Opinion

a.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all maleral respects, an adeguale internal financial controls system over
financial reporting except for the following malerial weaknesses identified:

a  Attenfion is drawn o the non-mainienances of properly documented processes/ policies including
documentation for recording of purchase, Sales, Manufacturing achivity, inventory including its valuation, Loans
and Invesiment activities elc.

b.  Tracking of processes to confirm that these controls are in line with the company's policy was not possible inthe
abzence of such documentabion:

However, our opinion in not gualified on the above matters.

Such infernal financial conirols over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31siMarch, 2025 which however,
need further strengthening, based on the intemal confrol over financial reporting critera established by the Company
considering the essential components of intermnal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Conirols Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For P. G. Joshi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 104416W

CA Avinash Joshi
Partner
M. Mo.: 030904

Piace : Nagpur
Date: 30/05/2025
UDIN: 25030904BMIPFNS121
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd.

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Paticutars NoteNo. | 345t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
L
{nuan-a.nenlma
. Plant and Equipenent 21 10, 78274 10,268.71
Lv} il Lhe.ﬂ.ml!l!. 22 = =
&) Capital Wiork-in-Progress
0} Goodaill = =
L}ﬂm ey 3 167 -1
asgels under de : -
;ﬁqarmte webopmend
#j‘m 4 10.773.58 15060
Loans ] 21080 =
i) CMlvEs Pof-cumnend Bnencisl easis 6 it B i 180.07
] I:IHLn‘ad Tan Assels (net)
Eﬂ' Oifsed Non-currenl aussts T 525550 280000
Tolsl non-current assels 27 Zral 1343224
TOTAL ASSETS
Current Assels
EZ} ] 1r.21126 1561753
I'w Asmeby
a2 2,.8500.00 6,394.08
'I'J'.BI:IE 10 2847 .30 383226
) Cash and cash 11 961 3814
E{? Bank Batances olher B (i) shive .
LosEns 12 366 66 'IEl‘IB
i) Oiheds 13 13381 B5. 78
&) Current Eax Asels (Mal) 11 14 m 10802
) Oeed currenl Gssats 15 1,844 80 5,060.26
Tolal current ossels 25418.15 3129822
TOTAL ASSETS 52,697 18 A4, TI0AT
. BQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{a] Equiy
) Equity stere capitel 16 2,7u8.50 279859
(b] Other equity 17 6,366.75 6,157.19
Tolat equily 2,165 34 895578
Mon cumrent [Eabslilies
Filnsncial lighilitien
- Borrowiimjs 18 307114 2091058
— 14a > -
b} Froviedons 20 prapy | 152.08
g:i[h!&ntd lax lshdities 21 1.5566.04 1.638.81
o) Ofheer mecay vl 22 - 1.404.82
Tolal non-current linbiilies 4 TRl TH 610637
3] Current lisbilithes
() Firssncisl lishilities
{i) 23 1095742 777861
Tmoe FPa 24
() " yalies of
and amall i 1£ 4 055
Tl edibors oy 13,33 11.703.43
e e
!: Tinmreciad Nabilithes 25 21362 274
Eﬁi rcument iabiliies b i} 12 16220 a Te0E2
o } Provesions b 2345 15091
Toltal Current linhilfliss 38, 76705 22 66832
Total Hebililies 43 531.54 35,7TT4.69
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIASILITIES 5269718 &, TI0.4T

Format of the above statement has been modified to include anly the heads applicable to the Comparry.

Material accounting policies 1
Notes to the financial statements z-a7

The notes referred to above form anintegral part of the financial statermants,

As per our attached report of even date

P.G. loshl & Ca,
For CIAM Agro Indusiries & infrastructors Limited e o

FRRN 1044 16%W
Nikhil Gadkari Jaykumar Varma MNakul Bhat Madhubala Dave Avinash P. Joshi
Managing Direchor Chairperson Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary Fartner

DM 00234 754 DiN-DOAXT Tz PAN: BGSPHETFON Mem No : FT2218 Membership No_: 030904
Place : Nagpur
Date : 30/05/2025
™
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CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Ltd.
Standalone Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2025

{Rs. In Lakhs}
: As at As at
Particulars Note No. | 315tMarch,2025 | 31stMarch, 2024

L. Hevenues thom Upem‘nﬂm 28 2580733 17.070.84
1L Oiher ndsme ' TEEAT 1,168.91
ML Total Income {1+l) 26, 38780 18,240.35
IV Expenses
Cost ol Material Consumed 30 5,064 o8 1.625.82
Conainiction maerts oonsianed 1 04365 5r1oe
Purchase al Slock in irade X2 743366 8,354
Changes in inveniony of Finkshed Goods, 3 {1,608 80) 17085
Wiork In Progress and Siod in Trade
Empioyes Benelits Experisses T 5192 65051
Fimatuse cosls 25 1.608.70 1,736
Degwreciafion, Depletion, ArmarEsson 21 TEI 0T &11.56
Oiher Expenses 36 203989 1,196.51
Tolal Expenses [IV) 36, 166.62 1768838
V. Profiti{loss) belore Exceplional ems and Tax 2118 55107
VL Esceplional lems - -
VIL Profitiloss) before Tax 2118 55187
VL Tax expense: ar
1. Casrent Tax 107 55 i Wl
2. Defemed Tax 4470 {1205
3. Tax Adjustments of revious year {26.59) {25 25}
X ProfitiiLoss) for the perod VIV 8552 505,06
X Other comprehensive income k]
{1} Mterrs thist will not be recesaifed Lo profil or loas (354 1411
{il} Ircorme tax retating bo dbems that will ot be - -
rechasaified o profil of ks

-3.54 141
XL Tolsl comprehensive income for the period a1.08 54847
NI Eafnings per eqully share 38
1. Basic 034 1.80
2. Dl 024 1.80

Farmat of the abowve siatement has been modified o inchide only the heads applicable o the Company.

Significant sccounting policies 1 As per pur attached report of even date
Notes to the financlal statements Z-47

The notes referrad to abova form amintegra! part of the financial staterments
For and on behall of the Board of Directors

P.G. Joshi & Co,
Charterad Accountants
FHMN 104416%
Nikhil Gadkari Jaykumar Varma MNakul Bhat Madhubala Dave Avinash P. Joshi
Managing Direchor Chairperson Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary Fartner
DM 00234 754 DiN-DOAXT Tz PAN: BGSPHETFON Mem No : FT2218 Membership No_: 030904
Place : Nagpur
Date : 30/05/2025
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid.
Statement of Cash flows for the period ended 31st March, 2025

Particuiars
Cash Flow from Operaling Activities
Profit After Lax
Adbiless:

Delered L Assel

Achursl gen on employee benefils (Gretuity)
Achstal gein on emplayes Denells (Lesve encasiyment)
Currenl T=x

Effect of Revalualion

Deprecision, Depleion, Amamsation
Finance costs

Intesess] Elervent o Falr Vahiation of Secunily [epsesit
Gaan/losa From Fores

Payment of Provisions

Interes! Incomes

Pregaid rend weiilen off

Dividend wwoarie

Arcournis Winilen ok

Galvloss Fram Sale of Propesty, Plant and Equigment
Acoiumts Wiithen off

Ganfloss frorm Tefminabion of Leass

Gamfloss on Fair Valustion of Financis Assets
Gainfiorss on Falr Vishsaton of Fnancss |ty
Inberest (N OCD

mmiimmmmw

(Imemesss) | Demeass in Trade Hecelvabies
[Incease) | Decteass in Other financial scssbs
(Increase) | Decresss in Oier sssels

Inrease | (Decrease) in Trade Poyabies
Imzease | (Dectease) in Ofer financial Eabililes
Increase | 1 in Provsions

increase | (Decease) in Other kaislibes

Cash gensrsted | (used) from opsralions
Incneme b (paid) | retoneds (nel)

Mel cash Mow trom | fused in) operaling sctivilbes

Cash Flow Irom Investing Activilbes
Addition bo Property, Flant amnd Equipsment
AdbeBilieay Tex Capitsl Work in Progress
Aaiidiion fo ntangible Assetls
Irveealrnenst in share copilsl of Sidvmidimies
Inwestmedl in share capitsl of alber snllly
I'-L'm-l:ldupnﬂitllhﬂ*ﬂ.

Losn { Depoall reosived

Indeses] incoms

Distbend Incarms

Curren ivvestmenl in OCD

Capital Advances

Seourly Deposis FPaid

Mt Cash Flow iromd{used) in mvesting Activilles

C

Cash Flow Irom Finencial Aclivilies

Hel Cash Flow fromdjused) in Financing Activilies

Net Increasel[Decrease) in Cash amd Cosh equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cssh equivalenis 2t the baginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Hel incresse in Cash and Cash eq

(R=. in Lakhs)
For the period ended | For the period unﬂndl
31st March, 2025 3i=t March, 2024
= K 51817
4470 1205
354 41
431 B
80.96 53.87
A0 B11.56
1,606 70 173671
. 055
066 -0.30
24AT L
1633 11.74
. 048
1.9 078
4Z350 -AGB 42
102 2357
2003
- 44812
52 45 -435.83
-31751
.88
1,896.70 212520
-1,593.73 1,330.84
204736 FE8.80
-S54 2824
Tz a4 S67.50
221 233947
1.028.54 24128
2607 2356
Y0657 30221
673815 6,514.78
6.738.15 6,514.78
A 28706 10051
-1 A0%.38 AE2 56
-250 -
-TOLTE -
14.72 B
179 0.78
-1, 100.00 0o
-2.455.58
-348
63121 38147
-390.5T a2913
. -89.15
-1, 60870 -1,593.82
288 21581
-2 041,15 -5,037.80
ASI521 1.095.80
6,443 85 -7,539.65
-8 05006 544185
61521 1,095.81

For CIAN Apro industries & Infrastructure [imited

Nikhil Gadkari Jaykumar Varma MNakul Bhat
Managing Direchor Chairperson Chief Finance Officer
DM 0034 75 DiN-O0A8F raz FAN BGSPHEI SN

Place : Mappur
Date = 30/05,/2025

T3

As per our attached report af even date

P.G. Joshi & Ca.
Chartered Accountants
FRMN 1048760
Madhubala Dave Avinash P. Joshi
Company Secretary Fartner
Mem No @ 112218 Membership No_: 030904
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Note 1: Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements

Corporate Information

CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. referred io as “CIAN" or “The Company™ was incorporated on 13th Day of
September 1985 under the name of Umred Agro Complex Lid. it was renamed fo its present name in the year 2015, The
Company is engaged in Agriculture, Healtheare and Infrastructure Division. it is listed on the BSE Limited in India. The
Company is primarily engaged in three divisions - Agro, Healthcare and Infrastruciure.

Material Accounfing Policy

Basis for Preparation

The Financial Staiements have been prepared inaccordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) read with section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 and presentation
requirements of Division Il of schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compiiant Schedule IIl), and as other
pronouncemeants of ICAlL provisions of the Companies Actand Rules and guidelines issued by SEBlas applicable.

The Financial Siatements are presented in INR{R=s.) which is also the company's functional currency and all values are
rounded io the nearest lakhs, excepl otherwise indicated.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assets and liabifities that are
measured at fairvalues, as explained in the accounting policies below

In the financial statements of the curment financial year, addiional disclosures were incorporated to ensure the true and fair
presentation of data. Furthermore, to uphold consistency and improve comparability, figures from prior years were
reclassified.

L Ciassification of Aszets and Lizbilities as Current and Non -Current

The company present assets and Fabilities in the balance sheet based on current / mon-current classification.

An assel is classified as cumeni when it is expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle or held primarily for the purpose of trading. All other asseis are diassified as non-current.

A lishility is classified as current when it i expected to be setfled in nommal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the setliement of the liahility for at least twelve months after the
reporting peniod. The company classifies all other iabiliies as non-cument.

Deferred tax assets and kabiliies are classified as non-cument asset and fiabilities.

The operaling cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as iis operating cycle.

.  Useof Estimates and Judgement

The preparation of the Standslone Financial Stalements requires management to make estimates, judgements and
assumptions thal affect the reported amount of assels, labilifes, revenue, expenses and contingenl liabilities and
accompanying disclosures parlaining to the year. Actual results may differ from such estimates.

Estimates and underying assumpfions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision in sccounting estimstes is
recognized prospectively and material revision, including s impact on financial statements, is reported in the notes to
acoounts in the year of incorporation of revision.

TS
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information about critical judgmenis in applying accouniing policies that have the most significant effect on the camying
amounts of assets and liabilifies and in respect of assumptions and estimates on uncertainties are as follows: -

- Determination of the estimsted useful lives of intangible assets and property, piant and equipment.

- Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations. Present value of the gratuity and leave encashment
obligation is determined using acluarial valuations_An actuanial valuafion involves making various assumplions fhat
may differ from achial developments in the future.

# In esfimating the fairvalue of financial assets and financial lisbifities.

o Recognition of deferred lax assets.

- Estimation of Expected Credit Loss on financial statement

- Assessment of Impairment on Assels

. Measurement of fair values

The Company measures ceslain financial instruments at fair value at each reporiing date. Fair value is the price thatb would
be received to =&l an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery transaction belween market pardicipants af the
measurement date in the pnncipal or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Company has access at
that date. The fair value of a liability also reflects its non-performance risk. The Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If the third-party information, such as broker quotes or prcing senvices, is
used to measure far values, then the Company assesses the evidence obiained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the leved in the fairvalue hierarchy in which the
valuations should be classified.

While measuring the fair value of an asset or liabifity, the Company uses observable market data as far as possibie. Fair
values are calegorised into different leveis in 3 fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted ) in active markets for identical assets orliabiities

= Level Z: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 thatare observable tor the assets or iability, efther
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (Le. derived from prices)

= Level 3: Inpulsfor the assets or iability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Certain accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non- financial
assets and fiabilities. Whan guoted price in active market for an instrument is available, the Company measures the fair
value of the instrument using that price_A market is regarded as active if transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

If there are no guoted prices in an active market, then the Company uses a valuation technigue that maximises the use of
relevant observable inpuis and minimises the use of unobservable inpuls. The chosen valuaiion technigue incorporates all
of the factors that market parficipants would take into account in pricing a transaction. Such factors may include Cuoted
Prices for Similar Assets or Liabilities, Interest Rates or Yield Curves, Credit Risk and Credit Spread, efc.

The best estimate of the fair value of a financial nstrument on initial recognition i normally the transaction price - i.e. the
fair value of the consideration given or received. [f the Company defermines that the fair vahie on inifial recognition differs
from the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a guoted price in an active market for an idenbical asset
or liability nor based on a valuation technique for which any unobservable inpuls are judged to be insignificant in relation to
the meazurement, then the financial instrumeni is inifially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between
the fairvalue on iniial recognifion and the transachon price.

Subsequently that difference is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, Other comprehensive income or retained
eamings as appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no Iater than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out

T6
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. Cashflow

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss i adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruails of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
items of income of expense associated with investing or financing cash fiows. The cash flows from operafing, investing
and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

For the purpose of presentation in the cash flow statement, cash and cash eguivalent would include ofher bank balance.

V. Foreign Currency Transaction

Monetary hems: Transactions inforeign cumencies are initially recorded at their respective exchangea rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabiliies denominated in foreign cumrency are transiated
into the reporiing cumency at the closing rate on the each reporiing date. Exchange differences arising on setfiement or
transiafion of monetary items are recognized in statement of profit and loss on forelgn currency fransaction.

Non-Monetary item: Mon- Monetary itern that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated
using the exchange rates at the date of initial iransaction.

Vi. Summary of Material Accounting Palicy

1. Property, Plant and Eguipment

a) Initial Recognifion and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized at Cost. Cost includes freight, dubies, taxes {other than those recoverable
by the enfity) and other expenses direclly inciddental to acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and installation. Such
costs also include bormowing cost if the recognition critena are met.

Spare paris which meet the definition of Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized as Property, Plant and Equipment.
In other cases, the spare parts are inventoried on procuremenl and charged to Statemenl of Profit and Loss on
CONSUMpHon.

b) Subseguent Expenditure
Subsequent cosis are included in the assel’s camying amount or recognised as a separate asset. as appropriste, only
when it is probabile that future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the company and the cost of the tem
can be measurad refiably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss during the
penod inwhich they are incurred.

The method of subsequent measurement for all classes of assets are given as follows:

Method of Subsequent Measurement Classes of Assois
Cost Modol Office Equipment, Computer, Electrical
{i.e_ cost less accumulated depreciabion and Installations, Lab Eguipment, VYehicles,
impairment loss) Cylinder, Fumniture & Fixture
Revaluation Model Land, Building, Plant and Machinery
(ie. cost plus revaluation gainfloss) less {Revaluation is done in every 3-5 year)
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss)

c) Depreciation

Depreciation has been provided on straight line method in terms of expected Iife span of assets as refermed toin Schedule i
of the Companies Act, 201.3. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporfing period, with the effect of any changes in esiimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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The range offapproximate useful life of the Property, Plant and Equipment are as follows:

Group of PPE Useful Life (in Years)

1. Plant and machinery B-25

2. Computer hardware 35

3. Fumniture and fixiures 5-10

4. Dffice equipment 510

5. Building 10-41

6. Vehicle a8

7. Blecirical Installation 10

8. Lab equipment 10

For PPE where the enfity has chosen the revaluation model!, the accumulated depreciation is offset against the revalued
amount.

As per Ind AS 16 the amount of revaluation surplus ansing on revaluation of PPE shall be transfemed to retained earnings
either-

. #t the end of each year during the life of the assetor
- may involve transierming the whole of the surplus when the asset is retired or disposed of.

Company has opled for second option of transfeming the whole of the surplus when the asset is retired or disposed of.

2. Intangible Asseat

intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are camed at cost less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of camying value of another asset

The Company has intangible assetin the nature of Computer software having useful iife of 3 years.

3. Financial Instrument

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives nse to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiability or equity
instrument of another enfity Financial assets and financial fabilifies are initizlly measured at fair value: Transaction costs
that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabifiies {other than financial at fair
value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair vaiue of the financial assets or financial lizbilities, as

a)  Financial Asseot

. Initial recognifion and measurement

All inancial as=sets are recognised instially at fair value plus, in the case of inancial asselz not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, ransachon costs that are afirbutable to the acquisifion of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, e, the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell ihe asset.

. Subsecguent measuremoent

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assets. Based on
the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characterisfics of the financial asset,
the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amoriised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit and loss.

[ Debtinstruments at amortisced cost

A'debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following condifions are met:
Thi aszet iz held within a business model whose objeclive is

T8
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- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest

(SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assels are subsequenily measured af amorfised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cosi is calaidated by taking into account amy discount or premium and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amor@isation is included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The

losses ansing fromimpairment are recognised in the Siatement of Profitand Loss.

ii. Debtinstruments at Fairvalue through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCH)

A’debtinstrument’ i= measured at the fairvalue through other comprehensive income it both the following conditions are met:

The asselis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

= Collecting comtraciual cash fiows and sefiing financial assets

- Contractual terms of the asset give nse on specified dates to cash fliows that are SPP1 on the principal amount

outstanding.

After inifial measurement, these assels are subsequently measured at fair value, any changes in value of debt instrument

are recognised through othercomprehensive income.

Balance in other comprehensive Income in relafion io fair valuafion reserve will be reclassified to profit and less on sale of

such debt instrument.

iii. Debtinstruments at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Fair value through profit and loss is a residual category for debt instruments_Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorization as at amortised cost or as FVOCL, is classified as at FVTPL After iniial measurement, any fair
value changes incleding any interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impairment loss and other net gains and

losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

This instrument is either investment in equity share of other eniity or denvative financial asset

Investment in equity share can be shown at FVTOC! under imevocable option (Le. can't show investment in equity at
FVTPL in future). In case of investment in equity share shown at FVOC) under imevocable oplion, fair valuation resenve on

sale of such investment will be transferred o retained eaming direcily.

. Imipairmont of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all inancial assets subsequent to iniial recognition other than financial assets in
FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade recetvables, as per ind AS 1039, the Company recognises 12 month
expected credit losses for all onginated or acquired financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial
assel has not increased significantly since its inffial recogniion. The expecited credit losses are measured as lifefime
expecied credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its inifial recognifion. The Company’s
frade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at
an amount equal to fife time expected losses Le. expected cash shortfall. The impaimment losses and reversals are

recognised in Staterment of Profit and Loss.

* Derecognifion of financial assots

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, orwhen it
transfers the financial asset and substanfially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of the assetio another party orwhen it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
assel On derecognition of a financial assetin its enlirety, the difference between the asset's camying amount and the sum
of the considerabon received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, is recognised in statement of profit and loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise besn recognised in the statement of profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset.
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b) Financial Liability

. Initial recognition and measuremant

Financial ahififes are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial Tabiiies are recognised inifially at fair value and, in the of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
diectly atiributable fransaction costs.

. Subscguent measuremoent
Financial iabiliies are subsequently measured at amorfised cost using the EIR (Eifective Interest Rate) method or are
measured atfairvalse through profit and loss with changes in fairvalue being recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial iabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting perods. The camying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at
amaoriised cost are determined based on the effective inferest method. Inlerest expense that is not capitslised as pari of
costs of an asset is incuded in the ‘Finance costs’line item in the statement of profit and loss. The effective interest method
iz a method of calculafing the amaortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating inferest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and
costs paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transacfion costs and other premiums or
discourts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, o the net camying
amournt on initial recognition.

iii. Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit orloss (FYVTPL)

Financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial labiliies held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as FVTPL. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if these are incurmed for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial iabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains orlosses
ansing on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit or foss.

. Derecognifion of inancial liabilitics

The Company derecognises financial fiabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are dischamged,
cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substanfial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the camying amount of the financial kability
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recogrised in the statement of profif and loss: In case of
derecognifion of financial liabilites refaling to promoters” contribution, the difference between the camying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognised inother equity.

- Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those confracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised inifislly as a liability at fair value through profit or loss,
adjusted for ransachion cosis that are direclly affributable o the issuance of the guaraniee. Subsequently, the lizbility 1=
measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amountrecognised less cumulstive amortisation.

4, Inventory

Imventores comprises of raw materials, stock-in-progress, finished goods and consumable stores. Inventories are valued
at cost or estimated net realizable whichever is lower after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered
necessary. The cost of inventories comprises of all cost of purchase, costof conversion and other cost incurred in bringing
inventories to their present location and condition. MNet reafisable value represents the estimaled selling price for
inveniofes less all estimated cosis necessary to make the sale.
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5. Leases
Company recognizes anght-of-use asset and a lease fability at the lease commencement date.

Right-of-use asset (ROU):

Thenght-of-use asset is inifially measured at cost. Cost comprises ofthe initial amount of the lease iability adjusied for any
lea=e paymenis made at or before the commencement date, any inifial direct costs incumed by the lessee, an estimate of
costs o dismantie and remove the underiying asset or to restore the underying asset or the site on which itis located less
any lease incentives received. After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset applying cost
model, which is Cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumuiated impairment losses. Right-of-use assetis
depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date to the earier of end of the useful life of the ROU
asset or the end of the lease term.

Lease liability:

Lease liability i= initially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date.
Discounting is done using the implicit interest rate in the lease, i that rate cannot be readily determined, then using
company’s incremental bormowing rate. Incremental bormowing rate is determined based on endity’s bormowing rate
adjusted for terms of the lease and type of the assetleased.

Subsequently, lease Fability i= measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease fability is re-
measured when there is a change in the leasze ferm, a change in iis assessment of whether if will exercise a purchass,
extension or termination oplion or a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is re-measured comesponding adjustment is made to the camying amount of the right-of-use asset.
tf the camying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced tozero it will be recorded in statement of profit and loss.
Right-of-use asset is presented as a separate category under “non-cumment assets” and lease fiabiliies are presented
under “Financial iabiliies” in the balance sheet.

6. Investmentin Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are camied at cost less accumulated impaiment losses, if any. Where an
indication of impairment exists, the camying amount of the investment is assessed and written down immediately fo its
recoverable amount.

The Company accounts for its invesiments in subsidiaries at cost in its separate financial siatements, in accordance with
Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements. Investments are reviewed st each reporting date for indicators of impaiment
and are impaired when there is objective evidence that the camying amouni exceeds the recoverable amount * In case of a
business combination, the Company applies the acquisiion method as presoibed under Ind AS 103 - Business
Combinationz. The ideniifiable as=els acquired and fiabilities assumed are measured al their acquisition-dabe fair values.
Any excess of the consideration transfermed over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recognized as
goodwill. If the consideration transferred is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recognized
as a gain in Other Comprehensive Income or Profit or Loss, after reassessing the fair values and the consideration
transferred.” Transaction costs incurmed n conneciion with a business combination are expensed as incumed, except for
cosis tossue debt or equily securibes, which are recognized in accondance with Ind AS 32 and Ind AS 109.7

7. Contract Asset/Liability:

Contract assets are recognised when there are excess of revenues eamed over bilings on contracts. Confract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and
only passage of fime s reguired, as per confractual terms. Uneamed and deferred revenue ("confract liability™) is
recognised when there are billings in excess of evenues.

8. Income Tax and Deferred Tax
1.  Income-tax Assels and labiliies are measured at the amount éxpecied o be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorifies. The iax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those thal are enacted or substantively

enacied, by the end of reporfing perod.

81

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025




CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Lid. m

CIAN —

2. Current Tax items are recognized in correlation to the underiying transaction either in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
cther comprehensive income or directly in equity.

3. Deferred iax is provided using the Batance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asseis
and liabifities and their camying amounts for financial reporiing purposes al the reporiing date.

4.  Defermed tax liabiliies are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred fax asseis are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences, the camy forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

5. Defemed tax assets are recognized io the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible iemporary differences, and the camy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be uhilised.
The camying amount of defemred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
Ilonger probahile that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the defermed tax asset io be ufilized.

6. Unrecognized defermed tax assels are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxabie profits will allow the defermmed iax as=etio be recovered.

7.  Deferred tax assels and lisbilities are measured at the tax rales that are expecied to apply in the yesr when the asset
is realized or the liahility is settied, based on iax rales and tax laws that have been enacted or subsiantively enacted at
the reporting date.

8. Defered tax assets and defemed tax iabilibes are offsel if a legally enforceabie right exdsis to set off cumrent tax asseis
against cument tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate lo the same taxable enfity and the same taxation authority.

9. Cash and Cash Equivalent

Cash and cash equivaients includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institulions, other shorter hightly liguid
investment with original maturities of three months or iess that are readily convertibie to know amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in values.

10. Rovenue Recognition

1. "As per provisionof IND AS 115 - Revenue from Confracts with Customer’, revenue is recognised on transfer of control
of goods or senvices o a customer ai an amount that refiects the consideration to which the Company is expecied o be
entitted to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured
at the amount of transaciion price (net of varabie consideration) allocaied to that performance obligation. The fransaction
price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of discounts offered by the Company
as part of the confraciual obligabion. Revenue (net of vanable consideration) is recognised only to the exient that it is highly
probable that the amount will not be subject to significant uncertainty regarding the amount of consideration that will be
derived from the sale of goods. The performance obligation in case of sale of goods is satished ata pointintime i.e_, when
the material is shipped 1o the customer or on delivery to the customer, as may be specified in the coniract Sales are net of
returns, irade discounts, rebates and sales taxes / Goods and Service Tax (GST).

2. Construction Contract: Revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided by output method as per Ind AS
115, the percentage of progress for determining the amount of revenue to recognise is assessed based on surveys
conducted by independent surveyor of work perfformed.

3. Securtty deposit interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rate that discounts the
esfimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments or a shorter period, whene
appropriate, to the net camying amount of the financisl assets. Other Interest income is recognized as and when received
atactual rate. Interestincome is included in otherincome in the Staterment of Profit and Loss.

4. Otherincome have been recognized on acorual basis in the financial slatements.

11. Employee Benefits

a) Short-Term Employee bencfits

All employee benefils payable wholly within bwelve months of rendering the service are classified as shord-term employee
benefitz. Benefits such as salaries, performance incenfives, elc., are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted
amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the yearinwhich the employes renders the related sernvice.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025




CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Lid. m

CIAN —

b) PostEmployment Benefits

. Defined Benefit Plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefi plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amounit of fulure benefit that employees have eamed in the curmrent and prior penods, afler discounting the same. The
calculation of defined benefit obligafions is performed annually by a qualified acluary using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit iabilily, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized
immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OC1). Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liabiity (assets) is
compuied by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liabiity (asset). Met interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the benefits of a plan are
changed or when a plan iz curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on
curtailment iz recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses on the
setiement of a defined benefit plan when the setflement occurs.

- Dafined Confribution Plans
FPayments made fo a defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident Fund Office
are charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss as they fall due.

12. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is probabie that an
outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to setfie the obligation and when a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required o
seffie the present obligation at the Balance Sheet dale. The expenses refaling to a provision is presented in the Statement
of Profif and Loss net of any reimbursemeant.

The Company uses significant judgements to contingent liabilities. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there
is 3 possible obligafion arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the ococurmence or non-
occurrence of one or more unceriain future events not wholly within the control of the company thal arises from past evenis
where it is either not probable that an outfiow of resources will be required io sefife the obligation or a reliable estimate of
the amount cannot be made.

13. Eamings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period atiribulable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the perod.

For the purpose of calcutafing diluted eamings per share, the net profit for the period attributed to equity shareholders and
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.
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Note 2.2
Right of Use Assets
(R, in Lakhs)
Description As at As at
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

(A) Cost
Opening Balance - 960,51
Additions - )
Deletions - 451.37
Closing Balance (1) . 509.13

(B) Accumulated Amortisation

Cpening Balance B 446.94
Amortization during the year - 62.20
Closing Balance (Il) 509.13

{C) Net Carrying Amount {I-11) - -

The lease agreements were terminated during the previous year, resulting in the derecognition of the associated
Right of Use assets from our fimancial statements.

Note 3
Other Intangible Assets
{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at As at
Description 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

(A) Cost
Opening Balance 1.87 37.33
Additions : :
Deletions i :
Closing Balance (1) 1.87 37.33

(B) Accumulated Amortisation

Opening Balance 38.85 30.35
Amortization during the year 5.1
Closing Balance (I1) ’
38.B5 35.46
(C) Met Carrying Amount (I-I1) 1.87 1.87

The carrying amount of the intangible asset represents its residual value, as it has been fully amortised during
the previous year.
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Mote 4
Imvestments - Non-Current
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A} Investment in Equity instruments
(i} Subsidiaries [Valued at cost)
{a) Clan Agro Limited (Foregn Subsidiary 6.28 628
{b)investment in Subsidiary - Avenzer Electricals & Infrastructurs Pyt Ltd. 1,408.97 -
feltviatment in Subsidiary - VAPL 2, 78742
[d]Investment in Subsidiary - Manas Power Ventures Put, Lid, 6,393.50 -
(i) Other Unguoted Equity instruments (Valued at cost)
{a} Yavatmal Urban Co. Op. Bank 17.50 1750
{b) Samruddhi Lirban Co.Op, Bank 296 2.96
{c) Wardha Nagarl Sahakarl 8ank 12.50 10.00
{d) Nagpur Nagrik Sahakari Bank 187 .87
(e} lankalyan Sahakari Bank Ltd 5.07 5.07
{f] TISB Bank Ltd, 0.20 .20
{g} Shares af Akala Urban Co.Dp. Bank 27.62 27.62
{h} INBD Express Private Limited D.01 .01
{i} Hestian Infra Project Developers Private limited -0.00 -0.00
(1ii] Other Unguoted Equity instruments
(Valued at fair value through 01
Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Lid, 5.64 5.64
(B) Investment in Preference share
(Valued at fair value through profit or loss)
Manas Agro Industries & Infrastuctiure Lid 102.45 102.45
Total 10,773.58 180.60

Particulars

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

- Appregate hook value of guoted investments

- Apprepate markel value of guoted Investmants

- Aggregate carrying value of unguooted investments

- Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of iInvestments

10,773.58

180,60

The Investment in ungquoled equity instruments of Banks have been made for obtalning loans or overdraft

facility a5 applicable, the above investments are valued at cost.
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MNote 5
Other Non-Current Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024

Non-Current | Current Maturities | Non-Current | Current Maturities

A, Loans to Realted parties

B. Other Loans

I} Loans recelvables Considered Good - Unsecured 210.60 87.68 =
Total 210.60 87.68 = =

The company holds non-current financial assets aring solaly from banking transactions, which are dassified as loans given at a 0%

coupon rate. in accondance with the requirernents of Ind AS 109

Financial Instruments, these assels have been fair valued using a

thiscount rate of 12%, determined bazed on the average of prevailing market interest rates and the creditworthiness of the company.

Note b6
Other Mon-Current Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 3ist March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A) Security Deposit 20,53 ir.07
{B) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
Fixed Daposits 233.72 163.01
Total 254.26 180.07

The Securitly Deposits are for accessing uliitios and have an indefinite life, hence il & impracticable to determine their fair valoe

Mote 7
Other Non-Current Assels {Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 315t March, 2024
[A) Capital Advances 5.255.59 300,00
(8] Advances other than Capital Advances < 2,504.00
[} Prepald Rent on falr Valuation .
Total 5.255.59 2,B00.0D
Mote 8
Inventories {Rs, in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | Asat 31st March, 2024
{A) Raw Materials {Including Packing Matarials) 528.31 1,023 3232
(8] Work-in-progass 2,616.32 2,360.99
IC] Capital WIP- GBDK 204.43 -
(O] Finlshed Goods 4,820.02 4,517.89
[E} Stock-in-trade 332703 2,.274.60
[F} Stores and spares 5.060.19 5,358.02
(5] Comsurmakbles 54.97 TR.E2
Total 17,211,26 15,617.53

&7
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1 valuation Technique Inventory s valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (MEV) Throughout the year, the compary
conducted inspections to identify amy matonal decrepancies that could result ina significant decline in NRV. Mo such discrepancies

were found durtng the year.

2. The Work- in-progress amoun! includes the cost of land and development costs with respect to the projects.

3. Forinventory pledged as security, reler Mote Mo, 18

MNote 9
Investments - Current {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Face Value | Mo of SharesfUnits | As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024

Unquoted Investment in optionally convertible
debenture of Subsidiary Entitios 10:00 280.00 2,800.00 6,394.08
Total 2,800.00 6,394.08
Particulars 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
- Aggregate hook value of guoted investments - =
- Aggregate market value of quoted investments - -
- Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investmeants 1 B00.00 b6,394.08
- Aggregata amaunt of impairment in the value of investments - .

1 During the previous financial year, the Company invested in 639 35 lakh Optionally Cormvertible Debentuness (OCDs) with a face value

of T10 each, issued by Manas Power Ventures Pyt Lid,, carrying a coupon rate of 0.01% per annum. The OCDs were comvertible inlo a
fixed number of equity shares at the option of the Comgpany, and during the current financial year, the Company exercised this option,
converting the OCDs into equity shares based on the issuer's most recert valuation report. The Company invested in 581 equity shares
of T10 each at a premivm of T11,00.420 per share of Manas Power Ventures Privale Limited for an aggregate amount of ¥63,93,49 830
by way of subscription 1o the Preferenfial lssue made a2 per the terms of conversion and the agreement entered
between the companies.,

The Company has invested in 280 lakh Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCD<) of T10 each, carmng a 0.01% pa coupon rate,
wsued by Manas Power Ventures Pyl Lid, whichwere purchazed from Innopac Private Limited, These OC0s are convertible into 0.01%
Redeemable Non-Cumulative Preference Shares at the Company’s option, and the Company intends to exercise this option in the

upcorning financal year

Naote 10

Trade Racelvablis - Curreni {Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Ag 3l 315t March, 2035 | As ab 3151 March, 2024

A. Trade Aecelvables - Considered Good Unsecured

{1 Due froim Aelated Farty 1,360.41
(il Dude B ks 2,848730 248195
Tetal I,847.30 3..332.]5

Trade Receivables Agelng Schedubes as at 315t March 1025

ChutstarmeSieg Tor Tollawing et Treem dos date of gayment
Particulars

it thian & rmosths | 6 meerth - L ysar 1-2 e I-Ayman | Mona than 3 years Taual
Undesputed Trade roceivatles — considored good 57 86 2671 EOE LG TEOLET 3I50 | 284730
Unidsputed Trade Receivables ~ which have signifieant increase in oedin risk
Ungsputed Trade Recaivabies = credit impaired
Diegubed Trade Fec evablds—onsidered good - - -
Disputed Trade Recenvabies — which hnée sgnificant sncrease o credit risk = = =
Digputed Trade Recesvahlio: — credit imapaired - - - - - -
Total 55786 326,71 60616 THO.ET 37570 2,B47.30
Trade Hecelvables Ageing Schedule as at 315t March 2024

gs
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Dutstanding baf fellowing perdods feom duo dans of gadimisnt
Particutars
Lass than G masiths b maaihs - 1 jasr 1.3 yoar T ywars | Waoie then 3 ysars Tatal
Ursthizguted Trade receivables — cormidered good SR1.32 §85.7H | L31L48 102,03 1,351 65 | 3.H37.36
Urtlizgurad Trage Rapgivalios — which have significont merpages i credib rish
Urdisputed Trade Receivables - credit impained
Disputed Trade Aecenvables—comsdered good -
Dixputed Trade Aecenwables — which have significant inoreaze in credit risk
Disputed Trade Heconables — credit impamod - - - - - -
Tatal 51,32 485.78 | 131148 | 10209 135165 | 383326
Note 11
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
{A) Balances with Banks
In Current Accounts 32.45 24.40
{B) Cash on hand 37.16 13.74
Total 69.61 38.14
Mote 12
Loans - Current {RS- in LakhEl'
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
{A) Loans to Realted parties '
(i) Intercorporate Deposit - VAPL 353.10 -
(8) Other Loans
(i) Loans receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 13.56 182.16
Total 366.66 182.16
Note 13
Other Financial Assets - Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
|A) Advances other than capital advances,
(i) Security Deposit 1.73 15.73
(B} Others
i} Receivable from Subsidiary Companies 0.00 0.03
(it} Interest Receivable from Subsidiary Companies 0.88 -
(iii) Other Financial Assets - Current 131.00 S0.00
Total 133.61 65.76

“The securily deposit receivable represents the amount stifl receivable from parties whoss lease agreements have been terminated.

Other Financial Azsets - current incliudes the advance given for the acquisition of Companies through MNCLT®
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MNote 14
Current Tax Assets (Net) {Rs, in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
{A) Income Tax
(¢} Tax Deducted at Source Receivable 81.73 44,98
(1} Tax Collected at Source Receivable 24.20 24.06
[li)Refund Receivable - Previous years 38.98 38,98
Total 144.91 108.02
Note 15
Other Current Assets {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(&) Advances other than Capital Advances
(i) Advance to Suppliers 1,672.77 1,209.59
(i) Advance to Related Party 137.87
{iii) Advance to Directors 16566
(B) Others
(i) Statutory Dues 171.53 -8.72
{ii} Prepaid Expenses 0.50 1.00
(i) Varron Aluminiom Pyt Led. - 3,550.86
Total 1,844.80 5,060.26

During the previous financial year, the Company had paid a sum of 03,550 86 lakhs towsrds the acguisttion of Varmon Aluminium
Private Limited wnder the resalifion plan approved by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) The procedurat and
legat formalities related to the acquisition were completed in the current financiad year, and control over the entity was obtained
on 1ith August 2024 Accordingly, the investment has been recognoed and recorded under “Investment in Eouity

instruments” in the financial statements for the current year{Refer Mote No_4)

Note 16
Equity Share Capltal [Fs. in Lakhs)
Partkculars As at 31st March, 2025 | As ot 315t March, 2024
|{&} Authorised Capital
(i} Equity Share Capltal 4 475,00 4.475.00
4,46,00,000 shares of Rs, 10 each {peevious year £,46,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 20
irach)
lilj Preferance Share Capital
15000 Shares of Rs, 100 each {Prevous year 15000 shares of Bs, 100 each)
(B} ssued, Subseribed and Paid-up Capital
(¢} Eguity Share Capital 275859 275859
2.79,85,895 shares of Rs. 10 each (preveaus year 2,759,85,895 shares.of As. 10 each|
Total 1,758.59 1,798.59

The Campany has |ssued only ane class of shares namiely equity shares having & par valus of Ba 10 per share_ Each halder of equity shares |5

entitied torone vote per share,

Reconciliation of No. of Equity Shares

Partieulars As ot 315t March, 2025 | As at 315t March, 2024
Opening Balance 279.85 27986
Shares lssued . :
Closing Balanca 2T9.88 279.86
a0
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Details of sharehalders holding more than 5% shares
(Mo.af shares in lakhs]

As at 31st March 2025 As st 315t Muarch, 2024

Name af Shareholder ' PeiCethge Changs
= — during the year

Mumbser of shares :'EI M“! ::rng Number af shares ﬂﬂmfﬂﬁm
Chadtanya Constructions and Buliders Pt Lid ilh 1.TH 215 1w 0.0%
Purti Marketing Pt Litd a45.2 16.2% 452 16:3% 0.0%:
Avimash Fuals Pt Lid 7313 2618 7313 26.1% 0.0%
Purki Contract Farmmg Pt Lid a7 15.8% /.7 13.E% 0%
Tats 176.53 53.8% 178.53 53.8% 0L

The Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, wvide s order dated Fh May, 2025, approved the amalgamation of Avinash
Fuets Private Limited, Purti Marketing Privete Limited, Greenedge Constructions Private Limited, Nagpur Sugars Private
Lirmitesd, & Purti Contract Farming Private Limited into Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Private timited. This merger,
effective from 30th September and 1st October 20024, consolidates 66 88% promoter hodding wn CLAN Agro industnes and
tnfrastructure Limited under a single entity.

Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2025

Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares % Change dirtng tha
periad
Sundartal Mahadeo Kharkikar S0.00 0,00, 0%
Nanda Shirish Harode 7.500.00 0.03% o=
Kalpana Trilokehand Sorte 1,800.00 0.0i% 0%
Dattu Balaji Kalambkar 1.000.00 0.00% O
Uday Amrul Lambat 500,00 0.00% 0%
¥eshao Bhaskarrao Chandle SO0 00 0.00%, o
Pravipy Waman Bakde 3,000.00 0.01% O
Preetu amrut Lambat 2.000.00 0.01% 05
Swdher shrihar Yoditel 1,000.00 0.00% [0,
Anand Shankar Kamat 1,03,500.04 0.37% [0
Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Pyt Lid 21.50,00:0.00 7.6E% o
Purtl Marketing Pt Ltd 45,20,000,00 16,15% 0%
Avinash Fuels Pvi. Lid, 73.13,290.00 26.13% 0
Purtl Contract Farming Pyt, Lid. 28,70,000.00 13.53% (04
Greenedge Constructions Private Limited B,63.531.00 3.09% i
MM Actly Scl -Tech Communlcations Private Limlted 1,00,000.00 0.36% 0%
Taotal 1,85,38,121.00 67.6T%

Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2024

Promoter Name MNo. of shares % of total shares % Change during the
period
Sundartal Mahadeo Kharbikai 500,00 0.00% 0%
Manda Shirish Harode 7.500.00 D.03% 0%
Kalpana Trilokchand Sorte 1,800.00 0.01% 0%
Dattu Balaji Kalamkar 1,000.00 0.00% &e
Uday Amrut Lambat S00.00 0.00% 0%
Keshao Bhaskarvao Chandle 500.00 0.00% 0%
Pravin Waman Bakde 3,000.00 0.01% 0%
Preetu Amrut Lambat 2,000.00 0.01% 0%
Sudher Shrihari Voditel 1,000,030 0.0 0%
Anand Shankar Kamat 1,03,500.00 0.37% 0%
Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Pyt Ltd 21.50,000.00 7.68% 0%
Purti Marketing Pvt Ltd 45 20,000.00 16.15% 0%
Awinash Fuels Pyt Lid, 73,13.290.00 25.13% 0%
Purti Comtract Farming Pyt Ltd. 38,70,000.00 13.83% 0%
Greenedge Constructions Private Limited 8.63,531.00 3.09% 0%
MM Activ 5ci -Tech Communications Private Limited 1,00,000.030 0, 36% 0%
Total 1,89,38,121.00 B67.67%
5 |
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Mote 17
Othe
r Equity [Rx. in Lakhs)
Particulars As Bt 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
{A) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 46856 46856
Closing Balance 468,56 AbE.56
B} Capital Reserve created on account of comman eantrol transactions
Gpening Balance 177.06 177.06
Closing Balance 177.06 177.06
(€] Securities Premium
Crpening Balance 3183 121.93
Chosing Balance 32193 321,93
[B) Revaluation Reserve
Dpening Balance 6,3214.89 bS5 11
Less: Unwinding OFf Revaluation Surpius to Retained Earmimgs 152,21 5722
Less: Transfer made during the year via 0Ll to retained earnings - -
Closing Balance 5,572,566 5,024.89
(E} Retained Earnings
Opening balance -835.26 -2,046.22
Add : Profit/iLassHHor the year as per Staterment of Profit and Loss §5.52 50506
Add : Unwinding of revalsation surplus 452.23 5vd22
Add : Ureanding of revaluation surplus|Deferred Tax] 117.58 117,58
Add : Other Comprehensive income for the year as per Staterment of Profit and Loss -3.54 1411
Less: interest Element of 50 - -
Closing Balamoe -173.48 -B35.26
Tokal b, 366,75 6,157.19

Nature and purpose of components of other equity
(&) Capital Rusarva

Capital Reserve represents profits and gains of a capital nature, which are not avallable for distnbuton as dividends 1t |s. @ fund set zside for
major iong term investments and other anticipated expenses which are legally permissible, and are In accordance with Companies Act, 2013 and

applicable Ind A5,

{B) Capltal Reserve created on account of common control transactions

Caplial Reserve created on acoount ol eammon contral transaciions i the gain on recognition of Merger of the company's erstwhile subsidiaries
with the company during the financial yenr 201%-20, as per the requirements of Ind A5 103 Business Combanation

{C) Securitles Premloem

Securities premium is used to record the premium on Bswe of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of

the Companies Act, 2013,

{0} Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation Reserve b5 gain on mvaluation of company's Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets, It is transferred to Retained
oarmings in the proportion of the pioess depeeciation charged 1o Statement of Profit & Loss ewory yoar,

(E] Retained Earmings

Retainad Esrmings represant the accumulated net profits ar losses of the Compeny sfter adjusting for dividends, appropriations, and trensfers it
Includes movernents fram Other Comprehensive tncome [DC1), Revaluation Reserve, and other equity adjustments as per the applicable

accounting framework.
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Mote 28
Borrowings = Mon Current
[Fs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 21st March, 2024
Peon-Currant Currant Maturitios Mon-Currant Current Matwerities
[A] Term Loans
(i Gubranteed by diveciors or oflers
|a} Fram Bonks - Secured L171EZ THO1S 1,442,890 734 54

() Other Loans

|i1 Intercorporate Deposity - Unescured 116591 GAR2E) | 26766 46050

{id] Laan = others 434,41 b 4
Tatal 3,071,314 1,293.85 2,910,586 1,185.14

Intercarparate Deposits include amount payable to iKhare and Tardunde Infrestrecture Pyt Ltd, Suchan amount was recetvedas a

performance security to form a joint venture for a housing Infrastructure development project to be taken up based on the
project’s feasibility. However, both parties have backed off the agreement and the amount has been reclassified as intercomporate
deposi! having a tenure of 5 years. The carrying amount of the iability has been far valued.

“Loan - Others” includes balances that have boeen reclassified as financi Labilities during the current reporting perod. Previously,
the Company had received advance payments intended for trade transactions, which ultimately did not materalise In light of the
curmenl facts and circumstances, these advances have been massessed and reclassified @ bormowings.

This reclassification and falr valuation have been made in accordance with the requirements of nd AS 109 - Financial Instruments

and ind AS 113 - Fair Value Measurermenl.

Detalls of Security and Terms of Repayment

[Rs. im Lakhs)
Amount Outstanding as
Parti T i
articulars on 31 035 erms of Repayment Security
fepayable In 25-26 by
T L f Bank 14.62 Land & Buildi
2rm Loans fram Banks Mosthl: Instaliments o & Building
Land & Bullding, Plant
Repayment in FY 2728
i 9949 13 B hime th
Term Loans.-oany Sany i by Monthly Instaliments Mnchinery af se
sploes unik
Plant & Machinery,
Land & Building, Stock,
Tesrm Loans from Banks 19995 Ropayable in 25-26 by Dabiors of the
Monthly Instaliments ;
plpharnsg processing
unit
g Repayable In 26-27 by ,
Tarm Loans from Banks 24336 Monthly Instaliments Land & Building
Piant & Machinery,
|Land & Building, Stock,
-2B
Terrm Loans froem Bunks 34.30 Fépayatis -in-25-35 by Debitoes of the
Monthiy Instaliments .
Aluminium pracessing
unit
PMant & Machinery,
JLand & Bullding, Stock,
Term Loans from Banks 11 96 rapiabie, n 2325 oy Debiors of the
Monthly Instaliments 4 .
Aluminium processing
unit
Repayable in 27-2B hy
4
Term Loans trom Banke A7437 Manthly Instaliments Land
Repayable In 25-36 by
| ks 478 Vehicke
bkt e Monthly Instaliments g
R abl 8-
Other Loans 1754.15 epayable in 2872 hy
yeariy Installments

The rate of interast for term loans from banks ranges from 11% paa to 13.75% pa
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Mote 19
Lease Liabilities - Non Current

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

Lease Liabilities

Total

The lease agreement was terminated during the previous year, resulting in the derecognition of the associated Lease

Liabilities from our financial statements.

MNote 20
Provisions - Non Current {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
A. Provision for employee benefits
(i) Provision for Leave encashment 14.68 18.54
(i} Provision for Retiremeant gratuity 42.64 47.37
{ili} Provision for Bonus 1838 21.20
{iv] Provision for Ex Gratia 50.92 64.97
Total 127.61 152.08

Movemant in Non Current Provisions

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

A, Provision for Employee Benefits
Balance as at 1st April 2024
Provisions made during the year
Provisions utilisad during the vear
Provisions reversed during the yvear
Balance asat 315t March 2025

152.08
36,35
65.59

122.84

Additional Information about Provisions

The Provision for Employes Benefits has boen ereated for the liability of employee benefits payvable beyond 13
mienths to employess during thelr employment and postretirerment. The amount of sutflows expected and its

tirming is as per the actuarial report.

MNote 21
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A} Deferred Tax Liabilities
Froperty Plant and Equipment 1,680.39 1,777.81
Gross Deferred Tax Liahilities Total (1) 1,680.39 1,777.81
(B) Deferred Tax Assets
(7] Provision for Expenses 4077 40.78
(il) Provision for Stalutory Dues Payabla 9.76 7.99
(fii] Unused Tax Credits/ Losses 6381 90,13
Gross Deferred Tax Assets Tatal (1) 114.35 138,90
MNet Deferred Tax Liabilities Total {1 - 11) 1,566.04 1,638.91
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Beiiidi Opuning Al nu‘riu1l-r aninad in Necognitad in othes | Recognived directly in | Cloing Baldnos ai @
Apwil, 3034 el gl diiad Livik et prhsdsive S nijulty a0 Masck, 2025
[Taw oHect of ioma constauting Deferred Tax LisbiSgies: |
i} RIS Azt
[ii] Pregerty Plang sod Equipmen| Ll 216 -11754 LRSS
Total LA 1,777.81 20.16 158038
Tan effect of Hema constsuting Beferred Tag Assats:
|1} Provaidean Rar Enpeinieng an -0 AT
|1 Provisicn hor Staneory Dues Payabin 7an LF7 78
|10] Temisedt Ton Croditsy Losses R 2032 LT}
Total {B]) 138.50 .05 11435
Dcferrod Tux Labaltes (Notl Totml bacB) | 1,638,591 348,71 - 1,556.04

Movement in Deferred Tax Lability (Wet) for she year essded 1351 March 2024

Lt Opaning Balamci as. u:lullhh' risad in st dinOhis | Reoageisd directly in | Closing balapes ug &t
Apdil, B33 oo ol sl Loks o prahsnsive Incame uqulty Iisa Masch, 2034
Tax eMect of Hems constiuging Deferred Taus Lishsigies |
|1} RO Basimt 13355 SEERY -
1] Prespeeety Pland sesd Equipmuni A7 4R 1891 -117 58 1,7TTRL
Tioaal {4 20L0.0] 114,62 -117.58] L77T.AL
Tax eHert of temn canybfuting Deferred Tan Assets;
Il Prosbie far s 37 4 EETRI agn
[il] Prosasen fhe Stahstory Dues Fayabla 14.37 £ 37HESS FET]
11M) Uemnsnad Tacy Creadit sy Losses LK1 FL51A97H =013
Total {8] 70.95 57.96 132390
Deferred Tax Liabafities (Net] Toanl {40} 1535.07 -182.5H] 153891
Note 22
Other Non Current Liabikitiss {Ra. in Lakhs)
Particulars As @t 315t March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
Advance from Customers U0 1404 82
Total 0041 1404 432{
Note 23
Borrowings- Currant {Hs. bn Lakhs)
Particulars As at 315t March, 2025 | As at 315t March, 2024
[A) Leans Repayable on Demand
(i} Guaranteed by directurs or others
[a) From Banks
|.1.:| Cash Credit fram Bank - Secured 2,014 .68 1,305,648
[2} Gverdraft from Bank - Secured 6,113.99 517235
[B) Loans from Related Partigs Bi&B.29 -
[C) Dther Loans and Advances
(1) intercorporate Depoaits BA.50 101.44
[D) Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Refer Note | 1,893.E6 1,195.14
Tatal 10,957.42 7.778.61
Security

1 Cashoedit faclity of Rs.1, 30817 Lakhs from banks b secured by hypothecaticn of Plant 8 Machmery, Land & Bullding Stock,
Debtors of the Alumirdum processing unit
2 Owverdraft facdity of Rs. 99248 Lakhes from banks s secured by hypothecation of Land & Building. Plant & Machinery of the spices
unit. 3. Overdraft facility of Rs. 5,121 51 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Plant & Machinery, Land £ Building, Stock,

Debittws of the Chl processing unit

4. Cash oredit facility of R=. 706,51 Lakhe from barks is secured by hypothecation of Stock and Debtors of Alphonso Mango Processing

Uit
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Note 24
Trade Payables - Current {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 315t March, 2024
{A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 4.40 a.ss
enterprises ’ ’
(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre
enterprises and small enterprises
(1} Due to Related Partles 3,713.89 34.44
(i) Due to Others §,589.43 11,668.99
Total 13,307.72 11,703,98|
(i} Details of Due to MSME
On the basis of the information and records available with management, details of duss to micro and small
enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 are as belaw: 3
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
il Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplieras at the
year and. 4.40 0.55)

ii) Interest due thereon

i} Amount of interest paid in terms of section 16 of the
MEMED Act, along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyand the appointed day during the accounting
year,

v} Amount of interest dus and payable for the period of delay
in making paymeant {which have been paid but bevand the
appointed day during the period) but without adding the
intarest specified under the MSMED Act

v) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpald at the end

. 1 031 0.07
of the accounting year.
vi} Amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in succeeding vears
{il] Againg Schedols
{a) As at 315t March, 2025 {Rs. in Lakhs)
Outstanding for followl erlods from due date of payment
Particulars ing il paym Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 ¥ears 2-3 Yoars Maore than 3 Yoars
(1] MSME 4,40 4.40
(2] Others 931231 £,586.62 1B4.27 124013 13,308.32
(3] Disputed - MSME - - -
(4] Qisputad - Others
Total 5,316.71 2,566,621 184.27 1,X40.12 13,307.72
“ﬂ Ais at 31st March, 2024 '“5. in I.Eihib
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars i . ook Ll Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years
i1 MSMIE 0.55 - - - 0.55%
(2] Others T71754 144861 28114 1,256.13 11,703.43
I3] Disputed - MSME - - - -
td] Disputed - Othars E - } i
Taotal 7.718.09 2,448.61 281.14 1,256.13 11,703.98

Refer Mote 29 for detalls of trade payables written back and recognised under Other Income.
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Note 25
Other Financial Liabilities- Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A} Accrued Expenses 59.59 39.55
|B) Payahle to Staff and Associates 188.67 224.56
{C) Payable to Preference Shareholders - 9.90
(D) Performance Security 188.00 -
(E} Other Payables 1,700.00 -
Total 2,136.25 274.01
Note 26
Other Current Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A) Revenue received in Advance 11,647.06 835079
(8) Other Advances
{i} Advance against land sale sgreement 148.20 250.00
(i} Advance from related parties - 758.02
(C) Others
{i} Statutory Dues payable 133.83 158.55
{ii} Others 23311 243.06
Total 12,162.20 9.760.82
Note 27
Prowvisions- Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(&) Provision for Employee Benafits
(i} Provision for Leave encashment 8.25 1.82
(i} Prevision for Retiremeant gratuity 20.97 2.95
(B) Provision for Tax
(I} Incarme Tax 107.55 84.22
(C) Others
(1) Prowision for GST Demand 923 0,23
(i) Prowision for Audit Fees h4,27 49.51
(i) Prowision for Income Tax Demand 3.19 3.19
Total 203.45 150.91

a7
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Movement in Current Provisions
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Particulars

As at31st March,2025

(A) Provision for Employee Benefits
Balance as at 1st April 2024
Provisions made during the year
Provisions utilised during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2025

(B} Provision for Tax
Balance as at 1st April 2024
Provisions made during the year
Provisions utilised during the year
Provisions reversed during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2025

(C) Others
Balance as at 1st April 2024
Provisions made during the year
Provisions utilised during the year
Provisions reversed during the year

Balance as at 31st March 2025

4.76
24.46

29.22

B84.22
107.55
84.22

107.55

61.93
25.00
20.24

66.69

Additional Information about Provisions

A. Provision for Employee Benefits

The Provision for Employee Benefits has been created for the liability of employee
benafits payable within 12 months. The amount of outflows expected and jts timing is as

per the actuarial report,

B. Provision for Tax

The Provision for Tax is created for the income tax liability expected to arise in the

Assessment Year 2025-26.
C. Others

Other Provisions include the amount provided for G5T and Income Tax demand. The
company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately
provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where
applicable, in its standalone financial statements.

Note 28
Revenue from Operations
For the period For the Period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March,2025 March, 2024
(A) Revenue from:
(i} Sale of Praducts 25,621.33 16,871.37
(i) S5ale of Services . 200.00
(B) Less: Discount .43
Tatal 25,621,223 17.070.94

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025



CIAN Agro Indusinies & Infrastructure Lid.

Mate 29
Other Income
For the period For the Period
Particulars ended 315t onded 315t
March 2025 March, 2024
liA) Interest Income
[IJErterest On Fixed Depasit 16,31 11.19
[iiinterest on Security Deposit against rent - .55
[liijinterest Income On Debenturesfinvestments 0.33 064
{ivhinverest Received from Inans and advancoes 1 L]
{8) Dividend Income 175 0.78
||} Crther non operating income
[iJForesgn Exchange fluctuations [net) 5.54 -2
(i |Acoounts Written back 413.59 408.42
[liplnoorme from rent 135 .85
[lvkEain on Reduction of Lease Tarm - 145.12
[WlDther Receipts 0.04 0.02
[wi} Galn on falr valuation of Loan{Befer note Below) 31751 508.84
Total Teb.47 1,169.41

CIAN —

During the year, the company has written back cortain trade payablies that were outstanding for a pefiod excoeding 3
yiars, These payables pertalined to vendoes with whesn no transpctlens or feconeliations had taken place i recent
years, Based on management's assessment, these amounts were no longar considered payable due to factors such as
the expiry of the limitation penod sndor applicatie laws, absance of caims from vendors, and closurn or imactivity of
vendor secounts, Aecordingly, such baldneés were derdcognised snd ereditéd to the Statement of Prafit and Loss
wnder ather income

The company bas also recognized a Galn of Bs 317.51 Lakhe on account of falr valwtion of Loan as ger IND A5 109 -
Financial Instrameants, Such Galn has arose due to the différence between the Talr value of laan and the earrying
amount of loan as at the regorting period. This has been classified under the head "Other Income” In the Statement of

Profit and Loss

Mote 30
Cost of materfal consumed
For the periad For the Perhod
Particulars ended 315t ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
{A) Opening Stock
(i) Raw Material (includes packing material) 102722 103561
fii] Consumabiles TE.87 323,05
fiith 51lares B Spares 5,358,070 4,734,390
Tatal 6,464,06 6,032,956
{B) Add - Purchasss
(1} Raw Material {includes packing material) 252427 1,050.08
(i} Consumables 10,90 1.02
{iidh Stores & Spares 248365 §as.82
Tatal 5,018.81 1,996,32
) Less: Chosing Stock
[i] Raw Material {includes packing material) 528,31 1027322
[Il] Consumatifes 54,97 TE.E2
(I} Stores & Spares 5.514.61 5.358.02
Total E,B-'E?.H‘ EE!-EA.M
Tatal 5./084.98 1,625,852

The figures disclosed for raw materials consumed are based on derived consumption. These figures are calculated by
deducting the closing imentery from the sum of the opening inventory and purchases, They may concoal losses,

shortages, of wastagss.

Furthermare, it is not practical for the company to maintain such record on actual basis
Howeyer, The patential lnsses and wastages are proporly accounted by the Company.
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Note 31
Construction Material Consumed
For the period For the Period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Construction Material Consumed 28436 571.02
Total 194.36 571.02
MNote 32
Purchase of Stock In Trade
For the period For the Period
Particulars ended 3ist ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Purchase of stock in trade 17,434.44 9,395.05
Less; Discount on purchases -0.78 -0.76
Total 17,433.66 9,394.29
Mote 33
Changes in inventory of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade
Far the periad For the Period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
(&) Finished Goods
Opening Stock 451789 111452
Clasing Stock 4,820.02 4,517.8%
Met {increase)/ decrease -302.13 -1,403.37
(B8] Work-in-Progress
Opening Stock 2,360.59 201831
Closing Stock 2,616.32 2,360.9%
Met {increasa)/ decrease -255.313 -342.68
(C) Stock-in-trade
Opening Stock 2.274.60 572258
Clasing Stock 3,327.03 2,274,650
Met lincrease}/ decrease -1,052.43 31,447.99
Total -1,609.89 1,701.95
MNote 34
Employee Benefit Expenses
For the period For the Period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31t
March,2025 March, 2024
[i) Salaries and Wages a47a.1T 57058
{il}Payment towards PF and other Funds 7115 68.29
(iij5taff Welfsre Expenses 160 11.64
Total 551.92 650.51
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Mote 35
Finance Cost
I For the period ended | For the period ended
Pecticalim 315t March,2025 315t March, 2024
1A) Interest
{i] Interest cost on financial Habilities measured at amortized cost
(a) Fram Banks
11] Interest on Ceerdraft 1,189,931 111347
{2] Interest on Term Loan 219.28 300.24
(3] Interest on Unsecured loan 188.00 27400
(4] Interest on Vehicle Loan 172 lag
(5] Intarest on FITL - -
{il}interest on Delayed Payment to- MSME - -
{il}jinterest on advance from Customer - -
{iw)interest On Lease Liabilities - 4274
|B) Other Borrowing Costs
{i] Processing Fees 8.99 47
Tatal 1,608.70 1,736.71
Mate 36
Other Enponsas
For the period ended | For the period ended
Particuters 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
{A) Power and Fuel i 236,38
|B] Transpartation Expenzs 85,58 7441
(L) Repairs and Installztion 54819 23.56
| DiLoss on mpalrment of Assets 0.00 Q.00
|L} Legal Lypenses{indirect) 18,39 305
{F] Losis on fair valuation Q.00 161.91
{GIPrefitLoss on Sale of Asdet 11.02 3357
| HjLogal & Professional Fees 4.0 11367
(1] Corporate Social Responsibility 2,50 20,24
1) Miscellaneous expenses Fle6d 5A0.04
Total 2,039.89 1,196.51
MNote 37
Tax Expense
The Major components of Income Tax Expense are:
1. Amounts recagnised in Profit or Loss
For the period ended | For the period ended
Particatars 315t March, 2025 315t March, 2024
Profit and Loss Section
(A) Current Tax Expense
{i) Current Income Tax Charge 107.55 822
{il) Reversal of Provision for Tax relating to earlier years -26.59 -25.25
Total {4) 20,96 5897
(B} Deferred Tax Expanse
Driginatien and reversal of lemporary differences 44,70 -12.05
Total (8) 44,70 =12.05
Total 125.66 46.91

Reconciliation of Income Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit multiplied by India’s applicable tax rate:
This note presents the reconcilition of Income Tax charged as per the apphcable tax rate specified in the Income Tax Act,
1961 & the actual provesion made in the Financial Statements as at March 31, 2025 with breakup of differences in Profit as

per the Financial Statements and a5 per income Tax Act, 1961

i
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Particulars Amount

Profit Before tax as per statement of Profit and loss 221.18
Tax on the ahove @ 26% (n 57.51
Adjustments to reconcila

Man deductible Expensss 1,056.52
Mon Taxable Income 692.13
Effects of adjustments 1] 94,74
Tax adjustments of previous year {un) -26.59
Tax Expense recognised in books B (1] 175.66

Naote 38
Earnings per Share

For the period For the Period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Profit after tax for the year {in Lakhs) 95,52 505.06
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (in Lakhs) 279,86 279.836
Basic and Diluted EPS 0.34 1.80

Baslc EPS and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by

the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Mote 39
Other Comprehensive Income

For the period Faor the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 315t
March,2025 March,2024
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment - -
Gain/(Loss) on revaluation of intangible assets . .
Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans -3.54 14.11
-3.54 14.11
(i) Incomee tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
{Deferred tox)
On gain/{loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment - -
On gain/{loss) on revaluation of intangible assets
On remeasurements of the defined benefit plans . -
- 0.00
Total -3.54 14.11
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Mote 40
Leases

Leases as a Lessee

All the leases where the company was a leszee were terminated during the financial year.

information about leases for which the company was a lessee is disclosed below:

1) Amounts recognised in statement of Profit and Loss

For the period ended | For the period ended
Particulars 31st March,2025 31st March,2024

Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities . 42.79

2 Total Cash Qutflows for Leases during FY 24-25 is NIL.

3) The company has not sub-leased any Right-of-use asset. Hence, income from sub-leasing Right-of-use assets
recognised in statement of profit and loss during FY 24-25 is NIL

Note 41
Addifional Reguiatory Information pursuant to the requirementin Division Il of Schedule il o the Companies Act 2013

0]

(i)

{iir)

(v}

v

{vi)

(i)

{x)
(i)

The company does nolt have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initisted or pending against
the company for holding amy Benami property.

The company does not have any transactions with companies siruck off.

The company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use asseis) or intangible
assets or both during the cementor previous yearluding its impact on financial statements, is reporied in the
nates to accounts in the year of incorporation of revision.

The company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual curmency during the financial year.

The company has not advanced or loaned or invested fundsto any other person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermedianies) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

{a) direcily or indirectly lend or imvest in other persons or enfities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries ) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies

The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign enfities (Funding
Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or ofherwise ) that the company shall:

{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entifies identified in any manner whalsoever by oron
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf of the Liltimate Beneficiaries(vi) The company has not
amy such ifransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sumendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any
other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

The company has bormowings from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of cumrent assets. The
quarterly returns or statements of curment assets filed by the company with banks and financial institufions are in
agreemeni with the books of accounts_{ix)None of the entifies in the company have been declared wilful defauiier
by any bank or financial nsttution or government or any government authority

The compamy has complied with the number of layers prescrbed under the Companies Act. 2003,

The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or
previous financial year.
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B. Mecasurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

CIAN —

The following tables show the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the

significant unobservable inpuls used:

Financialinstruments measured at fair value

Type

Valuation Technique

Financial Guaranice

"Firanciai guarantoes are moasurod at the higher of:
The amount of the loss allowancs and the amount
initially recognisod kess comultative amortsation ®

Security Deposit agalnst Rant Investments

Discounted Cash Flow Mothod:

The valuaton model considers the prosent value of
contraciual payments, discounted using appropriate
discounting ratos ™

Mon Current Invesimenils

1) Preference Shares

Discounted Cash Flow Mathod:

The Valuation model considers the Prosent Value of
expecied cash Aows from the instruments.

2} Equity Shares of Banks:

Held at Cost:

The Equity Shares of banks are hoeld al cost.
Held at FVTOCI:

The company has opled lo value cerlain eguily
instruments at FVTOCL®

Cash and cash equivalents, other bank balanceos,
trade recelvables, loans, other financial asseis,
shorl-term borrowlngs, trade payables and
other financial lHabilitles

Their carmying value approsimates falr value due lo
short-lemmn maturilies and insignificant impact of
L valse of monoy.

Mon-curront borrowings (Loan from bank)

Mot fair valuod becauss they wene laken as a loan
finsm & bank, Since tha lban was al a markol rate of
intorest, Hs camying value i close toits Falr valuo,

Mon-curront borrowings (Loans-Othars)

Durireg the cument roporting ponod, he Company
reassossod certan advanco paymonts previously
received from customar s, which ware mitably recognizod
as liabilites relatod 1o trado ansachons.

Az tho undorlying transactions did not malenalize

and basod on curent facls and crcumslancos,

those advances havo beon roclassificd as financizal
habilitics under “Loan — Others.
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C. Transfers between Levels
There have been no transfers between the levels.

Note on Financial Guaranteo

The Company has extended a corporate guarantee to Vamon Aluminium Private Limited (VAPL) against the Loan
obligation to Bank amounting to Rs. 27 _30,00.000 undertaken by VAPL

The company is acting as a guarantor for VAPL and hence is required o make payments only in the event of a default
by them on the terms of the loan that = guaranteed by us.

Afinancial guarantee contract is mitially recognised at fair value. If the guaraniee is issued to an unrelated party on a
commercial basis, the initial fair value iz likely to equal the premium received. If no premium is received, the fair value
mtst be determined using a method that quaniifies the economic benefit of the guarantee to the hoider.

However, according o the information provided by the lender, the interest rate of the loan would have remained
unchanged even if we had not provided the guarantee. Hence, the guarantee wasn't initially recognized.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period, financial guaraniees are measured atthe higherof
(i} The amount of the loss allowance, and
(i) Theamountiniially recognised less cumutative amortization

As perind AS 109, the loss allowance on the financial guarantee contract will be determined using:
Loss Allowance = Loan Amount x Probabiliy ol default

According to the latest valuation report, the creditor's exposure fo default is fully covered by the entity’s available
assets. Therefore, even if we assume a 100% probabifity of default, the likelihood of the guarantor facing a financial
burden is negfigible. This implies that, under Ind AS 109, the camying amount of the financial guarantee in the books
would be zero.

Level 3 fairvalues
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the dosing balances for Level 3 fairvalues.

Particulars

Dpening Balance (1 April 2024) 108.09
Additions -
Disposal

Change In fair valuation

Change due to the effect of foreign exchange fiuctuations -
Closing Balance (31 March 2025) 108.09

Sensitivity analfysis
For the fair values of loan to joint venture, reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the significant
unobzervable inpois, holding other inpuls constant, would have the following effects.

Significant unobservable inputs Profit or loss
Increase ] Decrease

Projected Cash Flows |
Interest rate {10% movement) = -
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Nole 42
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management {continued)

“The Company has exposure io the following risks arising from financial instruments:
i} CreditRisk

i} Liquidity Risk

iiil) Market Risk”

Risk Management Framowork

The Company’s board of directors have the overall responsibility for establishing and supervising the Company's risk
management framework. They have formed the nsk management commifiee, tasked wilh formulating and
supervising the Company's risk management policies, and regularty reporting its achivities to the board of directors_

The Company's risk management policies aim fo identify and assess the nsks encountered by the Company,
establish suitable rizk imits and controds, and monitor both risks and compliance with these limiis. These policies and
systems undergo regular review to adapt to market changes and the Company’s operations.

(i) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss o the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mest its
contractual obligations, and arses principaily from the Company’s receivable from customers, loans advanced and
cash and bank deposits kept with banks.

The Group ensures that sales of products are made to customers with- appropriate creditworthiness.

The Company has issued financial guarantees to bank in respect of loan facilifies availed by its sibsidiares. In
accordance with the policy of the Company, the Company has recognised these financial guarantees as liability at fair
value (Refer note 41 ). Outstanding loans in the subsidianes against the financial guarantee contracts given by the
Company az at 31stMarch, 202515 Rs 2611.63 Lakhs.

Cashand cazh equivalents
The Group held cash and cash equivalents with banks with good credit rafings.
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MNote 42
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

(i) Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meefing the obligations associated with is financial
liabifities that are setfied by defivering cashor another financial assel. The Company’s approach fo managing liquidityis io
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have suificient liguidity to meet its fiabilities when they are due, under both normsal
and stressed condifions, without incuming unaccepiable losses or nsking damage to the Company's repuiation.

Exposure toliquidity risk

The table below analyses the Group's financial kabilities into relevant matunty groupings based on their confrachual
maturities for all non dervative financial liabilites. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include contrachual
interest payments.

{Rs. in Lakhs)
I
s Carrying amount Contractual cash flowas
st March 2025 | g5 Upto 1 year | 1-3years | 3-5 years Hm;:;hr:n 5
{4} Mon Current Borrowings and Interest therean 307114 2,910.56 - 167198 B65.76 -
{B) Current Borrowings-and interest thereon 10,957.42 1.778.61 7. 71REL - - -
{0} Trade Payabiles 13,302.72] 11,703.98 11,151.61 - - -
{0y Other current Tinanclial labilitles 213635 7401 2830075
Taotal 2947254 | 22,667.15| 21,730.96 1,671.98 665.76 -
Contractual cash fl
Particulars Carrying amount oo i s
st March 2024 ) 30 Upto 3 yoar | 1-3years | 3-5 years M“;ir::ns
{A] Nom Current Borrowings and interest thereon 2.910.56 2 910.56 - 2,244 20 BB5.76 -
|B) Currént Borrowings and interest thereon 7,776l T, 1461 17TR61 - - -
{C) Trade Payabdes 11,703.98] 11,703.54 11,1516
(D) Other current linanchal labilitlos 274.01 27401 2.300.75
Total 22,667.15 | 22,667.15| 2173096 | 2,244.80 665.76 -

Note 42
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk managemant {confinued)

"Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, or future cash flows arising oul of changes in Market Conditions of
Agriculiure Indusiry, Healthcare Industry & Infrastructure Industry, which include changes in prices of Raw Material and
commaodity prices (indigeneously procured as well as import). The objective of market nsk management is o avoid
excessive exposure to the fluctuations in market prices. "

The company is exposed to lugh risk of changes in the prices of Crude and Soyabean oil. Due to their volalility, the prices
may fAuctuate significanfly over short penods of ime for this commodity. The prices of the Company’s commodity
generally fluctuate in line with global market condifions. Commodity price risk exposure 15 evaluated and managed
through operating procedures and poficies. The company is mitigating such risk by not operating the ol refinery and
underiaking trading scfivities in oil. The exposure to market risk is significantly reduced by this since the Operating losses
under the oit refinery under current market scenario are very high. As of March 31, 2025, the Group had not entered into
any material derivative contracis to hedge exposure o fluctuafions in commodity prices.
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v. Currency risk

"The Company i exposed o curmency risk on account of its operating and financing activibes. The funciional curmency of
the Company is Indian Rupee:
The Company has not tsken derivative nstruments to hedge the foreign currency risk. Also, the Company confinuoushy
maonitors the fluctuation in cumrency risk and ensures that the Company does not have an adverse impact on account of
fiuctuation in exchange rates.”

Exposure o currency risk
The currency profile of financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as below:

CIAN —

{Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-25 Total {Im Rs) Euro usD
Financial assets
Other Current financial asset 175.30 - 1.58
Net exposure for assets 175.30 - 1.58
Financlal Habilities
Other Current financial llabilities 13.92 0.15 -
Net expasure for liahilities 13.92 0.15 -
Net exposure (Assets - Liahilities| 161.38 [0.15) 1.58

{Fs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-24 Total {In /s) Euro
Flnancial liabilities
Trade Payables 1355 0.15
Total Exposure for liabilities 13.55 0.15

Sensitivity analysis

A reasonable possible sirengthening / weakening of the respechve foreign cumencies with respect to functional cumency
of Group would result in increase or decrease in profit or loss as shown in table below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in parficular interest rafes, remain constant. The following analysis has been worked out based on the
exposures as-of the date of statements of financial position.

[Rs. In Lakhs)
St i 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Effect on Profit or Loss (before tax) rengthn‘fn ne/
Weakening %

Strengthening Weakening |Strengthening| Weakening

EURO 1% 0.85 [0.8%) 014 (0.14)

s 1% 0.92 (0.92) - -

1.78 [1.78) 0.14 (0.14)
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Note 42
Financial instruments - Fair values and risk management {continued)

Interest raterisk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash fiows of a financial instrument will fluctusle becaluse of
changes in markeiinterest rates.

Cash flow interest rate nek is the nsk that the future cash flows of floating interest beanng instrumenis will fuciuate
because of fluctuations in the market interest rates.

The Company primarily enters into fixed-rate instruments which ensures that 80-90% of its interest rate risk exposure is at
afiwed rate.

The Company’s exposure lo market rizk for changes in interest rates primarily relales to overdrafis and cash credits from
banks.

For details of the Company’s long-term loans and bormowings, including interest rate profiles, refer to Mote  of these
financial statements.

Exposure to Intorest Rate Risk

|Rs. in Lakhs
Carrying Amaunt 31zt March, 2025 31zt March, 2024
(4] Fined-rate instruments
(i} Financial assets - measured at amortised cost
{2) Other non-current financial asset 233.72 163.01
Total 233.72 163.01
(i) Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost
&) Nom Curfent Barrowings 1171.82 1.442.90
(b} Current Borrowings 1,962.46 1,256.62
Total 3,134.28 2,739.52
(8) Variable-rate instruments
{i} Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost
(&) Non Current Borrowings
b} Current Borrowings 8,128.67 B,481.9%
Total B,128.67 548199

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments

The Group's fived-rate deposits and loans with hanks are camied 5t amortised cost. They are therefore not subject o
interest rale nsk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the camying amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because
of a change in market interest rales.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

Areasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/ decreased
profit or loss by amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. This calculation
also assumes that the change occurs at the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures
outstanding as at that date. The period end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt outstanding
during fhe period.

m
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Cash flow sensitivity [net) Profit or loss
100 bps increase 100 bps decrease
For the period ended 31st March, 2025
Variable-rate instruments {81.29) 81.29
Cash flow sensitivity [net) (81.29) £1.29
For the Period ended 31st March, 2024
Variable-rate instruments [64.82) 6482
Cash flow sensitivity [net) [64.82) 64.82
The Group has following exposure to Interest Rates as at 31st March 2025:
[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars H:::;:g"' As at31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
{A)} Nen Current Barrewings
{i) Loans from banks Fined 1,171.82 1,442 90
{ii) Loans from banks Floating - -
(B) Current Borrowings
{f] Current Loans {included current maturities) Fixed 1,962.46 1,296.62
{ii) Qwerdrafts and Cash Credits from bank Floating 8,128.67 6,481.99
Total 11,262.95 9,221.50
Note 43
Employee benefits
(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the period ended | For the Period ended
NG, Tty 31st March,2025 31st March, 2024
1 Ex gratia 50.92 54,97
2 Gratuity 42.64 50.32
3 Leave encashment 14.68 20.36
4 Bonus 19.38 21.20
Total 127.61 156.84

Az per indian Accounting standard 1% "Employvee Benefitz®, the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are

given below.

The status of gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 :

The Company operates a defined benefit plan (the Gratuity planj covering eligible employees, which provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at reirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.

(A} Defined Contribution Plan (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
Employer's Contibution to Provident Fund - -
Emplayer's Contibution to Superannuation Furd - -
Employer's Contibution to Pension Scheme - -
112
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{B) Defined Benefit Obligation

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at3ist March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
|} Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of
Define Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the
471,75 3136
beginning of the year
Current Service Cost 7.10 7.40
Interast Cost 134 2.15
Past Service Cost B -
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising
from:
Change in Demographic Assumptions 0.0 0.00
Change in Financial Assumptions 1.11 -0.65
Experience variance {7.62) 7.69
Actual Benefits Paid {Le, Actual experiences
assumptions) -1.36 020
Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation at the —— a47.75
end of the year
(ii) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan Assets
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024

Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the Year
Benafits Paid

Return on plan assat excluding amount recognised in
net interest expenses

Asset Transferred |n/{Out)Net) - -

Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year - -

(iil) Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit obligation and Falr value of plan assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the T 475
end of the Year
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year
MNet [Liability) recognized in balance sheet as at the P e
end of the year
(iv) Expenses recognised during the year (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at3lst March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
W] Gratuity Cost Tor the year
Current Service Cost 7.10 7.40
Interest Cost 3.34 2,15
Past Service Cost = -
Met Gratuity cost recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss 10.44 9.55
113
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{v) Other Comprehensive Income

[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024

Actuarial [Gains]/ Losses

= Changes in demographic Assumptions x .

= Changes in financial Assumptions 1.11 0.65

- Experience adjustments -1.62 769
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in
other comprehensive income -6.50 7.04
{vi) Actuarial Assumptions (Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at31st March, 2025

As at31st March, 2024

Discount Rate {per annum)
Expected annual Increase in Salary Cost

B.955%
10,00

7.20%
10.00%

Mortality

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Ult

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) Ukt

Employee attrition rate {mast service)

P50 to 5 years 115%
P50 5 to 10 years ;5%

PS5 10 to 15 years (1%

P50 to 5 years :15%
P55 to 10 years 5%

P5: 10 to 15 years ;1%

CIAN —

(wil) Sensifivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the assumptions coourming at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumpiions constant. The results of

sensitivity analysis is given below-
(Rs. in Lakhs}

Increase [ Decrease in defined benefit obligation
impact
Particulars Sensitivity Level

As at31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 20249
Discount Rate 1% Increase 46.13 43.78
1% Decrease 55.26 52.42
Salary Growth Rate 1% Increase 53.65 51.06
1% Decrease 4681 44.45

[wiii) Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows)

(R, in Lakhs)

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on Amount
undiscounted basis):

As at31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
1st following year 2495 269
2nd following year 0.87 4.8
3rd following year 5.08 5.50
Ath following year 5.36 4.40
Sth following year 1.46 5.07
Years 6to 10 1264 1175
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Note 44
Related party transactions

(A) List of related parties and relationship
The Management has identified the following entites and individuals as related parfies of the Group for the year ended March
31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 for the purpose of reporiing as per ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosure which are as under-

Mature of Relationship Mame of the Related Party

Mikhil Nitin Gadkari
Ravindra Vidyadhar Boratkar
Jaykumar Yarma

Ramesh Himle

Atul Mijay Mandlekar
Vrushall Jitendra Pradhan
Madhubala Dave

Makul Vinayak Bhat

Mrs. Rutuja Nikhil Gadkar| {\Wife}

Mr. Mitin Jairam Gadkari [Father)

Mrs. Kanchan Mitin Gadkari {Mother)
Ms. Nandini Nikhil Gadkari {Daughter)
Ms. Samvi Mikhil Gadkari (Daughter)
5. Kaveri Mikhil Gadkari (Daughter)
Mr. Sarang Gadkan (Brother)

Mrs. Ketaki Aditva Kaskhedikar {Sister)

smt, Kumkum Boratkar (Wife)
Shri Vidyadhar Boratkar (Father)

Smt. Sudha Boratkar (Mother)
W, Adheesh Boratkar (Son)

Ms. Aditi Boratkar (Daughter)
Mr. Narendra Boratkar (Brother)

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs. Hemlata Varma (Wife)

Shri. Ramesh Madhav Varma (Father)
Mrs, Hymavathy Varma (Mother)

M. Abhilash Varma (5on)

Mr. Avinash Varma (Son)

Relativaes of Directors & KMP
Mrs, Annapurna Chaskar (Daughter)

Smt. Sangeets Ramesh Himte [Wife)
shri. Dinkarrao Himte (Father)

smt. Indira Dinkarrao Himte (Mother)
Sameer Ramesh Siyval [Son)

Deepika Sameer Slyal (Daughter-in-law)
Ravindra Dinkarrao Himte (Brother)
shital Satish Bedi (Sister)

Mrs, Harsha Vardhini Atul Mandlakar (Wife)

Mr. Vijay Martand Mandlekar [Father)

Mrs. Sunetra Wijay Mandlekar [Mother)

M. Himanshu Atul Mandlekar (Son)

Mrs, Radha Himanshue Mandlekar | Daughter-in-Law)
M. Nikita Atul Mandlekar {Daughter)

Rahul Vijay Mandlekar (Brother)

Prachi Pramod Lakhe (Sister)
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Jitnedra Arun Pradhan (Spouse)

Vilas shankar Kalantre (Father)

Dr. Charulata Vilas Kalantre (Mother)
Ms. Sakshi litendra Pradhan (Daughter)
Mrs, Aarya Ajay Asawale (Sister)

ﬁn‘n, in which a director, manager or his relative is a

partner furti Enterprises

Chaitanya Constructions And Builders Private Limited
Purti Marketing Private Limited

MM Activ 3ci-Tech Communications Private Limited
Vidarbha Realtors Private Limited

Ameya Paper Mills Pyt Ltd

Asian Conventions & Expositions Private Limited
Pro-Fit Advertisers (India) Private Limited

SC1 Knowledge Interlinks Private Limited

Magpur Sugars Private Limited

Vena Aerlal Solutions & Logistics Private Umited
Vena Crop Protection Technologies Private Limited
Swapnil Fromoters and Developers Private Limited
Kalna Foods Private Limited

Cian Agro Limited LLC -Foreign Subsidiary

Varron Aluminiumm Private Limited- Whally Owned
Subsidiary

Manas Power Ventures Private Limited- Whally
Owned Subsidiary(w.ef 10.09.2024)

Avenzer Electricals & Infrastructure Put. Lid- Wholly
Owned Subsidiary(w.e.f 24,09,2024)

Ideal Energy Projects limited- Step Down Wholly
Owyned Subsidiary (w.e.f 10.09,2024)

Manas Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited- Step
Down Subsidiary [w.e.f 24.09.2024)

A Private company in which a director or manager 1[or
his relative] is a member or director;

Enterprise where control exists — Holding, Subsidiary,
loint Venture, Associates

The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunsl, vide iis order dated 7Vth May, 2025, approved the amalgamation of Avinash
Fuels Private Limited, Purfi Marketing Private Limited, Greenedge Construciions Private Limited, Magpur Sugars Prvaie
Limited, and Purli Contract Farming Private Limited into Chaitanya Constructions and Builders Private Limited. This
memger, effective from 30th September and 1st Oclober 2024, consofidates 66.88% promoter holding in CIAN Agro
Indusines and Infrastructure Limited under a single enfity.

B. Transactions with related partie:

(i) Key management personnal compensation [R<. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

[a) Short-term employes benafits 12254 118.20

[B) Post-retirement benefits - -

[c) Other lang-term henefits - -
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Note 45
Capital Management

The objective of the company when managing capital is:

{I} to maintain a strong capltal base and healthy capital raties <o as to maintain the
investar, creditor and market canfidence,

(i) to sustain future development of the business, and

(ifi) to provide adeguate return to shareholders through continuing growth.

These financial needs are fulfilled through a blend of equity and long-term borrowing.

The Capital of the company consists of equity share capital, reserves and surplus and debt
capital comprising of Long term and short term debits.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, debt-equity ratio and net debt to
equity ratio

The Company's owerall strategy remains unchanged from pravious vear.

Capital Management Ratios:
(R, in Lakhs)

Particulars As-at3lst March,2025 | Asat 31st March, 2024
Long term debt 3,071.14 2,910.56
Short term debt 10,957.42 777861
Total debt 14,028.56 10,689.17
Cash and Cash Equivalents 69.561 ig.14
Met Debt 13,958.95 10,651.03
Total Equity 9,165.34 8,310.15
Met debt to equity ratio 152 1.28
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C. Reconciliation of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Nature of transaction For the period ended | For the Period ended
31st March 2025 31st March, 2024
i)| Revenues
Total revenue for reportable segments 26,387.80 18.240.35
Revenue for other segments
Total Revenue 26,387.80 18,240.35
ii)| Profit/Loss before tax
Profit/Loss before tax for reportable segments 221.18 55197
Profit/Loss before tax for other segments . -
Profit/Loss before tax as per Financial Statements 221.18 551.97
iii) | Assets
Total assets for reportable segments 50,277.96 43,474.80
Assets for other segments - -
Unallocated amounts 2.798.59 2,798.59
Total assets 53,076.55 46,273.39
iv) | Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 46,685.29 40,543.91
Liabilities for other segmenis
Unallocated amounts . -
Total liabilities 46,685.29 40,543.91
(Rs. in Lakhs)
particalars For the period ended For the Period ended
31st March ,2025 31st March, 2024
A. Revenues from external customers attributed to the
country of domicile and attributed to
Revenue from the Country of Damicile- India 25,831.05 18,185.67
Revenue from foreign countries 556.76 54.68
Total 26,387.80 18,240.35
B. Details of non current asset
MNon Current asset in the Country of Domicile - India 27,279.03 13,432.24
MNon Current asset in Foreign Countries - -
Total 27,279.03 13,432.24
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To,
The Members
CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of CIAN Agro Indusiries &
Infrastructure Limited (hersinafier referred to as the “Holding Company”™) and its subsidiaries (Holding
Company and is subsidiaries together refemed o as the “the Group™) which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), fhe consolidated staiement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
fliows for the year then ended, and the notes to consohdated financial siatements, incuding Matesial
Accounting Policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Financial
Statements").

2 Inouropinion and io the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate/ consolidated financial statements/financial
information of such subsidianes as were audied by other auditors, the aforesaid Consolfidated Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind
AS | of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at 315t March 2025, and its consolidated profit &
loss, consolidated other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3.  We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under sechion 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, Our responsibiliies under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibiliies for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Siatements section of our reporl. We are
independent of the Group with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audil of the conschdated
financial stalements in terms of Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of india and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responzibilities inaccordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

Emphasis of Matter

4. Wedraw attention fo
a. MNote No. 2.1 io the financial siztements, which descrnbes ihat the Company has revised its estimation
for the revaluation cycle of certain classes of non-volatile Property, Plant and Equipment from 3 years
to 5 years, in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment. This
change has been made during the cument financial year based on a change in management’s
estimate.
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b. Note No. 4 'Non-Cument Investments’ where the Company has valued investment in equity shares of
bankatcost
C Note Ne. 28 Other Income and 24 Trade Payables, where the Company has written back ceriain trade

payables that were outstanding for a period exceeding three to five years during the curment financial
year. Such balances were derecognized and credited to the Statement of Profitand Loss.

d. Note No. 9 which describes that during the year, one of the Siep-down Subsidianes, ldeal Energy
Projects Lid have made an investment of Rs 438 lakhs in a Stressed Asset Opportunity Fund. The
management befieves that the retums on investments would be more than the finance cost for an
equivalent amount.

B Note No. 2.3 where Capital Work in Progress is shown as part of Fixed Assets. The Company is having
Capital Work in Progress of Rs. 5,610.73 lakhs as on 31=st March 2025. The Management is of the
opinion that the Capitalization work is still not complete.

£ During the year, one of the Step-down Subsidianes, ldeal Energy Projecis Ltd have written off the
following amounts based on Management's assessment of non-recoverability of these balances. The
details are summited as below:
Note No. Particulars Amount (Rs. In Lakhs)
Note No. 6 Mon-Current Deposit 1035100
Note No, 15 Advanee to Suppliers 145,14
~ Note No. 10 ~ Trade Receivables | 9817
Note No. 15 Others 10.40
Total 1,284.71
a. Mote No.8. the inventory of Manas Power Venture Pyt Lid. is under reconciliabion ag at the balance

sheet date. The cumulative impact of factors involved in reconcilistion, on the valuation of closing
inventory, remains subject tofinal reconcilistion.

opinion is nol modified in respect of the above.
Key Audit Matters

5. Keyaudit matiers (' KAM') are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance inour
audil of the consolidated financial statements of the cament period. These matiers were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial siatements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we donot provide a separmate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (KAM)

A. Acquisition of three subsidiaries during the year

Why the matior was considered to be
one of most significance in the audit

How the maticr was sddressed in the audit

During the year, the Company acquired full
control inthree companies namely:

1. Avenzer Electricals & Infraztirociure Pyl Lid.

2. Varmon Aluminum & Infrastructune Pyt Ltd.
3. Manas Power Ventures Pvt. Lid_

which have been classified as subsidiaries.
Thesze ransactions were accounted for as
business combinations under Ind AS 103 in the
consolidated financial statemenis. The
acquisiions involved significant judgments in
determining the acquisiion date, measuring fair
value of consideration, idenfifying and valuing net
assels and liabilies acquired, and recogniton of
bargain purchase gain. These factors, along with
the matenal impact on the financials, led us io
identify this as a Key Audit Matter.

= {Obiained and evaluated the transaction
agreements and board resolufions to assess
the appropristeness of the acquisition date
and nature of the combinations.

+ Assessed the Company’s accounting policies
in respect of business combinations for
compliance with the requirements of Ind AS
103.

= Assessed the identificabon and valuabon of
Gain on bargain purchase recognized in OCL

«  Ewvaluated the methodology and assumptions
used by management in defermining the fair
values of acquired assets and liabilities.

+ Evzluaied disclosures in the financial
statements relating to the business
combinations for adequacy and compliance
with Ind AS requirements.

B. Assessment of advances given and recoived

Why the matter was considered fo be
one of most significance in the audil

How the matier was addressed in our audit

The Holding company had given and received
advance payments for frade ransactions, These
advances werne subsequenlly reassessed based
on cument facts and circumsiances.

Accordingly, these balances were reclassified as
financial assets or financial liabilities under Ind AS
108 - Financial Instruments, and subsequently
measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS
113 — Fair Value Measurement. The resulting fair
value changes were recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss as per the requirements of Ind
AS 109,

Given the matenality of the balances, the
judgement involved in reclassification and
valuation, and the impact on the financial
siatements, this was considered a key audit
matier.

« Reviewed historical transaction data and
account activity.

« Ewvalualed the basis for reclassification of
thesa balances as financial assels or financial
liahilities in accordance with the principles of
Ind AS 109.

* Reviewed and assessed the appropriateness
of the wvaluation methodology and key
assumptions applied by management o
measure the fair value of these balances,
including discount rates, expected fiming of
setflement, and credii risk considerations, as
required under Ind AS 113 - Fair Value
Measurement.

« Reviewed disclosures in the financial
statements o assess compliance with Ind AS
108 and Ind AS 113, particulardy in relation io
financial instruments, valuahbon lechniques,
and fair value hierarchy.
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Other Information

6. The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsibie for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Holding Company’s Annual report. but does not
include the fimancial siztements and our auditors" report thereon.

Dur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial siatements, our responsibility is o read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is matenially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears o be materially missiated. I, based on the work we have performed and the
reports of the other auditors as fumished to us, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that facl We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Director’'s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

¥ The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companiegs Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidaled state of affairs, consofidated profitioss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in eguity and conzolidated cash fliows of
the Group in accordance with the accouniing principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The respeciive Management and Board of Direclors of the company
including group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accountiing records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safequanding the assets of each company and for preventing and detecfing frauds and
other imeqularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operafing effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentstion of the consalidated financial statements that
give a frue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which has been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial siaiements by the Management and Board of
Directors of the Holding company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respeciive Management and Board of Directors of the
companies indoded in Group-are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to confinue as a Qoing coNCcedm,
disclosing, as applicable, matiers related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting
unless the respective Borad of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic allemative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the
Company’s financial reporiing process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
8. Our objectives are o obiain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial siatemenis as a
whole are free from material misstatement, wheiher due to fraud or emor, and to issue an auditor's report thiat
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inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is not a guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will slways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Mizstatemenis
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material i, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected o influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statemenis.

As partof an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

a dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due o fraud or emmor, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and
obiain audit evidence that is sufficient and approprate to provide a basis for our opinion. The nsk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from ermor, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intenfional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemide of
intemal control.

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding company has adequate intemal
financial conirols with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

C. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
esliimates and related disclosures made by Management and Board of Directors.

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management and Board of Directors use of the going concem
basis of accounting in preparafion of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obisined, whether a matenal unceriainfy exisis related o events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of these assumption. I we conclude that a material
uncertainty exisis, we are required to draw aftention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cur
conciusions are basad on the sudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue a5 & going conceim.

B. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidaled financial siatements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the undedying
ransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

9. We communicale with those charged with govemance of the Holding Company and such other enfities
inclsded in the consolidated financial siaiements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our sudit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a siatement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and whene applicable, related safegueards.
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From the matters communicated with those changed with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors” report uniess iaw of regulation preciudes
public disclosure about the matter orwhen, in extremely rare circumstiances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expecied o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

10. {a) The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements / financial information of Manas
Power Venture Pvt Lid. subsidiary, whose audited standalone / consolidated financial statemenis [ financial
mformation refiect olal assets of R=.1,92.851.30" Lakhs as at 31st March, 2025, iotal revenues of Rs.
4 03 26 59" | akhs and net cash inflows amounting to421.59* | akhs for the year ended on that date.

The Consolidated Financial Statements also indude the Group’s share of net profit of Rs. 4491 28* Lakhs for
the year ended 318t March, 2025, as considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of this
subsidiary. These financial statements / financial information have been audited by us.

{b) We did not audit the financial siatemeni=s / inancial information of Avenzer Eleciricals & Infrastuciure Pyt
Lid. And Varmon Aluminium Private Limited subsidianes, whose standalone ( consolidated financial statements
{ financial information reflect toial assets of Rs. 2,04, 243.44" Lakhs a= at 31st March, 2025, total revenues of
Rs. 5,42 66 22" Lekhs and net cash inflows amounting o Rs.148.64"° Lakhs for the yearended on that date, as
considered in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Consolidated Financis! Statements also include the
Group's share of net lozs of Rs. 4,56.93"* Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as considered in the
Consofidated Financial Statements; in respect of these Subsidianes, whose financial statements / financial
information have: not been audited by us. These financial statements { financial information have been sudited
by other suditors whose reporis have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Siatements, in sofar as it relales to the amounis and disclosures included in respect of
theze subsidianes and our reportin terms of sub-section {3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so faras itrelates to the
aforesaid subsidianes is basead solely on the reports of the otherauditors.

() We did not audil the financial staiements of LLC Cian Agro Limied (Foreign subsidiary) whose financial
statements reflect total assels of Rs.30.18" Lakhs a5 al 31st March 2025, total revenues were Nil and nel cash
outfiows amounting to Rs.28.94" Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial siztements. The consolidated financial statements atzo include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs.
13.77* Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2025, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in
respect of LI © Cian Agro Limited, whose financial statements are unaudited. These financial statements have
been fumished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, inso faras
it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary our report in terms of sub-
sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act in =0 -far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on such
vnavudited financial statemenis. In our opinion and according to the informalion and explanafions given to us by
the Management, these financial statemenis are not material ip the Group.

(* a= reporied inrespeciive standalone financiais )
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, based on cur audit and on the consideration of
report of other auditors on separate financial staternents and the other financial information of the subsidianes
and an associate, incorporated in India, as noted in the 'Other Matier’ paragraph we give in the "Annexure 1" a
statement on the matiers specified in paragraph 3(xocd) of the Order.

122 A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our awdit and on the consideration of report of the other
auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries, as noted in the
"‘oiher matier’ paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that

a. Weithe other auditors whose report we have relied upon, have sought and obtained all the information and
exptanations which to the best of our knowledge and belie! were necessary for the purpose of our audit of
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financisl siatements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books except for the matter stated in paragraph 12{g) below on reporting under Rule
11{g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014.

c. The Consolidaied Balance Sheet, the consolidated statement of profii and loss (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated ststement of changes in equity and the consolidated stalement of
cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated fmancial stalements comply with the Indian Accouniing
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

. Dnthe basis of written representations received from the directors of Holding Company as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the holding company and on the basis of written
representations received by management from directors of if's subsidiaries , none of the directors of the
Group Companies, is disqualified as on 315t March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2)of theAct.

f. The opinion relating to maintenance of accounts and other matters connecled there with are as staled in
paragraph 12{hjbelow on reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014

a. With respect to the adequacy of the intemal financial controds with reference o financial statements of the
Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, incorporated in India and the operating efiectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B7.

B) With respect to the other maitters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given tous:
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L The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on its financial
position.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term confracts including derivative
coniracts during the year ended 31st March 2025.

There were noamounts which were required to be transfemed to the Invesior Education and Protection
Fund by the Company, and its Subsidianes incorporated in India during the year ended 31st March
2025.

. {a) The Management of the Company and its Subsidiaries incorporated in India whose financial
stafements have been audited under the act, have represented thal, o the best of their
knowledge and belief as disclosed in the Note 38{v), no funds have been advanced orloaned
or invested (either from bomowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the company fo or in any other person(s) or enfity(ies), including foreign enfibes
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otheswise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ullimate Beneficiares”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies;

{b} The Management of the Company and its Subsidiaries incorporated in india whose financial
stalements have been audited under the act, have represented that to the best of their
knowledge and belief as disclosed in the Note 3B{vi), no funds have been received by the
company from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall directiy
orindirecily, lend or invest in other persons or enfifies identified in any manner whatsoever by
or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarnes;

{c) Based on audit procedures and reports of other auditor which we considered reasonable and
awhhinheﬂwnu@m.nﬁkghmmhmnuﬁmﬂmﬂmcﬂﬂmusm
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i}yand (i} of Rule 11(e), as provided under
(iyand (i) above, containany maierial misstaterment.

LA The Company and its Subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during the year, hence, there
iz nocontravention of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable from st April
2023,

Basedon our examination which included test checks, and communication done by respective auditors of two
Subsidiaries, exceptfor the instances mentioned beltow, the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies
have used accounting softwares for mainiaining its books of account, which have feature of recording audit trail
{editlog) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
respeciive softwares:
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- In case of Holding Company and its Step-down Subsidiary. Manas Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited:

. There = no frontend facifity available to dizable or enable the audit logs; this function is confrolled exclusively
through the database system.

. The system is designed without an automafic mechanism o send alers o higher authorifies regarding the
disabling of the audit trail_

. In respect of its Subsidiary Manas Power Ventures Pyt Ltd and of Vamon Aluminium Pyt Limited, the feature of
recording sudit trail {edit log) facility was not enabled during the year.

«  In respect of Step-down Subsidiary, Ideal Energy Projects Lid, the functionality was implemented from 1st
Cctober 2024 for all relevant ransactions.

Owr opinion s not modified on the above matier

D} With respect to the other matters o be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid during the
curent year by the Holding Company io its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act,
The remuneration paid o any director by the Holding Company is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section
197 of the Act. The Subsidiary Companies incorporated inindia have not paid remuneration to any Director in excess
of the: limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details
under Secfion 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For P. G. Joshi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 104416W

CA Avinash Joshi
Partner
M. No.; 030904

Piace : Nagpur
Date : 30-05-2025
UDIN : 25030904BMJPFOT232
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“Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the
consolidated financial statement of CIAN Agro Industries &
Infrastructures Limited for the year ended 31st March 2025

Referred to in paragraph 11 under the heading 'Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of
our report of even dafe fo the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended

31st March, 2025

{xxi} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, following companies incorporated in
India and included in the consofidated financial statements, have unfavorable remarks, qualification or adverse remarks
given by the respective auditors in their reporls under the Companies (Auditor's. Report) Order, 2020 (CARDY:

ar. | Name Of Company CIN Holding Company Clause number
No. Subsidiaryl/JointVenture | of the CARO
Step-down Subsidiary report which is
qualified or is
advorse
1. Cian Agro Industries & L15142MH1985PLC037493 | Holding Company Clause lI{b),
Infrastructure Private Limited VI, XIVib)
2 ldeal Energy Projecls Lid L40102MH200BPLC180778 | Step-down Subsidiary Clause li{a),
Company Hi{k}, {a)
3 Manas Agro and W15122ZMH2012PLC235369 | Step-down Subsidiary Clause I{a), Nd),
Infrastructure Limited Company k), Mi{a). ML,
Vil{a), X{a), X1
4, Vamon Aluminiumm U27310MH2008PTC289939 | Subsidiary Company Ciause I{b), ll{b),
Pvt Limited IX{a}), XIV, XVl
5 Avenrer Blecinicals & UT4999MH2015PTG265352 | Subsidiary Company ia)
Infrastructure Private Limited
For P. G. Joshi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 104416W
Place : Nagpur CA Avinash Joshi
Date : 30-05-2025 Pariner
UDIN : 25030904BMJPFOT232 M. No_: D30004
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the
consolidated financial statement of CIAN Agro Industries &
Infrastructures Limited for the year ended 31st March 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference o the aforesaid consolidated financial
stafements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred fo in paragraph 12(g) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Reguiatory Requirement’ of
our report of even date fo the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31stMarch:, 2025)

In conjunction with our audil of the consolidated financial statements of CIAN Agro Industries &
Infrastructures Limited {(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) as of and forthe year ended 31
March 2025, we have audited the intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India under the Companies Act 2013, which are
its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In our opinion, and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on internal financial control
with reference to financial statements/financial information of Subsidiary companies, as were audited by
the other auditors, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are its
Subsidiary companies, have, in all material respects, adequate intemal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such intemal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March
2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established
by such companies considering the essential components of such internal controls stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Instifute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the *Guidance Mote").

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

1. The respective company’s Management and Board of Director is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporiing criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporiing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and emors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the CompaniesAct, 2013.
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Auditors’ Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Mote on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repording (the “Guidance MNote") and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intermal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

3. Owr audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of intemal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intemal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

4.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other
auditors of the relevant subsidiary companies in terms of their reports referred fo in the other matter
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

5. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) periain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipis and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting

6. Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or impreper management ovemide of confrols, material misstatements due to ermor or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemnal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject fo the nsk that the internal financial controf over financial reporting may become inadegquaie
becaise of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
7. Inour opinion, the Holding company, its Subsidiary Companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporfing except for the following
matenal weaknesses identimied:
a. Altenbonisdrawn io the non-maintenance of property documented processes! policies forrecording of
purchase, Sales, Manufacturing activity, imventory including its valuation, Loans and Investment activities etc.
b.  Tracking of processes foconfirm that these controls are in line with the company’s policy was not possible in
absence of such documentation.
c. InStep-down Subsidiary Company, ldeal Energy Projects {id, the process to determing consumption of coal
and spares in the Plant needs to be strengthened and aligned to the accounting software. Manual processes
increase the risk of ermors and vanances ininventory recording.

However, our opinion in not gualified on the above matters.

Such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31stMarch, 2025 which however,
need further strengthening, based on the internal control over financial reporting critéria esiablished by the Group
considerng the essenfiial components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Nole on Audil of Intemnal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporiing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Oiher Matiers

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operafing effectiveness of the intemal
financial confrols with reference to financial siatementsMnancial information in 2o far as i relates o two Subsidiary
Companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the cormesponding reports of the auditors of

The internal financial controls with reference to financial stslementsfinancial information in so far as it relates to one
Subsidiary company, which is a company incorporated outside India and included in these consolidated financial
statements, have not been sudiled by us or by other auditors. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, such unaudited subsidiary company, is not material to the Holding
Company.

QOwr opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

For P. G. Joshi & Co.,

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 104478V

Place : Nagpur CA Avinash Joshi
Date : 30-05-2025 Pariner
UDIN : 2503098048BM.IPFO7F232 M. No. 030904
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid.

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025

{Rs. In Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particutars Note No. | 345t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
L ASSETS
(1) Mo-curnent sesety
{a} Property, Plant and Equipment 21 2 39 54580 10.2m.15
{B) Right of Use Assets 27 3[EAT .
{£) Cagaitisl Wark-in-iProgress 23 56, 125 78
() Gondwi :
{&) Ofher inlanpble assets 3 621 167
(T} Intanibis ausets wnisr developimen] -
() Financial Assels
) veeshment 4 151632 LIL B
{8} L 5 BE4 43 -
[y ke non-currenl inanclsl assets B 3.600.00 18007
{h) Deferred Tax Aasets (net)
{i) Dl Naon-oumrent Gesets T 21, 72537 2, 500 O
Totsl non-curenl asssis 3,25, 185,88 13 426.41
{Z) Current Assets
{8 Inwetibory 8 0 AP B 1561753
(b} Fimancal Assels
{1} Invesirments g £i.304.08
fil) Trade Hecehabilas gl 26,1228 3HIZ 2
(i} Cash and cash equivaisrts 1 203.38 3877
{iv) Bank Balances oher than (il above
{w) Lisans =2 13,4616 182.16
(M) Othera 13 2,060.28 65.13
{£) Camrvent Tax Assets (Met) 14 1,136.85 106.02
() Chther cnsvent ausets 15 1“,3_!':".?1 5, 065.07
Tolal cuirent sssely 893,183.51 31,326.63
TOTAL ASSETS A6, 37T0.49 44, T53.03
. As at As at
o Noto No. | 31 March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
i EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1) Equity
{&) Equaly share capdal 16 2,786,585 2. 798.58
{1} Cther equity 17 1.93 57781 B.124.34
(i} Moy Controdling (rerest 536721 :
Total equity 201, 743.23 8.022.83
{2) Mon current liabilites
{a] Financial lisbities
- Borrowings 18 80,304 .00 2.310.56
- Legse Lindalty 12 1568 -
- e =
(b} Provisions it 1,178.48 15208
() Defeved tax lahliTies (M) Fa | 1529052 163881
{d) O oy current Eabailies 2 4,206.74 1,404 82
Tolnd non-curment liakdilities 1,01,328.31 &, 106.37
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd.
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024

{Rs. in Lakhs)
; As at As at
Paiticalug NoteNo. | 315t March,2025 | 31stMarch, 2024

{3) Current labilities
1) Financisl ligbiities

(1) Bomowings 21 49372 60 778233

[} Traoe Paysbies 1) . £
lertad cnslstrndingg dues of mecro 1,510.85 055
enileipilses and sl enlarprisss
Tirlsd oul=tarding dues of crefinrs ol 27 84006 11,730.85
esr micrs enleguises B s emlsgunises

[} Lesse Liability - Corrend 191 .3

(i) Dehves inancial Babilifies 25 2ITLTd Zrem
() Omer current liatdlilies k. 31, 0TE AL DFrTAL
{d]) Provisions 7 266587 158.48
Tolal Current linbilfties 1,15, 30785 2 TIZTE
Tota! Rebiliies 216,638,276 3583010
TOTAL EQHNTY AND LIASILITIES 418318 .49 &4 TSI03

Format of the above statement has been modilied to include only the heads applicable to the Company.

Significant sccounting pelicies 1 s per our atizched report of even date
Naotes to the financlal statements 2-86

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statemeants,

Foer CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Limited

For and on behalf of
P.G. Joshl & Co
Chartered Accountanis
FAN 104315W
Nikhil Gadkari Jaykumar Varma Makul Bhat Madhubala Dave Axinash P. Jashi
Managing Director Chairperson Chied Fmance Officer Company Secretary ifartner
DM O34T DiN:DDAEI a2 PANBGEPBGIFON Mem No s F1ENE Membership No_: 030904

Place : Nagpur
Date : 30/05/2025%
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid.
Consolidated Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2025

CIAN —

[Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
i s
Particulars Note No 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
L. Revermee from Opesedions 28 1,02, B89 72 170784
L. Oither incorme 24 241018 L170az
L Totsl scome ) 1,065, 3650.9% 18,240 BG
V. Expenaes
Cist of Materisl Consysmed an 98, 15652 1.625.82
Constrschion matsrtal oonaurmsd l| 284,35 sr.o2
Pigehage of Skock in tade 3z 24,554 62 8,384 29
Changes n invenlory of Finished Goods, Work in Progress 33 {3,703.91) 1.1 85
it Sinel in Trsde
Employee Henefis Expanses k| 3,31363 658,95
Finanie oosls 35 TAT822 LT3 T3
Deprecistion, Depiaibon, Amori=slon 212323 4,707 63 B,
Oiher Expenses 36 15,068.35 1.203.50
Total Expenses (IV} 1,00, B09.81 17,704.17
V. Profitijloss) belore Excepbonad llems and Tax 4,560.10 536.78
V1. Exceplional Bems -
VI Prafiti{loss) before Tax 4, 560,10 536.70
VI Tax expense: i
1. Current Tix 171.84 B2
2 Deterred Tax 28675 (12.08)
3 b Adjushrients of previous yeisr (26 53) (25 25)
0. ProflfLoss) lor the period (VI-VEE 4 1610 4BD.BE
X Dttver comprehensive income 3ra
() (i} Rerra thal will net be secisocificd (5 Profil of Less 1,50, 166 87 L8 )]
() (1) Income b= related 1o Hems Bl will nol be reclassified {B.13) -
{B) (i} lk=ma. tuat will b reclassslied to Profit or Loss [4.13) 358
{B) (i) Income tee refsted 1o Hems Bl will be reclassificd o = :
Frofit or Loss
1,89, 153.55 17.60

XL Total comprehenshe income Tor the pethod 1.53 260 65 50757
Het Prafit Altributable b :
(&) Owners of the Company 4.116.10 450 42
[t} Bon-Controling interest = ik
Other Comprehenaive income atiributable o -
(8} Owners af the Company 1.58,158.55 17.60
() Mon-Controing Inferest = .
Total Comperehensive Income siribulshie to @
(8] Owrers af the Company 183,268 65 S08.10
() Man-Controing Inferest - (o535
X Easnings per equilty share arz
1. Bese 1471 1.
2 Diluted 1471 i

Format of the shove statement has bean modified to include only the heads spplicable o the Company.

Significant accounting policies 1
Notes to the linandal statements 2-46

The netes referred to sbove form an integral part of the finanaal statements,
Fer CLAN Agra Industries & infrastructure Limited

Nikhil Gadkari Jayhumar Varma Nakul Bhat
Managing Dwector Chairperson Chief Finance Officer
EHN: (234 754 DiM:DOJES oz PANBGSPEGI MON

Place : Nagpur

Date : 30/05/2025
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As per pur attached report of even date

Company Secretary
Mem Mo @ F1221E

For and on behaif of
P.G, jovhi & Co,
Chartersd Accauntants
FAN 1044 16W

Avinash P. Joshi
Fartner
Membsership Mo - 0304004
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd.
Statement of Consolidated Cash flows for the period ended 31st March 2025

{Rs. in Lakhs)
S For the period ended | For the period ended|
J1st March, 2025 J1ist March, 2024
A Cash Flow lrom Operating Activities.

Profit Betore Tax A4.560.10 53678
Al
Achuial gain on empioyes benelils 439z (14.11)
FCTH impact {119}

Deipiefon, Amartisalion 4TI 63 a1e
Financs coata 7,365.69 1, 73673
Non- Cash Hern o 3.58
Inberest Elernend of Fasr Valuslion of Security Digpesil - {0.55)
Gan/loas From Fores 0.&6 (031
Provisions made! wrilen of [24.47) 7.7
Infeses] incorms (1s0.01) [11.74)
Divitentd inoome {E5.53) {078}
Acooumns VWiilten back (447.05) {A0E.A2)
Dbscoun] smotized MSEDCL Refund 22 54
Unissatian of MSEDCL Refund receivabls 22609
Gy i Wishistionn (ZBE.91) {508 84}
Eftect of Revalustion = {3.58)
Prepaid rend wiiilen off - 049
Ganloas From Sale of Property, Plant snd Egupment g Z3.57
Gain/Loss: fram Termnis lon of Lease - {148 12)
Gain On Sale OF Subsidiary - (&1}
Loss an Fai Valustion of isseabment - 161.51
Inberest N OGO .00
Acoounts Witten O 1,485 58
Achuarial Galnd Loss on Emgloyes Bededit Bra1
Lioss on sike of Invesiments 8 P
Lease inoime 23 per ind AS (Lease equiration fom rent) (0.03)
Loss on 50 lorfedue 45.30
Inbesest on nveatmenl {421}
G an Purchase of Subwadisry (3.511.56)
Opearating Profil / (Loss) before Working Capilal changes 138148 208587
Wiorking capilal sdjustmeni:
(Incteass) /| Decteass in iwenlory ! (r.838.10) 1.33084
(Increase) | Decrease n Trade Recsivables (5. 165.63) Trr.on
(IniFegss) | Decease in Oty fnancial assels 1robs 2058
(Imeass) | Demeass in Ofwer curren] linancal aesets (a2 52) :
[Incsease )/ Decteass i Oher curredl assets. 1669191 -
Increase | (Decrease) in O current financial labiiies gas.or -
Increase | [Decreass) in Cilser oument kabililies: 873853 L
(Inctease) / Dectease in Oliver gssels (51.79) 544 .37
Incyeass | (Deoegse) in Tm@oe Fayabies 235850 2.37T.88
increase | (Decease) in Oy nancial Sabililies (0.0} 24128
Inctease | (Dectease) in Provisiens (17-14) 2233
Inereass | [Deaease) in Oiher labdibies {Zaar) {906_05)
Cash generated | (used) from operallons 28,146,283 651275
Income b (paid) | refunds (net) = -
Mel eash low from | (used in) operating sclivilies 2B, 146.53 651275

B Cash Flow from Investing Activilkes

Adtititioty b Progeedty, Plant and Equiprent (546115} 100.74
Aaiitian b Capital Werk in Prggress (22 a7}
Linsey B AdivEmie 121547
Inweatrnent in share copilsd of Sidvmitaries {1.408.38)
inwestmen in-share cagitsl of Criher Enbfies {354} {%33.70)
Flxed dhepeoosit willy busnds 32321
Irvvealrmien msds 368 t4
Lassas § Depoall tecaived {076}
Inleres] Income 12158
Diwhibernd Irmorms 69.53 078
Capital Advances {2,086, 75}
Seculy Deposi Pakd (vdo.am)
Currend ivvestment in DG {1,100.045)
Sade Of Invesirment L Ll
Mt Cash Flow fnomd{used) in mvesting Activilles (15, 088.86) (382 20)
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CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd.
Statement of Consolidated Cash flows for the period ended 31st March 2025

{Rs. in Lakhs)

. For the period ended | For the period ended|
Particubs st ﬁ'::lch 2025 | 31st .i":m. 2024

[ = Cash Flow Irom Financing Activiles

sty Tesery Ebouvomwinegs (13,406,352} {H25.13)

Orverdrsi | OO Tality 6 328 40

Hepayrnent of leaus Eability (o8 15)

Finanee Gost (5, 370.60) {1,600 84)

Caat proceeds froam ksans and offier shon-tesn borrowmngs (25.449) (2412.85)

Repaymend of lnans

MNet Cash Flow irom{used) in Financing Activities [14,074.02) {5.035.17)
o Net Increase/{Decrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1.016.05 1,085.37

Cash and cash equivaients a the baginning of the period (4.874.20) (7.538.53)

Additions due bo scquisilion of subskiiaes -

Cash and cash eguivsients al e emd of the period (5.850.24) (E.443.221)

Bank Balance

Mel increase in Cash and Cash equivalents (1.016.05) 1,085.37

Far CIAN Apro industries & Infrastructure Linalted

As per pur sttached report of even date

For and on behalf of
P.G. Joshi & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FAR 1044 16W
Nikhil Gadkari Jaykumar Varma Makul Bhat Madhubala Dave Avinash P. Joshi
Munagirg Director Chairperson Chief Finance Officer Compary Secretary Pariner
DIN: 0034754 DIN-ADAES i PAN:BGSPHES FaN Mem No: F1Z218 Memberchip No_: 030904
Place : Nagpur
Date @ 30/05/2025
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Note 1: Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Corporate Information

ClAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid. (refemred to as “CIAN" or “The Company”) including its Subsidiaries, and
interests in Joint ventures, Associates and Limited Lisbility Partnerships (collectively refermed to as “the Group”™) was
incorporated on 13th Day of September 1985 under the name of Umred Agro Complex Lid. i was renamed o its present
name in the year 201 5. The Company is engaged in Agricufture, Healthcare and Infrastructure Division. It s listed on the
BSE Limited in India. The Company iz primarily engaged in three divisions — Agro. Healthcare and Infrastructure.

As at 31stMarch 2025, LLC CIAN Agro Limited, together with enfities controlied by it, has the shility to control the Group.

The consolidated financial siatement was approved for issue inaccordance with a resolution of the director on 30th May,
2025.

Material Accounting Policy

Basis for Preparation

The Consolidated Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in-accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) nofified under the Companies Rules, 2015 {a= amended from time to time) read with section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013-and presentation requirements of Division Il of schedule Il io the Companies Act, 2013 (ind AS
compliant Schedule 1), and as other pronouncements of ICAI, provisions of the Companies Act and Rules and guidelines
iszued by SEBI as applicable.

The Group's consolidated financial statements ame presented in INR(Rs.) which i= also the parent company’s functional
currency and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except otherwise indicated.

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain assels
and liabifities that ane measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below which is as follows:

- Cerlzin financial assels and liabilities measured at fairvalue:

The Financial Staiement of all entiiies used for the purpose of consofidation are draw up io same reporting date as that of
the Group. When the end of the reporting period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares,
for consolidafion purpose, addiional financial information as of the same date as the consolidated financial statemenis of
the parent to enable the parent to consofidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impactable to doso.

In the: financial statements of the cument financial year, addiional disclosures werne incorporated o ensure the true and fair
presentation of data. Furthermore, to uphold” consistency and improve comparahility, figures from prior years were
reclassified.

R Basis of Conzolidation

Subsidiaries are all enfities thaf are controlied by the Company. Control exists when company is exposed to or has the
ahifity to-affect those retumns through power over the enfity. In assessing control polential voting rights are considered only
if the rights are substanifive. The financial stalement of subsidiaries are included in these consolidated financial statemenis
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. For the purpose of preparing these consolidated
financial statements, the accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed where necessary to align them with the
policies adopied by the company.

The results of subsidiaries acquired, or sold, during the year are consofidated from the effective date of acgquisition and up
o the: effective date of disposal, 558 appropriate.

The financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated and all inter-company transactions, balances, income
and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

141

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025




CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Lid. m

CIAN —

Assets and Eabilibes of entiies with functional cumency other than the funchional curmency of the Company have been
fransiated using exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Staiement of profit and loss of such enfities has
been translated using average exchange rates. Transkation adjustiment= have been reported as foreign cumrency
fransiation reserve in the statement of changes in equity.

. Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Company’s interests in subsidianes that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The camying amount of the Company's interesis and the non-controlling interests are adjusied io reflect the
changes in their retafive interests in the subsidianes. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controliing
interesis are adjusted and the fairvalue of the consideration paid or received is recognised direcily in equity and atinbuted
o shareholders ofthe Company.

When the Group losses control of a subsidiary, @ gain or loss s recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between

(1) the aggregate of the fairvalue of the consideration received and the fairvalue of any retained inferestand

{m) the previous carmrying amount of the assels (including goodwill), and liabiliies of the subsidiary and any non-
controliing interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation o that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabiliies of the subsidiary (Le. reclassihied to
profit or loss or ransfermed to another category of equity as specified/pemitted by applicable Ind AS)

I Classification of Assels and Liabilities as Current and Non -Current

The Group’s present assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cument / non-curment classification.

An asset is classified as cumrent when it is expecied to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle or held primarily for the purpose of trading. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it iz expected io be setfled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the
purpose of trading, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least twetve months after the
reporting perioed, or there is no unconditional right to defer the settliement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
repaorting penod. The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-curmment.

Deferred fax assets and liabilities are classified a5 non-cument asset and fiabilities.

The operating cycle is the fime between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalenis. The Group has identified twelwe months as its operating cycle:

L  Useof Estimates and Judgement

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial siatements reqguires management of Group fo make estimates,
judgemenis and assumplions that affect the reported amount of assets; liabiliies, revenue, expenses and contingent
liabifities and accompanying disclosures periaining to the year Actual results may differ from such estimates.

Estimates and underying assumpfions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision in sccounting estimsates is
recognized prospectively and material revision, including its impact on Group’s consolidated financial statements, is
reparted in the notes to accounts in the year of incorporation of revision.

Information about crifical judgments in applying accounting poficies that have the most significant effect on the camying

amounis of assels and liabiliies and inrespect of assumptions and estimates on uncertainties are as follows: -

- Determination of the estimated useful lives of intangible azsets and property, plant and eguipment.

- Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligaiions. Present value of the gratuity and leave encashment
obligation i3 determined uzing actuanal vaiuations. An actuanial valualion involves making vanous assumplions that
may differ from actual developmenis in the future.

- Recogniiion and measurement of provision on frade receiable which ane have been time barmed during the financial year.

. In estimahing the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilifies.

- Recognition of deferred tax assels.

- Estimation of Expected Credit Loss on financial siatement

- Assessmentof Impairmenti onAssets

142

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025




CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Lid. m

.

CIAN —

Measurement of fair values

The Group measures certain financial instruments at fair value at each reporiing date. Fair vailue is the price that would be
received io sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trensaction between marke! participanis at the
measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advaniageous marketi to which the Group has access atthat
date. The fair value of s lisbility also refiects s non-performance risk. The Group regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. ff the third-party informafion, such as broker quoles or pricing sernvices, is
used to measure fair values, then the Group assesses ithe evidence obizined from the third parbies to support the
conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the Eirvalue hierarchy inwhich the
valuations should be classified.

While measuring the fair value of an asset or ability, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible. Fairvalues
are categorised info different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assels orliabilities.

Level 2 Inpuis other than quoted prices included in Leve! 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either
directly (Le. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices)

Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs)

Certain accounting paolicies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non- financial
assets and habilities. When guoted price in active market for an instrument is avaitable, the Group measunes the fair value
of the instrument using that price. A market is regarded as aclive iIf transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume fo provide pricing information on an ongoing basis:

If there are no quoted prices in an active market, then the Group uses a vaiuation technique that maximises the use of
relevant observable inpuis and minimises the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technigue incorporates all
of the factors that market pariicipants would take into account in pricing a transaction. Such factors may inclede Quoted
Prices for Simitar Assets or Liabiliies, Interest Rates or Yield Curves, Credil Risk and Credit Spread, etc.

The best estimate of the fair value of a fimancial instrument on inifial recognifion is normally the transaction price - Le_ the
fair value of the consideration given or received. If the Group determines thatthe fairvalue on iniial recognition differs from
the transaction price and the fair value is evidenced netther by a quoled price in an active market for an identical asset or
liability nor based on a valuation technigue for which any unobservable inputs are judged fo be insignificant in relation o
the meazurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between
the fair value on initial recognifion and the iransachion price.

Subsequently that diiference s recognised in Siatement of Profit and Loss, Other comprehensive income or retained
eamings as appropriate basiz over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuaiion is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.

V.

Cash flow

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any defemals or accruats of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash fiows from operaling, investing
and financing activities of the Group are segregated.

For the purpose of presentation inthe cash flow statement, cash and cash equivaient would include other bank balance.

V. Foreign Currency Transaction

Monetary tems : Transactions in foreign curmencies are inilially recorded at their respective exchange rates at the date
the transachon first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumency are tfransiated
into the reporting currency at the closing rate on the each reporting date. Exchange differences arising on setilement or
translafion of monetary items are recognized in statement of profit and loss on foreign currency fransaction.
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Non- Monetary item : Non- Monetary item that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign cumency are transiated
using the exchange rates at the daie of initial iransaction.

VI. Summary of Material Accounting Policy

1. Property, Plant and Equipment

a) Initial Recognifion and Measuremaont

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized at Cost. Cost includes freight, dubies, taxes {other than those recoverable
by the enbity) and other expenses direcily incidental to acquisition, bringing the asset io the location and installation. Such
costs alzo include bormowing cost if the recognition critera are met.

Spare pari= which mest the definftion of Property, Ptant and Equipment are capitalized as Property, Plant and Equipment.
In oiher cases, the spare parts are inventoried on procurement and charged to Siatement of Profit and Loss on
consumpion.

b} Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying amount or recognised 33 a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow o the Group and the costof the item can
be measured refiably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged o the Statement of Profit and Loss dunng the period
inwhich they are incurmed.

The method of subsequent measurement for all classes of assets are given as follows:

Method of Subsequent Measurement Classes of Assels
Cost Modael DOffice Equipment, Computer, Electrical
{ie. cost less accumulated depreciation and Installations, Lab Egquipment, Vehicles,
impairment loss) Cylinder, Furniture & Fodure
Revaluation Model Land, Building, Plant and Machinery
{i.e. cost plus revaluation gainf/{loss) less {Revaluation is done in every 3-5 years)
accumulated depreciation and impament loss)

€) Depreciafion

Depreciation has been provided on straight ine method in terms of expected life span of assets as referred to in Schedule I
of the Companies Act, 2013. The estimated useful ives, residuail values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted foron a prospective basis.

The range offapproximate cseful fife of the Property, Plant and Eguipment are as follows:

Group of PPE Useful Life {in Years)

1. Ptant and machinery 6-25

2. Computer hardware 35

3. Fumniture and fixtures 5-10

4. Dffice equipment 510

5. Building 10-41

6. Vehicle B

7. BElecinical Installation 10

B. Lab equipment 10
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For PPE where the entity has chosen the revaluation moded, the accumulated depreciation is offset against the revalued
amount.

As per ind AS 16 the amount of revaluation surplus arising on revaluation of PPE shall be transfemred to retained eamings
either-

- at the end of each year during the: life of the assetor

# may involve fransfeming the whole of the surplus when the asset is refired or disposed of.

Group has opted for second oplion of transtesring the whole of the surplus when the assetis retired or disposed of.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from s use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal procesds and the cammying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the assel is derecognised.

d) MNote on Revaiuation of Assets

The Company follows the revaluafion mode! for the following assefs such as Land, Building and Plant and Machinery as
pemitted under the applicable accounting standards. Under this model, assets are revalued al fair value every three years
so that the camying amount does not differ materially from their fair value st the reporiing date. Increases in the camying
amouni ansing on revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive income and asccumulated in equily under
revaluation surplus. However, if the increase reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, it is recognised in profit or loss. A decrease in the camying amount on revaluation is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent it offsets any previous revaluation surplus for the same
asset Revaluation surplus is not trensfemred to retained eamings unfill the asset is derecognised. Depreciation on revalued
aszets is charged to the Statement of Profit and Lozs based on the revalued amount and remaining useful life ofthe asset

2. Capital Work in Progress

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) comprises costs incurred on tangible fixed assets that are under construction or
development as atthe reporting date. These include direct costs such as materals, labour, and services, as well asindirect
costs that are directly atfribuiable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it o be capable of
operafing in the manner intended by management. Bommowing costs directly atiributable fo the acquisifion or constnuction
of qualifying assels are capitalised as part of the cost of the assel. CWIP is not depreciated unfil the construction or
developmeni is complete and the asset is ready for its intended use, atwhich point it is capilalised under the appropriate
class of property, plantand equipment. Regular reviews are conducted to assess the progress of projects under CWIFP and
toidentity any indicators of impairment, fapplicable.

3. Intangible Asset

Intangible assets with finite useful Ives thal are acquired separately are camed at cost less accumulated amorfization and
any accumulated impaiment losses, ifany. Amoritisation is recognised on a siraighi-line basis over their estimated useful
lives in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of camrying value of another asset

The Group has intangible asset in the nature of Computer software having useful life of 3 years.

An infangible assel is derecognised upon disposal (e, at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future
economic benefiis are expected from its vse or disposal. Any gains or losses arnising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the camying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The amortisation year and method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. if the expected useful life of the assetis
significantly different from previous esfimates, the amortisation year is changed accordingly.
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4, Intangible azset under Developmeoent

intangible Assets Under Development represent expenditure incurmed on research and development projects that are in
progress as at the reporting dale. These include cosis directly atiributable to the development phase of anintangible assat,
such as software, palents, or proprietary technology, where it is probable that the assat will generate future economic
benefils and the Company has the intention and ability to complete the development Such costs are recognized as
intangible assets under development until the development is complete and the assetis ready for its inlended use, atwhich
point the assel is transfermed o the approprisie class of intangible assets and amorfization begins. Expendilure on
research acliviies, underaken with the prospect of gaining new scientinc or technical knowiedge, is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as incumed. The camying amount of intangible asseis under development is reviewed
penodically for indicators of impairment.

5. Financial Instrument

A Financial Instrument is any coniract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another enfity. Financial assels and financial labififies are inifially measured at fair value. Transachion costs
that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial at fair
value through profit or loss) are added io or deducted from the fair value of the financial assels or financial fabiities, as
approprnate, on iniial recognition.

a} Financial Assel

. Initial recognifion and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, nthe case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, fransachon cosis that are attribulable fo the acquisition of the financial asset Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require defivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
{reguiar way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date thatthe Group commits io purchase or sell the asset.

. Subscquent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective financial assels. Based on
the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assel,
the Group classifies financial assets as subsequently measured ai amortised cost. fair value through other comprehensive
income or fair value through profii and loss,

i Debtinstruments at amortised cost
A’debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met

The assetis held within a business model whose objective is

Tohold assets for collecting contractual cash fiows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest {SFP1) on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequenfly measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amoriization is inclirded in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
losses ansing from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

i Debtinstruments at Fair valuo through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOGE)
A’debtinstrument’ i= measured at the fairvalue through other comprehensive income if both the following conditions are met:

The assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

- Collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

- GConfractual ferms of the asset give nise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, these assels are subsequently measured at fair value, any changes in value of debt instrument
are recognised through other comprehensive Income.

Balance in other comprehensive Income in relation to fair valuation reserve will be reclassified to profit and loss on sale of
such debt instrument.
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Fair value through profit and loss is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the
criteria for categorisafion as at amortised cost or as FVYOC!, is classified as at FYTPL After inifial measurement, any fair
vafue changes including any interest income, foreign exchange gain and losses, impaiment loss and other net gains and

losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

This insfrument s either invesiment in equity share of other enfity or denivative financial asset.

Investment in equity share can be shown at FVTOCH under irrevocshie option (i.e. can't show investment in equity at
FVTPL in future). In case of investmeni in eguity share shown at FVOC) under imevocable option, fair valuation reserve on

sale of such investment will be transfemed to retained eaming directly

. Impairment of Financial Asset

Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to inial recognition other than financial asseisin
FWTPL category. For financial assels other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Group recognises 12 month
expected credit losses for all orginated or acquired financial azsets if at the reporiing date the credit risk of the financial
asset has nol increased significantly since s inifial recognifion. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its mitial recognition. The Group's
trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at
an amount equal to life fime expected Insses Le. expected cash shorifall. The impairment losses and reversals ane

recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

. Derecognifion of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights fo the cash fiows from the assel expire, or when it
fransfers the financial assei and substanfially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assetto another party orwhen it
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the diference between the asset's carmying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulafive gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, is recognised in statement of profit and loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognised in the statement of profit and loss on disposal of that financial asset

b}  Financial Liability
. Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabiliies are recognised when the Group becomes a party fo the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial isbiiies are recognised inftially at fair value and, in the case of loans and bormowings and payables, net of

directly atiributable transaction costs.

. Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Interest Rate) method or are
measured at fair value through profit and loss with changes in fair vafue being recognised in the Statement of Profit and

Loss,

[ Financial liabilitics measured at amoriised cost

Financial kabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. The camying amounts of financial fiabilities that are subseguently measured at
amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of
costs of an assetisincluded in the “Finance costs’ ine item in the siatement of profit and loss: The effeciive inferest method
1= a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial ability and of aflocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated fulure cash payments (including all fees and
costs paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interesl rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liabiiity, or {(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carmying

amount on initial recognifion.
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ii. Financial liabilities at fairvalue through profit orloss (FVTPL)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilties held for trading and financial kabilities
designated upon initial recognition as FVYTPL Financial abilifies are classified as held for trading if these are incurred for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Financial liabiliies at PV TPL are siated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profitorloss.

. Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations ame discharged, cancelled or
have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instrumenis with subsiantially different terms is accounted for as an
extinguizhment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarty. a substantiz
miodification of the terms of an existing financial abilty i= accounted for as an extinguishment of the onginal financial
ability and the recognition of a new financial fiahility. The difference between the camying amount of the financial liabiity
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In case of
derecognition of financial liabilities relafing to promoters’ contribution, the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideralion paid and payable is recognised in other eguity.

. Financial guarantes contracts

Financial guaraniee contracts issued by the Group are those contracis that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
hioéder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. Financial guarantee conlracts are recognised inilially as a liabiity at fair value through profit or loss,
adjusted for transaction cosis that are directly attribuiable fo the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the fiabiity is
measured ai the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impaiment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the
amountrecognised less cumulative amoriisation.

6. Inventory

Inventories comprises of raw materials, stock-in-progress, finished goods and consumable siores. Inventorias are valued
at cost or esfimated net realizable whichever is lower. after providing for obsolescence and otherlosses, where considered
necessary. The costof inventones comprises of all cost of purchase, costof conversion and other cost incurred in bringing
imvemtories o their present locabon and condition. Nel realisable value represenis the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated cosls necessary to make the sale.

7. Leases
Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease fability at the lease commencement date.

Right-of-use asset (ROU):

The night-of-use asset is initially measured at cost. Cost comprises of the initial amount of the lease ability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, any inifial direct costs incumed by the lessee; an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the-underiying asset or to restore the underying assetor the site on which it is located less
any lease incentives received. After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the righi-of-use assel applying cost
model, which iz Cost less any accumutated depreciation and any accumuiated impairment losses. Right-of-use assetis
depreciated using straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful life of the ROU
assetorthe end of the lease term.

Leasae liability:

Lease liahility 15 inially measured at the present value of lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date.
Discounting is done using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate cannot be readily determined, fhen using Group’s
incremental borrowing rate. Incremental bormowing rate is determined based on entity’s bormowing rate adjusted for terms
ofthe lease and type of the assetleased.

Subsequently, lease liability = measured al amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease liability is re-
measured when there is a change in the lease term, a change in itz assessment of whether it will exemise a purchase,
extension or terminationopbon ora revised in-substance fixed lease payment.
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When the lease Habiity is re-measured comesponding adjustmentis made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset.
IF the carmying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero it will be recorded in statement of profit and loss.
Right-of-use assst is presented as a separate cafegorny under “non-curment assets™ and lease liabilifies are presented
under “Financial iabifities” in the balance shest.

B.

Business combinations

The Group accounts for its business combinations under acquisiion method of accounting. Acquisition related costs are
recognised in the consolidated staternent of profit and loss as incumred. The acquiree’s idenfifiable assets. labilities and
contingent lizbilities that meet the condition for recognition are recognised al their fair values at the acquisition date.
Purchase consideration paid in excess of the fair value of net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. Where the fair
value of identifiable assets and fiabiliies excead the cost of acquisition, afler reassessing the fair values of the net assets
and contingent liahiifies, the excess is recognised as capital resarve. The interest of non-controlling shareholders is
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controliing interests’ proporfionate share of the acquiree’s idenfifiable
net assets Subsequent to acquisition, the camying amount of non-contmolling inferests is the amount of fhose interests at
initial recognition plus the non-controliing interests’ share of subseguent changes in equity of subsidianes. Business
combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under common control are accounted at histoncal cost.
The difference between any considerafion given and the aggregate historical camying amounts of assets and liabilities of
the acquired enfity is recorded in shareholders’ equity.

Contract Asset/Liability:

Contract assels are recognised when there are excess of revenues eamed over bilfings on contracts. Confract assets are
classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending ) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and
only passage of fime is required, as per confraciual terms. Uneamed and defemred revenue (“contract liability”) is
recognised whenthere are billings in excess of revenues.

10.

1

Income Tax and Deferred Tax

Income-tax Assels and liabiliies are measured at the amount expecied o be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorifies. The iax rates and tax laws used o compute the amount are those that are enacled or substantively
enacted, by the end of reporiing period.

Current Tax ilems are recognized in comelation to the underlying fransaction either in the Statement of Profit and
Loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Defermred tax is provided using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of asseis
and liabilities and their camying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporiing date.

Deferred tax liabilfties are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for
all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses:

Defemead tax assets are recognized fo the extent that it is probable that taxsble profit will be available against which
the deductible iemporary differences, and the camy forward of unused {ax credits and unused 1ax losses can be
utilized. The carying amount of defemed tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it iz no longer probable that sufficient faxable profit will be available to alfow all or part of the defermed tax assetio be
utilized.

Unrecognized deferred fax assels are re-assessed al each reporiing dale and are recognized to the extent that it
has become probable that future faxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilifies are measured at the fax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is setiled, based on tax rates and tax Iaws that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the reporiing date.

Deferred tax assets and defermred tax abilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off cument tax
assels against cument tax liabilities and the defermed taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority:
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11. Cashand Cash Equivalent

CIAN —

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated statement of assets and Rabiliies comprize cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changesin
value. For the purpose of the consolidated statlement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shori-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outsianding bank overdrafts, if any, as they are considered an infegral part of the

Group's cash management.

12. Revenuc Recognifion

1. As per pmovision of IND AS 115 - ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customer’, revenue is recognised on fransfer of
control of goods or services to a customer st an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitied to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured st the amount of fmnsaction prce (net of vanable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold, and services rendered is net of variable consideration
on account of discounts offered by the Group as part of the contractuzl cbligation. Revenue (net of variable
considerafion) is recognised only o the extent that it is highly probabie that the amount will not be subject to
significant uncertainty regarding the amount of consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. The
performance obligation in case of sale of goods is safisfied at a point in fime i_e_, when the materisl is shipped to the
customer or on delivery to the cusiomer, as may be specified in the confract. Sales are net of relums, trade

discounts, rebates and sales taxes/ Goods and Service Tax (GST).

2. Construction Confract Revenue is recognised over time as the services are provided by output method as per Ind
AS 115, the percentage of progress for determining the amount of revenue to recognise is assessed based on

surveys conducted by independent surveyor of work performed.

3 Security deposit interes! income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR), which is the rale that discounts
the estimated future cash paymenis or receipts through the expected life of the financial instruments. or a shorter
period, where appropriale, iothe net camying amount of the financial assets. Other Inferest income is recognized as
and when received at actusl rate. Interest income iz included in other income in the Statement of Profii and Loss.

4 Oither income have been recognized on acomeal basis in the Group’s consolidaled financial slatements.

13. Employee Benefits
a)  Short-Term Employee bonefits

All employes benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are clasaified as short-term
empioyes benefits: Benefits such as salaries, performance incenfives, elc., are recognized as an expense at the
undiscounied amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the employee renders the related

SEIVICE.

b} PostEmployment Benefits
. Defined Benefit Plans

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the cument and prior periods, after discounting the same.
The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a gualified actuary using the projected unit
credit method. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive Income (OG1). Met interest expense (income) on the net defined
fiability {azseis) s compuied by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset). Net
mierest expense and other expenses refated to defined benefit plans are recognized in Statement of Profit and
Loss. When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a planis curtailed, the resufting change in benefit that relates
to past service or the gain or loss on curtaiiment is recognized immediately in Siatement of Profit and Loss. The
Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit pian when the setiement ocours.
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Defined Contribution Plans
Payments made to a defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident Fund
Office are charged as an expensa in the Statement of Profit and Loss as they fall due.

Provisions and Confingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation az a resull of a past event; i is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required o settle the obligation and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of the obigation can be made. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. The expenses relafing o a provision
is presented in the Statement of Profitand Loss net of any reimbursement.

The Group uses significant judgemenis o assess confingent habilities. Contingent labilifies are disciosed when
there is & possibie obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
OCCUITENCE Of non-occumrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group ora
present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probabile that an outfiow of resources will be
required to sefile the obligation or a refiable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Eamings Per Share
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period atinbutable to equity shareholders by
the weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the perod.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit for the penod atiributed o equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of
all ditutive potential equity shares.

Deferred Tax:

Deferred fax is recognized on temporary differences between the carmying amounts of assets and liabifities in the
financial staiements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computabion of taxable profit Deferred lax
liabilities @re generally recognized for all taxable iemparary differences. Defered fax assels are recognized for all
deducfible temporary diferences, the carmy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the exient that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which those deductible femporary differences and losses can
be ulilized.

Current Tax:

The cument tax is measured based on taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the applicable tax
taws enacted or subsiantively enacied at the reporting date. Management peniodically evaluaies positions taken in
tax retums with respect to sifuations inwhich applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation, and establishes
provisions where appropriate.
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MNote 4
Mon-Current Investments
{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars I1st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
(A} Investment in Equity instruments
a) Abhudaya Co-Op Bank Ltd 0.01
tb) lanta Sahakar Bank Ltd 7.95
ic} Lokmangal Co-op Society 10,00 =
idy Maharashtra State Co-operative Bank Ltd 707.36
f) BAumbai District Central Co-operative Bank Ltd 257.46 =
ig) MNagpur Nagarik Sahakari Bank Led 46.17 2
(k) Mirmal Ujjwal Credit Co-aperative Society Lt 12,50
(I Saraswal Co-Op Bank Ltd .25
{j] Shikshak Sahzkari Bank Itd 10.03 £
(k) TISB Sahakari Bank Lid 0.27
(1) Vidhya Sahakari Bank Ltd 2051 -
{m) MDCC Membership Fee .00
tn) Wardha Nagri Sahkari (Adhikosh) Bank Ltd 30,04
{a) MPVPL £.61
{p) 67,736 Mo of Shares of The Maharashtra State Co-Operative - -
(i) Other ungquoted Equity instruments (Valued at cost)
ia) INBD Express Private Limited
b} Yawvatmal Urban Co. Op. Bank 17.50 17.50
{c} Samruddhi Urban Co.Op. Bank 2.96 296
{d) Wardha Nagar| Sahakar| Bank 12.50 10.00
{e} Nagpur Nagrik Sahakari Bank 2.87 2.87
1F) Jankalyan Sahakari Bank Lid 5.07 5.07
(g) TISE Bank Ltd. 0.21 0.21
{hjakola Urhan Co.Op. Bank 27.62 T.a2
{i) Investment in Stressed Asset Fund (Ungquoted) . ‘
1i] Others 0.03
(i) Other ungqueted Equity instruments (Valued at fair value through OCI)
(a) Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Ltd, 5.64 5.64
{b) Other pon current investment unquoted valued at cost 27.32 .
(B} Investment in Preference share (Valued at fair value through profit or loss)
{3} Investment in Stressed Asset Fund (Unguoted) 497 .99 ‘
{b) Manas Agro Industries & Infrastucture Lid, 102.45 102.45
1,816.32 174.32
As at As at
Farvicplars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
- Aggregate book value of guoted investments - -
- Aggregate market value of guoted investments = =
- Aggrepate carrying value of unquoted investments 1,816.32 174.32

- Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments

The investment in unguoted equity Instruments of Banks have been made for obtaining loans or cash credits limited as

applicable, the above investmeents are valued at cost.
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Note 5
Loan - Norn current {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
|#A) Security Deposits- Utilities 117.82
(B) Loans Receivable
Crther Loans T46.61 .
Total BE4.43

CIAN —

The Parent Company holds non-current financial assets arising solely fram banking transactions, which are classified as loans giver
at a 0% coupon rate smounting to 210,68 Lakhs which are classified under “Other Loans" | In aceordance with the requirements of
Ind AS 104 — Finaricial Instruments, these assets hawve been fair valued using a discount rate of 12% during the year, determined

based on the average of prevailing market interest rates and the creditworthiness of the company,

Note &
Other Financial Assets-Non-Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
A Security Deposit 1,159.75 17.07
{B] Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity
(1) Fixed Deposits 2,362.79 i63.01
(€] Custem Duly - Pre-Mandatory Deposit 1202 -
(D) Unamaortised Discount 2994
(&} Unamortized refund MSEDCL 2042
|F| MiSEDCL- Refund Recewable 188.69
|G Unamartised Discount 26,39
Total 3, 80000 180.07

The Security Deposits are for accessing utilities and hawve an indefinite life. hence it is impracticable to determine their fair value.

Note T
Other Non-Current Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
() Capital Advances 18.873.48 300.00
{B] Advance towards OT% of loan . 2,500.00
1€) Receivabie from Revenue Autharities Othen 0476
(D) Capital Advance to Related Party 2,547.03 -
Total 21,725.27 2,800.00
Nate &
Inventories {Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(&) Raw Materials (Including Packing Materials) 51331 1,007.22
(] Work-n-progess 1,616,322 2.360.99
{C) Finished Goods 12973168 4,517.89
(D) Stock-in-trade 3327003 2,274 60
{E} Stores and spares 506019 5,358.02
{F] Capital WIF- GBOK 204.43 3
1G] Raw Material 1.841.79 JB.82
{H] Fuel far Boiler 12,275.10 =
Tatal 39,426.84 15,617.53

L. Valuaticn Technigue: Inventory is valued st the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV), Throughout the year, the Group
conducted inspections to identify any material discrepancies that could result in a significant decline in NRV. No such discrepancies

were Townd during the year

1. The Wark-In-progress amount Includes the cost of land & development costs with respect to the projects.

3. Far inventory pledged as security, refer Mote No. 18
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Mate 3
Investments-Current
(R in Lakhs}
Particulars As at 3ist March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
&) Unguated investment in Debentures or bonds
[I] Optianally convertible debenture of Subsidiary Entibes - &,3594.08
(8] Invastmont in Unguoted Fund
(i} Investment In units of Stressed Asset Funds -
Total = 6,394.08
Particulars Asat 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
- Aggregate book value of quoted Investment: -
- Aggragate market value of quated imvestment: - -
- Aggregate carrying vatue of unguoted investment: 5,304.08
- Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments -

“During the previcus financial year, the Company had invested m 63935 lakh Optionally Convertible Debentures (OCDs) of facs value 10 each,
isdaued by Manas Power Vanhmres Privale Limited, beanng a nominal coupon rate of 0.01% per annum. These OCDs wers convertible into & fved
number of equity shares at the discreton of the Company. In the cumont financsl yaar, the Company axercsed the conversion apiion and subscnbed
1o 581 equity shares of fzce value 10 each &t & premium of 11,00 420 per shame, sggregating io 63,593,493, in accordance with the valustion
report and the Brms set cud under the preferential issus and the undardying soreement batween the eniities.

Consequently, dunng the curent financial year, Cian Agm indusmes & infrastructure Limited acqured control over Manas Power Venturas Privaie
Lirnited upon convarsian of the OCDs into equity shares. The resulting inbra-group nvestment has been sliminalad on consolidation as part of inber-

casmpany transactens.”
Mote 10
Trade Receivables-Current
[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particilars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024

i} Trade Receivables - Considered Good Unsecured

{1} D from Ralated Party - 135031

it} e from Others 16,828 4R 248185
(8] Trade Receivables - Considered Good Socured

{i] Due fram Others o4R3 Bl
Total I6,312.29 3,832,326

Trade Heceivables Ageing Schedule s pt 31at March 2025

Particuars

Dutstanding for fotlawing pertads fram due date of payment

tass than & months | 6 months -1 year | 13yeaes | 23 years | Mptethan Tortal

Undisputed Trade reretvaiiles — considened goo 2092208 LS1may L= ik 144161 154139 26,312.39
Undisprited Trade Recevabies - which hawe significant increase & cradin rs - - - - - -
tndisputed Trade Aoceivables — crudit smpaime
Dispatwd Trids Recalvabis-cansidered goo:
Dispaiten Trade Recaiuabies = which hawe signilcint Inerpays o oradit i
Disﬂlﬁd Triche Nastaiyaliesy — cradit smprmed

Toad 10,522.18 1,510.37 155,03 1,443,681 1,541,100 | 25,312,39

Trade Recervables Ageing Schedule as ot 15t March 2024

Paraular

Dutstanding for follewing perods from due dete of poymeni

Less than & manths

&months - 1 year

1-2years | Z-3years | More than 3 yean Total

Undsputed Trade tedeivablies — cimbdered good 6132 48578 1.311.42 142.03 135165 | 3.232.3%
Unslisguted Trads Receivabbin — shich have sgnilicen) ocrsass incredil msk = - - - H -
Uridispratind: Trade Aeccivabiles — oredit -

Dispisted Trade Recelvallor-tonwdored good

Dispisted Trade Recoivalies — which haee significant increase n cradie rok

Bispuied Trade Recelvablss — credd impaired - -

Tazal 581.33 AE5.TH | 131148 10203 LA51.A5 | 333126
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Note 11
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
(A} Balances with Banks
{i} In Current Accounts 1,601.99 25.03
(i) Demand deposits with Banks with original maturity 45.46 -
of less than three month
{iii] Others -1,623.25 =
(B} Cash on hand 17619 13.74
Total 203.39 38.77
Note 12
Loans - Current [Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
(A} Loans to Realted parties 1,080.34 -
(B) Other Loans
(i} Loans receivables Considered Good - Unsecured 1206582 182.16
Tatal 13,146.16 182.16
MNote 13
Other Financial Assets-Current (Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A} Advances other than capital advances.
(i) Security Deposit 1,294.02 15.73
(B) Others
i} Interest Receivable #45.33
(] Interest Recelvable from Farmers 43.84 -
{iii] Receivable from Redemption of Investmen - -
{iv) Advance for Investment 528.52
{v] Intercorporate Deposit Given to Subsidiary = =
{vi) Other Loans and advances 13.56 -
{vil] Dther Financial Assets - Current 131.00 50.00
Total 2,060.28 65.73
Mote 14
Current Tax Assets (Net) (Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
(A) Income Tax
(i} Tax Deducted at Source Receivabli 261,09 44.98
(it} Tax Collected at Source Receivabl 30.09 24.06
{iii) Refund Receivable - Previous years 38.98 38.98
{iv] Receivables from Tax Authoritie: E06.69 -
Tatal 1,136.85 108.02
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Mote 15
Other Current Assets
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particial As at As at
oo g 315t March,2025 31st March, 2024
[A) Advances other than Capital Advances
(i} Advance to Suppliers 732713 1,737.40
(i) Advance o Related Party - 137.87
(ili} Advance to Directors - 163.66
(v} Advance to Staff 15891
(B) Others
(i} Statutory Advance 983 66 472
(i} Prepaid Expenses 724.09 100
(il Recelvable fram Subsidiary Company-Varron Aluminium Pyt Lid s 3,550.85
(iv) Balances with Statutory/Government authorities B0E02
(v] Lease Egualisation Reserve 03s
(vi} Other Claims Charges Receivable 1,029.14
[wii) Others 9.40
Talal 10.897.71 5. 083.07

During the previous financial year, the Company made a paymeni of 13,550.89 lakhs o Vamon Aluminium Privale Limited as parl of the
approved Resolution Plan (RP) under lhe Corporaie Insolvency Resolulion Process (CIRP). Subseguently, dunng the current inancial
yuar, the alloimen! of shares has been completed, and Varmon Aluminium Privale Limided has become 2 subsidiary of the Comparny.

MNote 16
Equity Share Capital

{Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

[A) Authorised Capital
(i) Equity Share Capizal
446,00, 000 shares-of Rz, 10 each (previous year 4,46,00,000
coguity shares of Rs, 10 each)

{ii) Preference Share Capital
15000 Shares.of Bs. 100 each (Previous year 15000 shares of Rs.
100 each]

(8] 1ssued, Subscribed and Pald-up Capital
(1] Equity Share Capital
2,79 85 895 shares of Rs, 10 each {previous year 2,79,85 595
shares of Rs. 10 each)

A475.00

24798.349

A475.00

272854

Total

2798.59

2798.59

The Company has isswed only ane class of shares nemely equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of

equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,

Reconciliation of No, of Equity Shares

Particulars Az at 315t March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
{A) Dpaning Balance 279.86 279.86
(B} Shares lsswed - -
(€] Closing Balance 279.85 279.86
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Datails of shareholders holding more than 5H shares

CIAN —

{Mo.of shares in lakhs)

As at 31st March 2015 A &t 31st March 2024
Namea of Shareholder ge Change
Number of shares Pemen?e of | Number of shares | Percentage of during the year
sharahoiding shareholding
Chaitunya Canstructlond and Bullders Pyt Lid el L 7% 115 7% 0,0%
Purli Marketing Pt Lid 453 16.2% 453 16.23% 0.0%
Smnanh Fuels Put L 7313 26.1% 73.13 26.1% 0,05
Purti Contract Farming Pvit Lid, L 13.8% 387 13,85 0.0%
Tatal 178,53 E3.8% 178,53 £3.8% 0.0%

The Hon'ble Mational Company Law Tribunal, vide its order dated Tth May, 2025, approved lhe amalgamation of Avinash Fuels Privale
Limited. Purli Marksting Private Limited, Greenedge Gonstruciions Private Limited, Magpur Sugars Private Limibed, and Purli Gonlracd
Farming Private Limiled inlo Chaitanya Construclions and Builders Private Limited. This merger, elfective from 30th Seplember and
15l Ociober 2024, consalidales 65_88% promoler holkding in CLAN Agrm Inustries and nfrastructure Limited under a single enlity named

Chaflanya Gonstruchions and Buillders PwlLid |

Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2025

Promoter Name No. of shares % of total shares. N'Gane t.l“"nﬂ
the period
Sundartai Mahadeo Kharbikar 500 0.00% 0%
Nanda Shinsh Harode 7,500 0.03% 0%
Kalpana Trilokchand Sorte 1,800 0.01% 0%
Dattu Balajl Kalambar 1,000 0.00%: 0%
Uday Amrut Lambat So0 0.00%. 0%
Keshao Bhaskarrao Chandle 500 0.00% 0%
Pravin Waman Bakde 1,000 0.01% 0%
Preatu Amrut Lambat 2,000 0.01% 0%
Sudher Shrihari Voditel 1,000 0.D0% 0%
Anand Shankar Kamat 1,03,500 0.37% 0%
Chaitanya Constructlons and Bullders Pyt Lid 21,50,000 7.68% 0%
Purti Marketing Pyt Ltd 45,20,000 16.15% 0%
Ayinash Fusls Pyt Ltd. 73,13,250 26.13% 0%
Purti Contract Farming Pt Lid. 38,70,000 13.83% 0%
Greenedge Constructions Private Limited B,63,531 3005 0%
Wi Activ Soi -Tech Communications Private Limited 1,000,000 0.36% Q%
Total| 1,89,38,121 67.67%

Shares held by promoters as at 31st March 2024

Promaoter Name Mo, of shares % of total shares % Uhangs dutiog

the period
Sundartal Mahadeo Kharbikar S0 0.00% 0%
Wznda Shirish Harode 7.500 0.03% 0%
Kalpana Trilokchand Sorte 1,800 0.01% 0%
Datiu Balaji Kalambkar 1,000 0,00% 0%
Uday Amrut Lambat 500 0.00% 0%
Keshao Bhaskarrao Chandle SO0 0,005 0%
Pravin Waman Bakde 3,000 0.01% 0%
Preetu Amrut Lambat 2,000 0.01% O
Sudher Shriharl Yoditel 1,000 0.00% 0%
Anand Shankar Kamat 1,03,500 0.37% 0%
Chaitanya Constructions end Builders Pyt Led 21,50,000 T.68% 0%
Purti Marketing Pyt Lid 45,20,000 16.15% 0%
Avinash Fuels Pyt, Lid, 73,13,290 26.13% 0%
Purti Contract Farming Pvt, Lid. 38,770,000 13.83% 0%
Greenedge Constructions Private Limited 863,531 3.09% 0%
WinA Activ Sl -Tech Communicatlons Private Limited 1,00,000 0.36% 0%
Total 18938121 67.67%
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Note 17
Other Equity
[Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
{A) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 468.56 468.56
Add: Gain from Bargain Purchase of subsidiaries 1,849,144.62
Less : Transfer made during the year 1o retained earnings -16.43
Ciosing Balance 1,89,596.75 468.56
(B) Capital Reserve created on account of cammaon control
transactions
Opening Balance 177.06 177.06
Closing Balance 177.06 177.06
(C) Securities Premibum
Dpening Balance 321.93 321.93
Closing Balance 321.93 321.93
(D) Revaluation Reserve
Cpening Balance 6,024.89 6,599.11
Less: Unwinding OF Revaluation Surplus to Retained Eamings 452,23 -574.22
Less: Transfer made during the year via OCl to retained earnings - -
Closing Balance 5.572.66 5,024.89
(E] Retained Earnings
Opening balance -B60.67 -2,065.98
Add - Profit/(Loss) for the year as per Statement of Profit and Loss 4,089.71 490.42
Add : Unwinding of revaluation surplus 452.23 574.23
Add : Unwinding of revaluation surplus{Deferrad Tax) 117.58 117,58
Add.: Other Comprehensive income for the year as per Statement of 1472 1411
Profit and Loss
Less r Adjustment due to Fair Valuation -4,112 68
Closing Balance -328.12 -869.67
{F) Equity Component Of Compound Financial Instrument
Acquisition due to Business Cambination -1, 760,24 -
-1,760.24 -
(G) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
COpening Balance 1.56 -2.02
Add/(less) : Transfer made during the period -4.19 3.58
Closing balance -2.62 1.56
Total 1,93,577.44 6,124.34
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Mature and purpose of compenoents of other equity

{A) Capital Reserve

Capital Reserve represents profits and gains of a capital nature arising at the group level, which are not available for
distribution as dividends. It includes gain cn bargain purchase, recognized when the net assets acquired in a business
combination exceed the consideration paid, as per Ind AS 103 {Business Combinations). This reserve is maintzined for
long-term strategic investments and other legally permissible purposes, in comphance with the Companies Act, 2013,
applicable Ind AS, 2nd the Group’s accouniing policies.

{B) Capital Reserve created on account of common conirol transactions

Capital Reserve created on account of common coniral iransactions is the gain on recognition of Merger of the
company's erstwhile subsidianes with the company during the financial year 2018-20, as per the requirements of Ind AS
103 Business Combination.

(C) Securities Premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on i2sue of shares. The reserve is ufilised in accordance with the
provisions of sechion 52 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(D) Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation Reserve represents gains ansing from the revaluation of the Group's Property, Plant & Equipment and
Intangible Assets. It is imnsfemed o Retained eamings in the proporfion of the excess depreciation charged o
Statermnent of Profit & Loss every year.

(E) Retaincd Eamings

Retained Eamings represent the accumulated net profits or losses of the Group, adjusted for dividends, appropriations,
and transfers._ itincludes movements from Other Comprehensive Income (OCH), Revaluation Reserve, and other equity
adjustmenis in accordance with the applicable Ind AS and the Group's accounting policies

(G) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve
Exchange differences ansing on transiafion of the foreign operations are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are accumulated in foreign currency transiation reserves. The cumulative amount is reciassified to profit or loss
when the foreign operations are disposad-off.
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Mote 18
Borrowings-Mon Current
{Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 3158 March, 2025 As @13 15t March, 2024
Parthoulars =
- rramt
Blon-Current Current Maturities Mon-Current T
[A] Térm Loans
|i} Guatanteed by directors or athess
(3] From Banks - Sacuired T5.991. 17 12,058 84 144290 13464
(b} From Banks - Unsecured - - - -
B} Loans
[i} Intercarparate Depesis - Unwecured 1,165.51 Saedh 1467 66 460,50
[al} Lavan - sbhars 75041 52624 - -
[C} Loan from redated Party
[ Liability component of com pound financial imtrament 239301
[E] Debentures
Total 80,301.01 13,214.33 2,911{k.56 1,195.14

Intercorporate Deposits include amount payable fo Khare and Tarkunde Pvi Lid. Such an amount was received as a
performance security toform a joint venture for a housing infrastructure development project to be taken up based on the
project’s feasibility. However, bolh parfies have backed off the agreement and the amount has been reclassified as
intercorporate deposit aving a tenure of 5 years. The carmying amount of the iability has been fairvalued.

Details of Security and Terms of Repayment

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Amount Qutstanding as
rt T i
Particulars on 315t March 2025 erms of Repayment Security
Term Loans from Banks 14,62 flepaydble dn. 2526 By Land & Bullding
Maonthly Instaliments
1 Land & Building, Plant
Term Loans from Banks 959,13 fepaymen In by 27.38 & Machinery. of the
by Manthly Instalimenits :
aplces umt
Plant & Machinery,
Langd & Building,
Repayable in 2526 b
Term Loans from Banks 199.95 o ¥ Stock, Debtors of the
fonthly Installments
alphanso processing
urilk
le i 7
Term Loans from Banks s4336 | Pepavable in 2627 by |\ L. b iding
Manthly Instaliments
Plant & Machinary,
Land & Building,
Ie | .
Term Loans from Banks 34,30 nepayable- In. 2520 by Stock, Debtors of the
Manthly Instalfments d
Aluminium processing
unit
Plant & Machinary,
: Land & Building,
abl 5-26 b
Term Loans from Banks 11.96 megmbC . o3 ¥ Stock, Debtors of the
Maonthly Installments 2 d
Aluminium processing
unit
Term Loans from Banks graay | FEswbie” in 2708 by |, o
Maonthly Instaliments
ble | -26 b
Term Loans from Banks 74.28 HEppape: 1R L5 ¥ Vehicles
Monthly Instaliments
162
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Term Loans from Banks

21,601,839

Repayable in 34-35 by
Maonthly Installments

Fined Assets,
Immaovable Property,
Invenitories, Stack,
Wark-in-progress,
Trade Recalvalbioes

Term Loans from Banks

30,564.91

Repayable in 33-34 by
Monthly Instaliments

Fixed Assets,
Immavable Property,
Invenitories, Stock,
Wark-in-progress,
Trade Recelvables

Term Loans from Banks

14,360.53

Repayable in 29-30 by
fonthly Installments

Movable Fixed Assets,
Immaovable Property

Term Loans from Banks

2,735.87

Hepayable in 28-30 by
Monthly Installments

fMovable Fixed Assets,
Immovable Property

Tarm Laans from Banks

2,387,234

Repayable in 31-32 by
Manthly installments

Plant & Machinery
and Landg & Building

Other Loans

1,754.16

Repayable in 28-29 by
yearly Installments

CIAN —

The rate of interest for term loans from banks ranges from 11% p.a to 13.75% p.a

Note 19

Lease Liabilities-Non Current (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31st March,2025 | As at 31st March, 2024

Lease Liabilities 341.56

Total 341.56 =

The one of the Step-down Subsidianes has lease contracts for land and buildings, icense fees. The weighted average
incremental bommowing rate applied to discount iease Gabiities s 12.36%.

(i) The movement in Lease liabilities during the year

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024
Opening Balance
Acquisition through Business Combination 968.70 -
Additions / (Deductions) during the year [Net) -546.85 -
Finance costs incurred during the year 25.94 -
Payments of Lease Liahilities 34.92 -
Closing Balance 412.86 -

(ii) The carrying value of the Rights-of-use and depreciafion charged during the year
For details pertaining to the camying value of right of use of lease assets and depreciation charged thereon during the
year, kindly refer nole - "2 2, Right-of-Use Azseis.”
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(iif) Amounts recognised in statement of cash flow {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year::::d Miaren:3, For the year ended Mareh 31, 2024
Total Cash outflow for Leases 34.92
(iv) Maturity analysis of lease liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
P 1
AEGNigrs 315t March,2025 315t March, 2024
Maturity Analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows
Less than one year 71.30 -
One to three years 141.43 -
Three to flve years 11557 -
Maore than five years 552.25
Total undiscounted Lease Liability &80.55 -
Balances of Lease Liabllities
Mon Current Lease Liability 341.56
Current Lease Liability 71.30 5
Total Lease Liability 412.86
Note - 19.1
Lease Liability - Current
Particulars As at 31st March,2025 As at 31st March, 2024
[Lease Liahility - Current 7130
[Total 71.30
Mote 20
Provisions-Non Current {Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 315t March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
(A) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Provision for Leave encashment 108,16 18.54
{ii) Provision for Retirement gratuity 1.000.03 a47.37
tiProvision for Bonus 19.38 21.20
{iv)Provision tor Ex Gratia 50.92 64.97
Total 1,178.49 152.08
Movement in Non Current Provisions
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025
(&) Provision for Employee Benefits
Balance as at 1st April 2024 152,08
Additions through Business Combination 916.12
Provisions made during the year 266.36
Provisions utilised during the year 160,84
Provisions reversed during the year -
Balance as at 31st March 2025 1,173.72
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Additional Information about Provis

The Provision for Employee Benefits has been created for the Iiability of employee benefits payable beyond 12 months to
empioyees during their employment and post-refirement. The amount of outlows expected and its timing is as per the

CIAN —

achusnal report.
Note 21
Dwferred Tax Liabilities {Not]
|ijm' Components of Deferred Tox LGability / Asset (net)
(R, in Lakhs}
Particulers As gt 358t March, 2025 B at 31t March, 2024
) Dieferred Tax Lisbiiities
il WU Assat 3 E
] #rogerty Mant and Equipment 1,680,39 1,081
(i} Difference betwaen book base and tax hase of proparty, plant and equipmas 16,316.83 E
{Iw| Fair Waluation Changes 35.73 .
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities Tatal (1) 17,832.94 1,777.8L
|8} Deferred Tax Assets
{il  PFrovision Tor Expensas 40,7 408
{ii] PFrovision for Statutory Dues Payable o.TE 1549
i} Unuscd Too] Cresfits) Losses B1.8L oo13
{iw]  Liskiliy Far Rent E
vl Ermgloyes benef it obligaton IT.EL -
(wi] Defference between book base and tax baze of Trada Payable 25.26 -
i} Faer Valuation changes 13,57 -
{wiiip Proporty Plans and Fquipmeaent 1441.02 £
Gross Deferred Tan Assets Total (1) 262242 138.90
et Deferred Tax Liabilities Tatal {1- 1) 15,210.52 163891
Mtowernest in Pefered Tan Lishilay (Net] for ihe peas ended Bt Maecs 2025
Opening Balance | Additions due Recogrised in o el Recopnésed  |Closing Balance
Particidary @ at Est Al Buginess it tese L of gorodil Prandiin diFaitly in s at 3Lar
o Cambifatian il ki it sifdEy Mrck, MI2E
Tan effect of Boms (onadituting Defored Tes Liohilties | T
11} ) Adiet = . =
i} Propeiy Mant und [oepmetil |¥FreaL £, Bba a) ABE N5 - -117.50 17, 78655
i) Defined fenedi Plan 10:14 0
|iw] Dppreciaton s
vl intmrgible Adsety 0.3 (L]
il Linmmpriised Dacoont-UMD0 Shektd 13-Lomg - - -
|v¥) Sramnrtzed Dacosmi-EMD Shpits B3 edeam)| TEY -L.x LT
| traymprtaed Dacount - S0 Snakh 03 Mediom Boond 6 5 5.1
1) Unamurtised Dacsoedt-MELOCL retund receivable 545 4.9 E 4.y
[l Iwmstment in Stressed Asset Fund pnay - (AEi 0]
|sp Pimancimd ik ibies - Borroawmgs -~ Tem loon from banks - s=owred 1152 2 o[
|k} Fmancinl lissilities - florrowimgs - Term loan froem Banks - seoomed 1166 -&AY E L4 E]
TDLIW 177781 1571575 461.97 1014 -117.58 17 BL3 58
Tan effed1 of ifems innafivuting Defered Tas fpstn:
iy Fiovision [GrExpiskes alF: 00 - - anm
|} Brosminn for Stetutory Duss Payabls 1ay = 1,77 27
10l Slramed Tem Cragdity Lo 2011 - L6a2 H1HL
fiwl Lish¥ity For Aent - . . .
¥l Property Plest sred Equipment 2.3m2] .0 - 245117
[l - Frerisinn for retrement grabusy Larr -147 143 - 1imi
[vi) Premtuian for Leavs encashment a4% a5 - 57
[} Trade Payabies 254 26
[ - Mrowarabom for Boran L F = {1811] (251
iml  Prevision Sor Esgratia S.AaT - =47
|2l PISEDLL - Aefurd Arcoweable 1.1z 13
[ma ecumiby Depaait L2845 L 1085
Toaal {B) 133.90 235733 894.72 101 263156
Dieferred Taw Liabilites |Met) Total (a-B) 1.538.91 133138 JGT.25 213 ~L17.58 15,110.52
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Maosement kn Deferred Tax Liabillty (Nei] for the year ended 3151 March 2022

Opening Balance Recognised in Recognised in had Clasing
Particulars as at 1st April, [statemont of profit other diract] Eln: ity balance as at
1073 and Loss comprehansive v in e 315t March,
Tax effoct of items constituting Deferred Tax Liahilitios -
[1y RGO Asset 133.53 -£33.53 . :
iy Property Plant and Equigmient 1a76.48] 18.91) 11758 1,777.81
Tatal |A] 2010.01) 114,62 -117,58) 1,777.81
Tax effect of itemns constituting Deferred Tax Assets:
{1} Pravision for Expenses 3786 232 - = 4078
[il) Provision for Statutory Dues Payable 14.37] -6,38 - 7.9
(1) Urused Tax Credits) Losses 18,61 F152 80.13
[} Liability For Bent 170.52 11052
Tetal (B) 241 46 .102 56 13850
Deferred Tax Lisbilities [Het' Total 1.&-5] ATER.55 -12.06] 1,638.91
Note 32
Other Non Current Lisbklitles iR, In Lakhs)
= I Aa at As At
rHiculars 31st March, 2025 F1st March, 2024
l:.ﬂ.:l Bduances fronn Custormers - 1,404 87
18} VAT znd Sabes Tax Deferement 3.529.57 .
|} Security Deposits/Othet Depoalts 57,35
0] Othar Non-Current Lisbifities 582
{E) Loase Liabildy-Mon Curment - -
Total A,256,74 1,404.82
MNote 23
Borrowings-Current
{Rs. in Lakhs)
As Al st
atlolleys Flst March, 2025 | 315t March, 2024
(A) Leans Repayable on Demand
(1] Guaranteed by directors or athes
(&} From Banks
(1) Cash Credit from Bank - Secured 26,120.08 130964
{2) tverdraft from Bank - Secured b,113.9% 517235
(3} Unsecured-Shadt Term Loan From Banks 3,041.65
(8} Loans from Related Parties
(C) Other Loans and Advances
(Il Imtercorporate Deposits - Unsecured BE.54 101 48
(i) Dbt Loans 11.12 -
[if} Gther \Working Caplial Loans
(I} Intercosparate eposits- IEPL
{vl Cello Caprtal Private Limited 123,19
[wi} Rootcrops Trading Put Ltd 218.13
{wii} Febeal Energy Project Limited -
[wiii)'Waorkd Times News Private Limited S00.00
{1u} Manes Power Wenture Private Limitad -
(%] Loan from Directors 150,48
(D] Current Maturities of Long Term Debt (Reder Mote E8) 13,214.33 1,195.14
Total 449,372,650 T 77861
Security

The Parent has Gashcredit facility of Rs. 1,308.17 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Ptant & Machinery,

Land & Building, Stock, Debiors of the Aluminium processing unil

The Parent has Overdraft facility of Rs. 952 48 Lakhs from hanks is secured by hypothecation of Land & Building, Plant &

Machinery of the spices unil.
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The Parent has Overdraft facility of Ris. 5,121.51 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Plant & Machinery,

Land & Building, Stock, Debiors of the Oil processing unit

The Parent has Cash credit facility of Bs. 706.51 Lakhs from banks is secured by hypothecation of Stock and Debiors of

Alphonso Mango Processing Uinil

1. The Step-down Subsidiary. Manas Agro Industries & Infrastructure Ltd. has taken cash credit facility amounting to

R=. 18,248.81 which has been secured against the hypothecation of the stock and deblors.

2. The Step-down Subsidiary, Ideal Energy Projects Lid. has taken cash credit facility amounting to Rs. 5, 856.59 Lakhs
which has been secured against the hypothecation of movable and immovable properties of the Company.

Mote 24
Trade Payables {Rs. in Lakhs)
icul As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A, Total outstanding dues of micro 1,510,595 .55
B. Total outstanding dues of creditors
(i) Due to Related Farties 3,713.89 34.44
(i) Dua to Others 24,126.17 11,596.51
Total 29,351.01 11,731.50

(i} Details of Due to MSME

On the basis.of the information and records available with management, details of dues to

{
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024

il Principal amount remaining unpaid to 1,485.04 0:55

Interest due thereon 15.31 -

iy Amount of interest paid in terms of

section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with 332.96

iii) Amount of interest due and payable

far the period of delay in making -

payment (which have been paid but -

v} Amount of interest accrued and 1562 0.07

v} Amount of further interest remaining 2591 -

{li} Ageing Schedule

{a) As at 31st March, 2025 {Rs. in Lakhs)

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years ﬁ:::n .
[Msma 1,504.20 6.65 N 1,510.85
Ofers 19.433.7% 3,692.65 1,000.09 3,633.54 27.840.07
Disputed - MSME
|Disputed - Others - - - - -
[Total 20,928.09 3,699.30 1,000.08 3,633.54 29,351.02
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(b} As at 31st March, 2024 {Rs. in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date af payment
Particulars T3 Total
Less than 1 Year 1-2 ¥ears 2-3 Years Wiare tham
Years
MASRAE {155 - - - 0.55
Others 7.145.06 2,448,561 2E1.14 1,256.13 11,730.95
Disputed - MSME . - . - .
risputed - Others . . . - .
|T¢hl 7,745.61 2,448,651 281,14 1,256.13 11731.50
Nate 25
Other Financial Liabilities-Current {R%. in Lakhs)
P As-at Asat
Particalars 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024

(A) Accrued Expenses 384 45 19,55

(8] Payable to Staff and Associates 188,67 724,56

(C) Payable to Preference Sharehalders 4,50

(D) Interest Payahbie 309,61

(E} Performance Security 138,00

{F) Other Payables 1,700.00 -

Total I, 770.73 27401

1.  Inlorest payableincludos the amount due by the subsidiary, Manas Power Vonlure Pyl Lid., in relation to tho
optionally convortible dobentures issuod by the comparny.

2. Porformance Security reproscnts the currond portion of the fir valuation mpact of the intercorporate deposit, nieceved as a
performance secunty from Khane and Tarkunde: Pyl Lid. Following tho withdrawal of the joint venture agreement, it was
roclassifiod as an intorcorporais doposit and fair valued as por Ind AS 108 The non-current portion i presontod under note 16

Mon curmen! Borrowings.

Note 26
Other Current Uabilities {Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars 315t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
(A) Revenue received in Advance 15,543.02 B.367.39
(B} Other Advances
(i} Advance against land sale agreement 148.20 250.00
(i) Advance from related parties -0.00 TRE.02
i€} Othars
{it Statutory Dues payable 231222 158.95
{H) Employee Benefit Expanses Payable 2,226.84 -
(iil] Security deposits and EMDs 1,306,540
(] Provision for Purchases -
(v) Expense payable 337.87 -
(vi] Chegues Issued but not presentad - -
(it} Retention Boney Payable 183,94 -
(witi] Dithers 137.27 243.06
{lx] WAT deferment [Current] 1,648.76 -
(x}  Security Deposit 272 -
(] Capital creditors 2,71533
(xii} Lease Liability-Current - -
(i} Unsecured Optienally Convertible Debentures - -
Total 31,076.42 9,777.42

168

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025




CIAN Agro Indusinies & Infrastructure Lid.

Mote 27
Provisions: Currant
[Rs. In Lakhs)
As 5t As st
Particutars 31t March, 2025 | 31st March, 2074
li&} Provision for Employes Benafits
iy Provision for Leave encashment 37.35 L2
{il) Provisian for Retirement gratulty 100,22 295
(8) Provision for Tax
{1} Incoana Tax 171.E4 8432
lC) Others
{1} 55T Demand 523 8.23
{ii} Provision for Audit Fees 82231 44,51
{iil) TOS Payble 5 :
{iv] Prowision for Income Tax Demand 319 3.19
v} Prowition for Ex-gratia 24.87 -
{iw] Othar Provisicns 223588 7.56
Total 2,665.87 158.48
Movement in Current Provisions
Particulars Lt 31st March, 2025
(A} Provision for Employee Benefits
Balance as at 15t April 2024 476
Additians thraugh Butiness Combinatian T1H3
Provisions made during the year BR.34
Prowisions utilised during the year -
Provisions reversed during the wear .
Balance as at 315t March 2025 165.99
{B) Provision for Tax
Palance as &t 151 April 2034 84,722
Additions thravgh Rutiness Cambinatian 5167
Provisions made during the year 17164
Prowisions utdised during the year Ba 22
Provisions reversed during the year 5267
Balance &s &t 315t March 2025 171.84
(L) Others
Balance &s &t 15t April 2024 6543
Agditions through Business Combination 71T
Provisions made during the year 2.251.63
Provisdons utilisad during the year 20,24
Provisons reversed during the year -
Balance as at 31st hMarch 2025 2328.05

Additional Information about Provisions

A. Provision for Employee Benefils

The Provision for Efmployes Benefils has been crealed for the Bability of employes benefils payable wilhin 1.2 months. The amount

ol outflows expoecied and ils fiming s as porthe actuanal repori.

B. Provision for Tax

The Provision for Tax s created for (e mcome Lax lability expecied o arsae n the Assessmeant Year 2025-26.

C. Dthers

Ofhar Provisions include the amount provided lor GST and Income Tax demand. The compeny has roneewsd all iks pending litigatons and
proceadings and has adequalaly provided lorwhen provisions are requined and disclosed as contingent liabiliies whers applicable, inils

slandalone fmancial statements.

169

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

CIAN —




CIAN Agro Indusiries & Infrastructure Lid.

CIAN —

Note 28
Revenue from Cperations
For the period | For the period
Partleulars ended 31st ended 3151
March, 2025 March 2024
{A) Revenue from:
{i) Sale of Products 1,02,915.14 1687137
(4] Sake of Services * 200,00
fiiipther Operating Revenua -15.42 -
{B] Less: Discount -0.43f
Total 1,02,899.72 17,000,594
Mote 29
Other Income
For the period | For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 315t
March, 2025 March, 2024
&) Interest Incomea
{1}y Interest On Fieed Deposit 11891 11,10
{il]  Intorest on Security Deposit against rent 16,50 055
(il Interest on MSER Deposit = =
{i¥} Interest income On DebenturesfInvestments 1,12 064
1wl Interest Recetved from loans and advances - 0.1a
(il Interest Income on MSEDCL 14.58
{uill} Other Interast 11.16 -
B8] Dividend Income 12,54 078
(€) Other non operating income
{1} Tareign Exchange fluctisations {net) 5437 0,02
(i) Accounts Written back dag.52 408,42
{iiip - Imcome from rant 1.8 085
{iv}  Cosribract Settlement Qi -
] Incame from Scrap Sale i
{vi} Gain on Reduction of Lease Term 14B.12
{wil) Tax Provision Written Back -
{wiii] Gain from Sale of Subsidiary 0.6
{ix] Comsultancy Charges - -
{x) Other Recelpts 05,93 oo
{xl] Galn on fair valusation 336593 598.84
{®it} Electricity Export Incentive 417,00 E
{xiii) Refund of excess electricity charges 22455 .
(xiw) Income fram lease equalisation on rent 0.03 -
{xv} Profit on Sale of Asset - -
{xvi) Other non Cperating Income 608,13 -
{xwii] Fair valuation Gain/Loss on investment Ind AS 443
Total 2,470,189 1,170.0%

1.
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Dhiring the year, the Parent has wrillen back cerlam trade payables thal wane cutslanding for a perod axceoding J 16 5 years, These
payables portamed o vendors with whom no fransactions or reconcialions had laken place in recenl years Basod on
mamagemenl’s assessmeant, thess amounls were no longer considerad payable due (o ladors such as the expiry ol e mitzalon
pariod under applicable laws, absance of daims from vendaors, and dosure or inachvily of vendor accounts. Accordingly, such
balances wera derecognised and crediled lo the Statement of Profil and Loss under olher income.

The: Parenl has also recognized a Gain of Rs. 317.51 Lakhs on account of e valuaion of Loan a5 per IND AS 109 - Fnancial
Instruments. Such Gam has amse due o the difflerance betwean the fair value ol loan and the camying amoun! of loan as al the
reporing penod_ This has been classiiied under the head “Other Income™ in the Siatement of Profil and Loss.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025



CIAN Agro Indusinies & Infrastructure Lid.

{

CIAN ——

MNote 30
Cost of material consumed
For the period | For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March,2025 March,2024
(A) Dpening Stock
{i} Raw Material {includes packing material) 6,853.03 1,027.22
[il} Consumables 78.82 T8.82
(il Stores & Spares 6,756.47 5,358.02
Total 13,688.32 6,464.06
(B) Add : Purchases
{i} Raw Material (includes packing material) 43,610.19 1,050.08
{ii} Consumahles 3,960.98 1.02
{ili] Stores & Spares 4,230.52 945,82
Total 51,801.70 1,996.92
[C) Less: Closing Stock
i} Raw Material lincludes packing maternal} B,676.69 1,018 83
{ii} Consumables 54.97 -165.40
{iii] Stores & Spares 7.601.44 598173
Total 16,333.10 b6,835.16
Total 49,156.92 1,625.82
MNote 31
Construction Material Consumed
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Construction Material Consumed 294.36 571.02
Tatal 204.36 571.02
Mote 32
Purchase of Stock in Trade
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Purchase of stock in trade 24 555.40 8,395.05
Less; Discount on purchases -0.78 -0.76
Total 24,554.62 9,394.29

in

ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025



CIAN Agro Industries & Infrastructure Lid.

&

CIAN —

Note 23
Changes in inventory of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 315t ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
(A} Finished Goods
Opening Stock 9,850.87 4.517,89
Closing Stock 12,295.60 5,921.25
Met (increase)/ decrease -2,444,73 -1,403.37
(B) Work-in-Progress
Opening Stock 2,360.99 2,360.99
Closing Stock 2,616.32 2,703.66
MNet (increase)/ decrease -255.33 -342.68
(C) Stock-in-trade
Opening Stock 3,001.26 2,274.60
Closing Stock 4,005.11 1,173.39
MNet (increase)/ decrease -1,003.85 31,447.99
Total -3,703.91 1,701.95
MNote 34
Employee Benefit Expenses
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
(A) Salaries and Wages 2,746.19 579.02
(B} Payment towards PF and other Funds 262,83 B8.29
(C) 5taff Welfare Expenses 81,73 11.64
(D) Current Service Cost /Interest Cost 222.89
Total 3,313.63 658.95
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MNote 35
Finance Cost
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March,2025 March,2024
(&) Interest
{i) Interest cost on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
{n) From Banks
{1} Interest on Overdraft 1,705.03 1,113.47
12) Interest on Term Loan 2,057.74 300,24
[3) Interest on STL 3862
{4) Commission on Bank Guarantees 177 £
{3) Interest on Sugar Pledge Loan - -
(6] Interest on Vehicle Loan 1.7 149
[F) Interest on WCTL - -
(&) Interest on FITL - -
{b) From Other Parties
{1} Interest on Unsecured loan 1RE.00 27403
{2} Interest on Basel Daose - £
{3} Debenture Interest “0.27
41 Interest on Preference Shares: IND AS 141.33
ES; Interest on VAT Deferment- IND AS 20542
(&) Dther Interest Costs 3,037.53 -
{lijimterest on Delayed Payment to MSME - -
{iiijinterest On Lease Liabilities 2594 42 79
{ivjinterest on Advance from Customer .
(v} Interest on OCD 0,45
(B) Other Borrowing Costs
{i} Processing Fees 12.86 47
Tatal 7,418.22 1,736.73
Nate 36
Other Expenses
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 315t ended 315t
March, 2025 March, 2024
1) Power and Fuel 1,170.87 136.60
{B} Transportation Expense 85.44 74.1%
{C} Lagal & Professional Fees 153.78 113.67
{0} Repairs and Maintenance 703.00 23.56
{E) Qperation and Maintenance 1,386.37 -
{F) Legal Expenses {Indirect) 18.38 3.0%
{15} Loss on fair valuation - 151.91
{H} Profit/Loss on sale of Asset 1102 23.57
{I} Corporate Soclal Responsibility 2.50 2024
{J] Brand Owners Surplus 783.23
1K) Sundry Balances Written off 654,16
{L) Stores and Spares 7a2.11
{h4] Prior Perlod Expenses 1,189557
{M}) License & Renewal fees 203.28 3
{0} Loss on Impairment of Assets - -
{P} G5T Expense 50457
(€1} Deher Manufacturing Expense 2,085.27 -
{R) Losz on 50 forfeiture
{5 Miscellaneous expenses 5322.8L 546.80
Total 15,068.35 1,.203.50
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Income Tax

The Major companents of Income Tax Expense are:

I. Amounts recognised in Profit or Loss

CIAN —

For the perlod For the period
Particulars ended 31st ended 31st
March, 2025 March, 2024
Profit and Loss Section
{A) Current Tax Expense
Current Income Tax Charge 17184 84,22
Reversal of Provision for Tax relating to earlier years -26.59 257325
Total (A) 145,25 58.97
(B} Deferred Tax Expense
Attributable ta:
[} Origination and reversal of temporary differences 29875 -12.05
{ii) Recognition of previously unrecognised deductible temporary . )
S Total (8) 298.75 -12.05
ITotal 444.00 46.91

Reconcilialion of Income Tax Expense and the Accounting Profit mulliplied by India’s applicable x rate

This nole presents the reconcliation of income Tax charged as per the applicable lax mle spealied n lhe income Tax
Act, 1961 & the actsal provision madae i the Financial Statemonts as at March 31, 2025 with breakup of difforences n
Profit as per the Financial Statemonts and as per income TaxAct, 1961

Particulars Amount
Profit Before tax as per statement of Profit and loss
{i} Standalone 221.18
Tax on the above 57.51
{1} Subsidiary
{a) Manas Agro Industries & Infrastructiure Ltd. 226.81
Tax on above 64,30
{b) Manas Power Venture Pyt Ltd. 4,BB1.56
Tax on above 1,073.54
e} Varron Aluminium Pyt. Lid. -755.68
Tax on above -
(d) LLC CIAN Agro Limited -13.77
Tax on above -
Total tax on book profits 1,195.75
Adjustments to reconcile
Mon deductible Expenszes 1,056.52
Mon Taxable Income 69213
Effect of adjustments -1,043.50
Tax adjustments of previous year -26.59
|Deferred Tax Adjustment 318.34
iTax Expense recognised in books 444.00
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Note 37.1
Other Comprehensive Income
For the period .
Particulars andad 315t Fu;:;u;:::;r;ad
March, 2025
(&) (i} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actunal gain on employee benefits 22.25
Galn on Bargaln Purchase 188,144 62 -
1,89,166.87 0.00
[A) [ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Acturial gain on employes benefits -8.13 14.11
-8.13 14.11
{8 (i} ltems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
FCTR In respect of foreign Subsidairy -4.19 3.58)
-4.19 358
{8} {ii) Income tax related to tems that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Total 1,89,153.55 17.69)
Mote 37.2
Earnings per Share
For the period For the period
Particulars ended 315t ended 315t
March,2025 March,2024
Basic and Diluted EPS
Profit after tax for the year (In Lakhs) 411610 480.88|
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares {In Lakhs) 279,86 279.86
Total 14,71 1.75

Basic EPS and Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders

by the weiphted average number of Equity shares cutstanding dunng the year.

The Subsidiaries of the Company have potential equity shares, the iImpact of the same has been taken in the Group

Diluted EPS,
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Noto 38
Addifional Regulatory Information pursuant to the requirement in Division ll of Schedule Il to the Companies Act
2013.

(i} The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Group for holding any Benami property.

{iiy The Group does not have any transachons with companies struck off.

{iif The group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assels or
bath during the current or previous year

(W] The Group has nottraded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

(v} The Group has not advanced or foaned or invesied funds fo any other person(=s) or enfitylies), inciuding foreign
entifies (Intermedianes) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
{a) directly orindirectly lend or invest in other persons or enfittes identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the company (Ultimate Beneficianes) or
{b) provide any guarantes, security or the like o or on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficianiss

{vi) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entilies (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in wrifing orotherwise) that the Group shall-
{a) directly orindirectly lend or investin ofiier persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
{b) provide any guarantee, security of the fike on behalf of the Ulfimate Beneficiaries

{vii) The Group has not any such ransaciion which i not recorded in the books of accounts that has been sumendered
or disciosed as income during the year in the: tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, T961.

{wili) The group has bormowings from banks and financial instituions on the basis of security of current assets. The

quarterly returns or statements of current assefs fled by the group with banks and financial instiutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts.

() MNone of the entiies in the group have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
govemnment orany government authority.

(x) The group has complied with the number of layers prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

(xi) The groap has not entered into any scheme of arangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financizal year.
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C. Transfers betwoen Lovels
There have been no transfers between the levels.

Nolte on Financial Guarantee

"The Company has extended a corporate guarantee to Varron Aluminium Private Limited (VAFL) against the Loan
obligafion to Bank amounting io Ra. 27,30 00,000 undertaken by VAPL .

The company ks acting as a guarantor for VAPL and hence is required io make payments only in the event of a defaultby
them on the terms of the loan thatis guaranteed by us.

A financial guarantee confract is initially recognised at fair value. if the guarantee is issued o an unrelated party on a
commercial basis, the inifial fair value is likely to equal the premium received. f no premium is received, the fair value
must be determined using a method that quantifies the economic benefit of the guarantee to the holder.

However, according to the information provided by the lender, the interest rate of the loan would have remained
unchanged even if we had not provided the guarantee. Hence, the guarantee wasn 't initially recognised.

Atthe end ofeach subsequent reporting penod, financial guarantees are measured at the higher of-
(i) Theamountofthelossalowance, and
(i) Theamountinitially recognised less cumulative amortisation

Az per ind AS 108, the loss allowance on the financial guaraniee confract will be determined using:
Loss Allowance = LoanAmount x Probabifity of default

According fo the atest valuation repaort, the creditor's exposure to defaull is fully covered by the entity’s available assels.
Therefore, even if we assume-a 100% probability of default, the ikelihood of the guarantor facing a financial burden is
negligible. This implies that, under ind AS 109, the camying amount of the financial guarantes in the books would be zero.”

Level 3 fairvalues
Reconciliabon of Level 3fairvalues

The following fable shows a reconcilistion from the opening balances to the closing balances for Level 3 fair values.

Particulars F "l

Cpening Balance (1 April 2024) 108.09
Additions 497 99
Disposal

Change in fir valuation =
Change due to the effect of foreign exchange fluctuations -
Closing Balance (31 March 2025 606.08
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Noto 39
Financial Instruments - Fair values and risk management (continued)

"The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
i} CreditRisk

i} Liquidity Risk

iii} Market Risk”

Risk Management Framework

The Group's board of directors have the oversll responsibility for establishing and supsrvising the Company’'s risk
management framework. They have formed the risk management committee, tasked with formulating and supervising
the Company's risk management policies, and regulany reporiing its activities to the board of directors.

The Group's risk management policies aim to identify and assess the nsks encouniered by the Company, establish
suitable risk limits and controls, and monitor both fisks and compliance with these limits. These policies and systems
undergo regular review to adapt to market changes and the Company’s operations.

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet iis contractual
obligafions, and arises principally from the Company's receivable from customers, loans advanced and cash and bank

deposits keptwith banks.
Cash and cash cquivalents

The Group hetd cash and cash equivalents with banks with good credit ratings.

Other Bank balance - Fixed Do po=sits with Bank
The Company has fixed deposits with banks with good credit rafings.

Other receivables
The credit worthiness of recefvables from others is evaluated by the managemeant on an engoing basis and is considered
o be good.
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MNote 39
Note Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management [continued)

iv. Marksl risk

Markel risk is the risk ol loss ol future eamings or fulure cash llows ansing out of changes in markel condilions aooss varous segmenis and
indusiries in which the Group oparates. This includas changes in markal condilions of e Agriculiure Indusiry, Heallhcare Indusiry,
Infrastructure Induwslby, and Powsr Generabion, which invobe Mucluabons in [he prices ol mw malenals and commeodilies (indigenoushy
procured as well as imporied). In addifion, markel rn=k anses in segmenls such as Sugar & Distilery, Power, LPG, E-10, and Boifling. The
sugar and ethanal induslry is highly sensilive lo commodity price luctuabions, influenced by seasonal production, govermment palices, and
piobal supply-demand dynamics. Power genarsiion = signiicantly affecled by the availabilily and cost of fuel (cosl and biomass]), and
changes in lanlfs under Power Purchase Agreemanis (PPAS) or regubalory commissions. The LPG sagment is axposad o Nuchustions in
miemabonal LPG prices inked o benchmark crude ol and gas prices. In The E-10 segmenl, mlamabonal cude oil prices, cumency
Rucluabons, and government inlervenlions such as subsidies. laxabion, and blending mandatss impeact costs and mamgins: The bolling
segmanl is govermned by siale-spedfic excise policies, and fluctualions in licensing, laxation, producion quotas, and prices of raw malarnials
filke Exira Meutral Alcohol (EMA), molasses, and packaging malerials—driven by sgricullural yield amd govemmenl pocy—can affect
operalions. The objeciive ol markel risk managemenl is lo avoid excessive exposune o Mecluabons in markel prces and regulatory
changes.

v. Currency risk

“The Group is exposed o curmency nsk on ascount of ils opemling and inancing aclivilies. The lunclional currency of lha Company s indizan
Rupee.

Thea Growp has nol iaken denvalive instruments (o hedge the Tameign cumency risk. Also, the Group continuously monitors the fluclustion in
currency risk and ensures thal the Group doas nol have an adverse impact on account of fuclustion in exchange rates.

Exposure to currency risk
The currency profile of linancial asssels and financial liabilibes as al Manch 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 are as balow:
(Rs. in Lakhs)

31-Mar-25 Total {In Rs) Euro uso
|Financial assets
Other Current financial asset 175.30 - 153
|MNet exposure for assets 17530 - 1.58
|Financial llabllities
Other Current financial labiilties 13.92 0.15
|Net exposure for liabilities 13.92 0.15 -
IHet exposure (Assets - Liabilities) 161.38 {0.15}) 1.58

[Rs. in Lakhs)
31-Mar-24 Total (inRs) | Euro
|Financial liabilities
Trade Payablas 13.55 0.15
Total Exposure for liabilities 13.55 | 0.15
Sensitivity analysis
A reasonable possible strengthening / weakening of the respective foreign curréncies with respect to functional (Rs. In Lakhs}

Strengthening) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Effect on Prafit or Loss {before tax)

Weakening % Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

EURO 1% 0.85 {0.85) 0.14 {0.14)
usp 1% 0.92 [0.92) - -
1.78 {1.78)] 0.14 {0.14)]
182
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MNote 39
Note Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management [continued)

Interest rate risk

Intaresl rale nsk s the sk that the lair value or fulure cash fiows of a linancial instrumonl will lucluale because of changes in markst
interastrales:

Cash low interes! rale Ask is the risk that the fulure cash fows of Boating inleres! baaring instruments will Tuciuale becawese of lucluations
n ihe markel inlerest rates.

The Group primarily enters nlo fixed-rale instrumenis which ensures (hal 80-20% of isinteres! rale nsk exposure s al a fived e

Tha Group's axposuns ko markel risk for changes in inleres] rmles pimarily relates lo overdralls and cash credils from banks.

For detais of the Company's long-term loans @nd bomowings. induding interes! rale profiles, elar o Nole of lhese financial sialements.

Exposure to |nterest Rate Risk
{Rs. in Lakhs}
Carrying Amount 31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
[[A) Fixed-rate instruments
{i} Financial assots - measured at amortised cost
(@) Other pon-current financial asset 1153323 163.01
|b] Bank Balances other than Cash and cash eguivalents 2382
Tatal 11,611.04 163.01
{ii} Finoncial liabifities - measured at amortised cost
[a) Non Current Barrowings 78,401 B8 1,442 90
[b] Current Borrawings 21,956.80 1,206.62
Tatal 1,00,358.48 2,738.52
(8] Variable-rate Instrumenis
1(i} Financial Assets - measured at amortised cost
{a) Mo Current Investments 457,39
457,99
(i} Financial liabilities - measured at amortised cost
[a) Non Current Borrowlngs
[b] Current Borrawings 26,377.48 648199
Total 26,377.48 B,481.99

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rale instrumenis
The Group's iixed rale loans and deposits with banks are camed al amorfised cosl. They ame therelore nol subjac bo inleresl rate sk as
dafined in Ind AS 107, since neilher the carrymg amount nor he fulure cash Bow wili fucluals because of 3 changs in markei inleres] rates.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A measpnably possible change of 100 basis poinis in interes] rales al he reporting dale would have increased! decreased profil or loss by
armourils shown below. This analysis assumes (hal all slher varables, remain consknl This calculabion also assumes thal the changs
‘ooturs al tha balance shoel dale and has been caloulsioed based on risk exposures oulstanding a= al thal dale. The peniod end balances are
ol necessanly represenlafive of lhe average debt culslamding dunng the penod._

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments
{R=. in Lakhs]

Cash flow sensitivity {net) Profit or loss

100 bps increase | 100 bps decrease

For tho period endod 31st March, 2025
‘ariable-rate instruments 263,77 {263.77]
Cash flow sensitivity {net) 263.77 1263.77)

Far the Perlod ended 31st March, 2024

Variable-rate instruments (64,82} 482
Cash flow sensitivity {net) (54,83} 64,52
183
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The Group has following exposure to Interest Rates as at 31st March 2025;

()
CIAN

Particulars Floating/Fixed | 31st March,2025 | 31st March, 2024
(A) Non Current Borrowings
(i) Loans from banks Fined 1,01,188.73 1,442.90
Floating B B
(B) Current Borrowings
(i} Current Loans (includes current maturities) Fined 25,506.30 1,296.62
(i) Owerdrafts and cash credit facilitias Floating 35,275.76 6, 481.99
Total 1,61,970.79 9,221.50
MNote 40
Employee benefits
O Ho For the Period ended For the Period ended
31st March, 2025 31st March,2024
{A) Ex gratia 95.96 64.97
(B) Gratuity 59.81 50.32
(€] Leave encashment 41.42 20.36
{D) Bonus 351.27 21.20
(E) Salaries and Wages 865.44 -
{F) Payment towards PF and other Funds 2402 -
{G) Insurance for Employees Compensation 10.59
(H] Welfare Expenses 40.16 -
Total 1528.69 156.84

As per Indian Accounting standard 13 "Employee Benefils®, the disclosure as defined in the accounting standard are

given befow

The status of gratuity plan as reguired undor ind AS-19 :

The Company operates adefined benefit plan (the Gratuity plan) covering elfigible employees, which provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of an amount based on
the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment

(A} Defined Contribution Plan

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 145.02 -
Employer’s Contribution te Superannuation Fund = 2
Employer's Contribution to Pension Scheme - -
Total 145,02
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(B) Defined Benefit Obligation

end of the year

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 315t March, 2024
(i) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of
Define Benefit Obligation
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations at the 31.36
beginning of the year 1,021.79 '
Current Service Cost 110.12 7.40
Interest Cost 68.52 2.15
Past Service Cost - -
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: -
Change in Demographic Assumptions - 0.00
Change in Financial Assumptions 32.08 -0.65
Experience variance -64.37 7.69
Actual Benefits Paid (i.e. Actual experiences assumptions) 77.45 -0.20
Present Value of Defined Benefits Obligation at the 1245 57 -
end of the year 245.5 4775
(ii) Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan Assets
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
Fair Value of Plan assets at the beginning of the Year -
Benefits Paid - -
Return on plan asset excluding amount recognised in
net interest expenses
fssets Transferred In/{Cut)(Net) o .
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year - :
{iii) Reconciliation of the Present value of defined benefit cbligation and Fair value of plan assets
Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
B tVal f Defined Benefit Obligati tth d
resent Value of Defined Benefi igations at the en 1,245.57 47.75
of the Year
Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the Year - <
Net [Liability) recognized in balance sheet as at the
1,245.57 a47.75

{iv) Gratuity Cost for the year

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at3lst March, 2024
Current Service Cost 213.14 .40
Interest Cost 133.70 2.15
Past Service Cost ; -
MNet Gratuity cost recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss 346,85 9,55
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{v) Other Comprehensive Income

CIAN

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at 31st March, 2024
Actuarial (Gains)/ Losses
- Changes in demographic Assumptions - -
- Changes in financial Assumptions 63.02 0.65
- Experience adjustments -121:12 7.69
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in
other comprehensive income AT 7.04

{wi} Actuarial Assumptions

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
Discount Rate (per annum) 6505 to 6.70% T.05%
Expected annual Increase in Salary Cost 7% ta 10% 10.00%

Martality

Indian Assured Lives
hartality (2002-14) LIt

Indian Assured Livies
Mortality (2012-14) U

Emplovee attrition rate (past service)

P5: 0 to S years :15%
P5: 5to 10 years (5%

P5: 10 to 15 years :1%

P5: 0 to 5years :15%
PS5: 5 to 10 years :5%
P5: 10 to 15 years :1%

{vii) Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are dizcount rate,
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensiiivity analysis below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occuming at the end of the reporting perod, while holding all
other essumpiions constant. The results of sensiiivity analy=is is given below:

Increase [ Decrease in defined benefit obligation
i
Particulars Sensitivity Level inpas
As at3lst March, 2025 | As at31st March, 2024
Discount Rate 1% Increase 856,86 43,78
1% Decrease 1,137.35 52.42
Salary Growth Rate 1% Increase 1.118.74 51.06
1% Decrease 910.33 44.45
(vill) Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows
Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation
Weighted average duration {based on discounted cashflows)
Expected cash flows owver the next (valued on Amount

undiscounted basis):

As at 31st March, 2025

As at 31st March, 2024

15t following year 83.20 1.69
2nd following year 65.15 4,88
3rd following year 5148 9.50
Ath fol!nwlnﬁ year 56.54 4.40
5th following year 43.97 5.07
Years 6 to 10 313.26 11.75
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Mote 41
Related party transactions

(A} List of related parties and relationship
The Managerment has identified the h.'l"l'.'ll,'l']lﬂ entities and Individuale as related parties of the Group for the yeis ended March 31, 2025 and
March 31, 2024 for the putpose of reporting as per Ind A5 24 - Related Party Disclosere which are as under;-

Mature of Relationship tame of the Related Party

Kkl Nitin Gadkarl

Ravindra Vidyadhar Boratkar
Jaykurmar Warma

Bamesh Hemte

Atul Vijay Mandlekar

\rushall litendra Pradhan

Madhutiala Dave

|Naku| 'l.l'innllluk Bhat

Mrs. Rutujs Nikhil Gadkari [wife]

BAr. Mitin lairam Gadkari [Father]

M. Kanchan Nitin Gadkari (Mother)
Ms, Mandinl Mikhii Gadkarl (Daughter|
Bls. Sanwi Mikhil Gadkarl (Daughter]
M, Kaver) Mikhil Gadkarl {Daughter|
Mr. Sarang Gadiar {@rother)

tirs. Katakl Aditva Kaskhediar [Sister|

Dirsctors and Key Managedal Parsonnel

Shel Mdyadhar Boratkar [Father)

smit Sudha Borathar (Mother)

BAr. Adlheesh Barathar {San)

bs. Aditi Rorathar (Daughter)

Mr. Narendra Boratkar (Brother)

bira. Horndata Varma (Wifop

Shel, Aamesh Madhaw Varma [Fathar)
Brs. Hymavathy Varma [Mather]

Mr, Abhilash Varma [Son)

Br. Avinanh Varma [San}

Brs. Annapurna Chaskar (Daughter)
SmL Sangseers Ramesh Hims (Wilks)
Shur|, [Iinh.:rrau Himte (Father)

smit. Indire Dankarmo Himte |Mother)
sameer Ramesh Shyal [Son)

|Deepika Sameer Siyal {Daughtes-in-law)
Aavindra Dinkartag Himite |Brot bes|
ghital Satish Hedi {Gistor)

8z, Harsha vardhin Atul Mandiskar {Wife)
Me. Vigay Martand Mandlékar [Father]
Bl Sunetra Wiy Mandiskir [Mothes|
|#4r, Himanshu Atul Mandizkar (5an)
Mrz. Radha Humanshu Mandlaksr [ Daughtar-in-Law]
Bs, Nikita Atul BMandlekar |Daughtes)
Hahiizl iy Martslikar |Beothar |

Prachi Pramod Lakhe (Sister)

lithedra Arur Pradhan {Spouse|

Vilas Shankar Kalantre |Fathaer]

Or. Charulata Vilas Kalantre (Mather)
Bs, Sakshi lendra Pradhen |Davghter)
IMM. Anrya Alay Asswiale (Sisler|

Relatives of Directars & KMP

A Firm, in which a director, manager or his rolative i a

lpartnar Ii"unr Enterprises

Chaitanya Constructions And Builders Private Limited
|Purt: Marketing Private Limitad

BB Activ Soi-Tech Commaunications Private Limited
YWidartha Bealtors Private Limated

Ameya Paper Mills Pyt Lid

Auian Comventions & Expasitions Private Limitad
1Pro-Fir Advertsers [India) Privete Lirmibes

501 Knowladge Interlinks Private LUmited

Magpur Sugars Private Lirmited

Vana Aerlal Solutions & Loglstics Prvate Limited
Vona Crop Protection Technolpgios Private Limited
Swapnil Promatars and Developers Privats Limited
|Eaina Foods Private Limied

A Private campany In whith a director oF manager 1]er
his relative] i a member or director;
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{B) Transactions with related parties

{l) Key management personnel compensation

{Rs. in Lakhs)

CIAN

Particulars 315t March, 2025 31st March, 2024
lal Short-torm employes benofits 122.54 118.20
(b} Past-fatirement bonefits
|ch Othir lomg term benefits
{ii} The nature wise transactions with the related parties are as follows:
For the year 2024-25 {Rs. in Lakhs)
HKey management Entities controlled or
Nature of Transactions personnel (KMP} & mﬁ?#:::t ?:;:3 cq |i0intly controlled by KMP
Relatives of KMP ar Relatives of KMP
Sabes-af goods [fnshed o unfinished) n.g2 174312 BO7 06
Purchase of goods (fnished or unfinished) 10.59 215254 20,74
Faceming of sarvices = = 13.56
|Providing of sarvices !
Iresstmient in Equity 285
Imprest sccount paymeants . -
impeest account recedpls o.20 -
Intsr corporate deposits taken i 16 -
Irler corporale diposits repaid - - -
Advance against purchases! esnices . 500,40 4608123
Advance Recelvad agaimst Sake 2,022.83 -
Capltal Advance Paid 471,15 -
C:apital Advance Receed 73259 E
Transfer made during the year as per merger ordar - 250243 Bos. 11
Criviceridl income 283.09 . -
Loant & Advances given [ setied 11343 121.62 166 54
Advances Received Retumed . 511,33 -
Accounts payable wntlan off - 288
Receipt of Short t=rm Loan . .
Famunaration GE.00 - -
(i} The natura wise transactions with the related parties are as follows:
For the year 2023-24 {Rs. in Lakhs)
Koy managemeant Entities controlled or
Mature of Transactions personnel (KMP} & !mimﬂ':’:; T:::::“ izintly controtled by KMP
Relatives of KMP ar Rotatives of KMP
Szles of gnods {fintshed ar wnfinished] 323787 119,41
Purchase of goods (fintshed or unfinished)| - 153419 -
Receiwing of serioes 3894 L
Prowiding of services = 235
Inusstment in Equity
Imprest acosunt paymemnts pe: it}
Imprest atount receipls Fal
Inter corparste deposits taken -
Intar corporate daposits repaid
Adlvance against purchiases) services 1.087.24
fudwarce Receved agsinss Sale 365.00
Ciividend Income - -
Lonns-& Advances jnen 068 144,09
Accouints payabls writton off = -
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MNote 42
Capital Management

The objective of the Group when managing capital is:

{f} to maintasin a sfrong capital base and heaithy capital ratios 0 as to maintain the investor. creditor and market
confidence,

(i) tosustain future developmentof the business, and

(i) toprovide adeguate retum io shareholders through continuing growth.

The Group determines the capital requirements based on annual business and long-term operational plans! sirategies,
encompassing capital and strategic investiments.

These financial needs are fulfilted through a blend of equity and long-term bormowing.

The Capital of the Group consists of equity share capital, reserves and surplus and debt capital comprising of Long term
and short term debis_

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, debt-equity ratio and net debl to equity ratio

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.

Capital Management Ratios:

[As. in Lakhs)

Particulars Asat31st March, 2025 Asat31st March, 2024
Lang term debt BO,642.56 2,910.56
Short term debt 49,372.60 7,782.23
Total debt 1,30,015.16 10,692.89
Cash and Cash Fquivalents 203.39 38.77
Net Debt 1,20,811.77 10,654.12
Total Equity 2,01,743.23 8,922.93
Net debt to equity ratio 0.64 1.19
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Noto 44- Business Combination Note as PerINDAS 103

{1 WVWarron Aluminium Private Limited

Dunng the financial year 2024-25, the Company acguired control ovor Varron Alumirium Privatoe Limiged, through
an NCLT-approved schome of amangement undor the Companies Act, 2013, The acquasition bocama effoctive
from 17th August 2024 and has boen accounted for using the acquisition method in accordancs with Ind AS 103 -
Business Combinations. The identifable assets acquired and labilitics assumod have boon rocognisoed at thoir
fabr values on the acquisition dale. The lotal consideralion transfermed was less than the Tair valuo of the nel
dentifiable assels asquired, resulting in 2 gain on bargain purchasse, which has been recognised in the Statormenl
of Profit 2nd Loss in accordance with Ind AS 103

Subsequent o the acquesition, the finandal resulls of Yamon Alurninium Privale Limiled have been consoldated.
The acquires conlibuted (o the Group's revenue and profil for the year. The delalls of nel assels acquired, gain on

bamgain purchaso, and post-acguisition porfommanco aro presaentod in the ables below.”

Assets and Liabilities acquired during the Business combination in respect of Varmon Aluminium Private Limited:

Particulars Amount

[A) Assets Acquired:

[ty Property, Plant & Equipmen . B, 26265
) Investment .| LIiTn i 2132
i) Loans & Advances 117 55

{iv) Inwventary 1,791.36

v TradeRecefvable ; 121224

{wi} Cash & Cash Eguivalents 139.17

[wil) Cusrent Tax Assel 0,52

[viii}) Dther Current Asset e 2,727.50

Total Asset 14,278.38

(8) Liabilities Assumed:

liw) Mon current Borrowing 3 E8T7.45

(i) Current Financial Liabilin 24.04

[iii} Qther Current Liahiliny 260,07

{iv) Current Provision 1.35

Total Liabllities 4,162.90

Net Assets Acquired (Assets - Liabilities) 10,115.48

Particulars Arnount

Fair Value of Tnwesiment helc 2.787.42

Fair Value of Met Azsets Acquired 10,115.48

Past Acguisition Profic -113.73

Bargain Purchase Gain -7,441.79

The Group recognisad a Gain on Bargain Purchase anising from this business acquisitions, whono the Tair value of
the niet Hontifiable assels aoguired significantly oxcocded the considoration pakd. The acgulsitions wom
concluded al favourable lerms, and the gain has been recognisod in Use Stalement of Profit and Loss in
accordance with Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations.

Impact an Financial Performance;

Particulars Varron Aluminium Private Limited
Revenue Since Acguisition Date 1.42
Profit/{Loss) Since Acquisition Date -755.68
1
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{2} Manas Power Ventures Private Limited

Dunng the financial year 2002425 the Company acguired contral ovor Manas Power Vontures Private Limited,
pursuant 1o a busness combination that gualifies as a business under Ind AS 103 - Business Combunations. The
acquisition was comploted on 10th Soptomber 2024 and has been accounted for esing the acquisiion maethod in
accordanco with Ind AS 103, Tho identifiable assels acquired and liabdiies assurnod have boon recognised at
ther fair values on the acquisition dato. The total considoration ransformed was less than the fair value of the ret
identifiable assots acquired, resulling in a gain on bargain purchase_ which has beon rocognizsed in the Statoment

of Prafitand Loss in accordance with Ind AS 103,

Subssoquisnt 1o the acquisidion, the financal resulls of Manas Peower Ventures Pyt L1d have boen consoblidated.
The acquires coninbuled 1o the Group's revenue and profit for the: year. The details of nel assets acquired, gainon

bargaln purchase, and post-acouision performancs ane presentiod in e bl belkow.

Assets and Liabilities acquired during the Business combination in respect of Manas Power Venture Private Limited:

CIAN

Partlculars Amount

(R) Assets Acquired: S I
{il  Praperty, Plant & Equipmen 1,48,435.48
{ii) Intangible Asset under Developmeni 13.57
{il) Investmeet 677.36
{iw} Other Man Current Financial Asss 3,394 82
{u) Other Nen Current fissel 3 158 11,410.89
{wil Inventory 2,677.07
lvii) Trade Recelvable £,651.58
{wlil} Cash & Cash Egulvalents 620.46
[ix) Other Bank Balance A08.01
(_Other cumrent financiaf Asset — imass
{xl] Current Investment 133.19
{xii) Current Tax Assat 137.07
{xiti} Other Current Asset 14,550.14
Total Asset 1,91,288.58
|(B) Linbilities Assumed:

(i} Mon current Borrowing 23,128.16
{i]_Non Current Provisior . 7347
{iii} ©ther non current liabilitie: £,800.00
(v} Deffered Tax Hability 15,646 78
|v) Current Borrewing 10,244.71
{vi} Trade Payables 3,119.58
[wil) Current Finaricial Liability 546.07
{wiil} Other Current Liability 3.111.64
{ix] Current Provision 3685
Total Liabilities 58,807.25
Net Assets Acguired 1,32,481.33

Particulars Amount

Fair value of lnvestment held _ 6,393.50
Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired 1,32,481.33
Post Acquisition Profit 122.44
|Bargain Purchase Gain -1,25,565.39

The Group recognised a Gain on Bargain Purchase ansing from this business acquisions, whare tho fairvabue of
the not idenfifiable assels acquired sagnificanlly oxceeded the consdoraton paid. The acquisstions woro
concluded al favourablo terms, and the gain has boon recognisod in the Statement of Profil and Loss in

accordance with Ind AS 103,
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Impact on Financial Performance

Partlculars Amount
Fevenue Since Acquisition Date 39,596.70
Profit/({Loss} Since Acquisition Date 4,491.28

{3} Avenzer Electricals & Infrastructure Private Limited

During the firancial year 202425 the Company acquired control over Avenzer Electricals & Infrastruciure Pvl
Lt pursiant 1o a buesiness combination that qualifies as a business undor Ind AS 103 — Business Combinaions.
The acquisition became effective from 240 Septembor 2024 and has boon accountod for using the acguisition
mcthod in accordance with Ind AS 103, The identifiable assols acquined and liabilities assumed havo boon
recognisad at their fair values on the acquesition date. Tho total considoraton transformod was loss than tho fair
vatue of the net identifiable assets acquired, resulting in a gain on bargain purchass, which has been necognised
inthe Staternent of Profit and Loss in accordance with Ind AS 103

Subsoguont to tho acquisition, the financial results of Avenzor Elecincals & Infrastructure Pyl Lid have boan
conslidatod from the offoctive date. The acquiros contributed o the Group's rovenue and poofil for the yoar. Tho

details of nol assots acquired, gain on bargain purchass, net cash outfiow, and pest-acquisition performance ane

presented in tho tablo below.

Asseots and Liabilities acquired during the Business combination in respect of Avenzer Electricals &

Infrastructure Private Limited:

Particulars Amount
(A) Assets Acquired: — LN e
{il  Property, Plant & Equlpmew 75,296,30
{ii) Capital Work-in-Frogres: _52,597.93
11} Right of e Agset 11355
{ivl Other Intangible Assets a08.15
1u:| In_tg_r_i,g[l_:ﬂe Asset under E'réi.;e!npmen! — 3 _
(v} Inwestmnet 436.30
(wit) Loans & Advance: 440.14
{wiil} Other Non Currént Financial Asse 568.38
{ix]  Other Mon Current Asset 81322
(X I:m.rentnry_ _9 o Y 11 :453 55
[{ki]  Trade HEEE—NE IE 15.«14? 70
{xii} Cash & Cash EquwalEnL 81.75
{®iil] Other Bank Balance 35222
{xiv] Current Loans 14,513.29
l|x1.r_:| Other current Fln.anljai Assal E35.00
{wvi) Current Investment -
(i) Currens Tax Assat 62972
{swiil} Other Current Asset 7.010.37
Total Asset 1,81,403.47
(B] Liabilithes Assumied:
i_i} Mon current Borrowing 56,587.92
1) Lease IJaI:HFItI,. 1.13 95
{iil} Man Current Provisior 83917
fiv} Other non current [iabilitie: 143141
{v) Deffered Tax linhility -2,382.64
{wi} Current Borrowing 27,245.19
{wil) T Trade Payables 1B,300.95
1"|I'|I|H:l.l rrent Financial Llahllln =
{ix} Dther EurrEﬂt L!ﬂhl‘llt\ 12,619.15
{x) Current Provision 420717
(xl] Contingent Liabilities .
Total Liahilities 1,18,962 85
et Assets Acquired [Assets - Liabllitles) 62,440.63
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. Particulars Amount
Falr value of Investmet helc 1,409.97
Falr Value of Net Assets Acquirec 562,440.63
e T
Fost Acquisition Profit 92.53
Bargain Furchase Gain -55,737.45

The: Group necogrisad a Galn on Barmgain Purchass ansing from this business acquisilions, wheno th Taie valie of
the nel dentfiable assets aoquired significanily exceeded the considoration paid. The acguisitbons wene
concluded al favourable lorms, and the gain has been recognised in the Statement of Profil and Loss in

accordanco with Ind AS 103,

Impact on Financial Performance:

Particulars Amount
Rewenue Since Acquisition Date 52 87886
Profit/{Loss] Since Acquizsition Date 298.75
Mote 45
Contingent Liabilities (to the extent not provided for)
(Rs. in Lakhs)
As at
— FAracion 31st March,2024
Iﬂaims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in
respect of:
Income Tax Demand 150.55
Taotal -

The Company has ongoing disputes with Incomo Tax authodties in india. The dissgreoments concam [he tax
handling of specific expenses assoroed for doduction, penalbes ansing from non-comphance and doposits for
TDS (Tax Dodudtod at Source). Contingent liability in respect of tax domands receivod from dinoct {ax authorntios
in India and othor jursdichons s Rs 15055 lakhs as-at March 31, 2024, These demand orders are boing
contested by the company based on the managoment evaluation and advice of tax consultants. Tho company
anticipaios a favourable outooms nthe dispuie and, acoordingly, has not recognized any provison.
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MNoto 46 Segmont Reporting

“A_Gonaral lrfarmation

{a) Factors usod to identify the: enfity’s reportablo segments, including the basis of crganisation.

Based on the critona as montioned in Ind-As-108-"Operating Segmaont”, the Company has identified its reportable segments, as
folbonars:

Seqment-, Agro

Sogmant-2, Heallhcare

Sogmanl-3, Infrastructure

Sogmonl-4, Sugar

Segment-5, Powor

Segment-6, Distillery

Seament-7, Fortilizer

Segmant-8, LPG

Segmenl-3, E-10

Segmenl-10, Boliling

Segmenl-11, Head Office

Othors

Urallocable - Exponses which aro comman among the sogments and could not be allocatod are catogonsed undor unalioczabie.
The Chial Oporating Decision Maker ("CODM™) ovaluales the Company's porformance and aliocates resources based on an
analysis of vadous porfomance indicators by oporating sogmonts. The CODM reviews revanue and gross profit as tho
porformanco indicator for all of the operating segmoinls.

CIAN

MNote] Statement of Segment wise Revenue and Capital Employed for tli:il.";::?:::;d 31st
No. March, 2025
i Particulars For the Period ended | For the Period ended 31st
31st Mar, 2025 March,2024
(Audited) {Audited)
1} Segment Revenue
{MNet salefincome from operation)
Seament-Agra Division 18,704,093 15,045,599
Segment-Healthcare Division 5,382.55 353.73
Segment-Infrastructure Division 188786 1,771.22
Segment-Sugar (2,072.60)
Segment-Power 44,404.30 -
Segment-Distillery 5,389.87
Segmant-Fartilizer 303591
Segment-LPG 6,243.56 -
Segment-E-10 5.977.20 -
Segment-Bottling 10,468.31 -
Segment - Head Office =
Cthers 387.82 .
Tatal 1,02,899.72 17,070.94
Less: Inter segment Revenue
Add: Other Income 2,470.19 1,170.02
Net sales/Income From Operations 1,05,369.91 18,240.96
s ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025
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CIAN

Segment Results {Profit)(+)/

Loss (-} before tax and interest

from Each segment)

Segment-Agro Division 2 GEEED £50.38
Segment-Healthcare Division 14556 1,655.75
segment-infrastructure Division [1,230.51) {354.13)
SEEMENT-SUgar 223.38 .
Segment-Power 7. A38.34 :
Segment-Distillery .62 -
Segment-Fertilizer 1125 =
Segment-LPG 22,01 =
Segment-E-10 045 =
Segment-Bottling Sa6.18 -
Segment - Head Office it =
Others S6.67 .
Lot 11,978.32 1,951.99
Liess:

(i) Interest 7,418.22 1,415.20
(i) Other Un-allocable Expenditure - 5
(iii] Un-allocable income .
Total profit after interest before tax 4,560.10 536.79
Capital Employed (Segment

assets — Segment Liabilities)

Segment-Agro Division 445063 (1,230.65)
Segment-Healthcare Division 731833 3,869.12
Segment-Infrastructure Division £21.99 (2,539.01)
Segement-Sugar Division {27,835.99)

Segement-Power Divisian 1,28,436.08

Segment-Distillery Division 38.666.72

segemant-Fertilizer Division 21,802.73

Segment-LPG Division (720.73)

Segment-E-10 Division {471.03}

segement-Bottling Division (576.88) -
Segment - Head Office 4,287,594 -
Others 6.909 96

Un-allocated 2,798.59 2,798.59
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CIAN

C. Reconciliation of information on reportable segments to Ind AS measures:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Mature of transaction
For the period ended | For the Period ended 31st
31st March ,2025 March, 2024
i}|Revenues
Total revenue for reportable segment 1,05,365.91 18,240.96
Ravenue for other segments
Total Revenue 1,05,369.91 18,240.96
i} | Profit/Loss before tax
Profit/Loss before tax for reportable 4.560.10 536.79
Profit/Loss before tax for other ) )
Profit/Loss before tax as per 4,560.10 536.79
iii) | Aszets
Total assets for reportable segments 4,34,627.01 41,497.36
Aszets for other segments - -
Unallocated amounts 2.798.59 2,798.59
Total assets 4,37,425.60 46,295.95
iv)|Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 2,22 502,01 40,599.31
Liahilities for other segments - -
Unallocated amounts - -
Total liabilities 2,22,502.01 40,599.31
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Far the period ended | For the Period ended 31st
Particulars
31st March ,2025 March, 2024
A, Revenues from external customers
Revenue from the Country of Domicile- India 1,05,369.91 18,186.28
Revenue from foreign countries 55676 c4 ER
Total 1,05,368.91 18,240.96
B. Details of non current asset
Mon Current asset in the Country of Domicile - India 375 195 .98 13.4256.40
" " by L] ¥
Mon Current asset in Foreign Countries o
Total 3,25,195.98 13,426.40
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CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil Lines, Nagpur — 440001, Maharashtra.

FOR KIND ATTENTION OF SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Sharcholder(s),

Az per the provisions of Section 88 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Management & Adminisiration)
Rules, 2014, the Company needs to update its "Reqgister of Members' to incorporate certain new details, as are required
under the said provigions. Further, as per the "Green Inifiative in the Corporate Governance” inifiaied by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA), vide its Circutar No. 17/2011 dated 21/04/2011, the Company proposes o send all the notices,
documents including Anmual Report in electnonic form fo ifs members.

We, therefore request you to fumish the following details for updation of Register of Members and ensble the Company to
send all communication to you through electronic mode:

Registered Folio No./ DP ID & Client 1D

Name of the Member

Father's | Mother's | Spouse’s Mame

Address (Registered Office Address in case the Member is a Body Corporate)
E-mail Id

PAN or CIN (In case of Body Corporato)

UIN (Aadhar Number)

Occupation

Residential Status

Mationality

In case member is a minor, name of the guardian
Date of birth of the Member

Place:

Signature of the Member
Kindly submit the above details duly filled in and signed at the appropriate place to the Registrar & Share Transfer

Agents of the Company viz. “Bigshare Services Pyl Lid”, office at Office No. 56-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business
Park, next to Ahura Centre, Mahakali Caves Road, Andhen (East) Mumbai - 400093, Maharashira.

Thanking You, Fo CIAN Agro Industrics & Infrastructure Limited

Jaykumar Varma
Director
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If Undelivered, Please return to

CIAN AGRO INDUSTRIES & INFRASTRUCTURE LTD.

Regd. Off. : 4th Floor, Gupta Tower, Science College Road, Civil lines, Nagpur-440010, Maharashtra
Tel. No.: (+)91-712- 2220027/ 2221127

Website : www.cianindustries.com | Email : info@cianindustries.com



